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Financial Summary

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

HE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AREBTRT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(&LE7)
(Restated)
GED)
(Note)
Wz Revenue 22,019,737 21,772,240 20,821,949 20,985,532 22,101,871
EH Gross profit 7,918,290 7,288,599 6,576,938 7,227,800 8,140,733
B P15 8 A& Profit before income tax 1,971,360 1,539,774 1,276,824 1,067,972 1,170,761
FeHAY Income tax expense (605,148) (510,070) (398,608) (460,643) (336,256)
FE&EF Profit for the year 1,366,212 1,029,704 878,216 607,329 834,505
VNN Profit attributable to equity
BFEARLER holders of the Company 1,366,212 1,029,704 878,216 607,329 834,505
es) Dividends 1,366,212 1,029,704 614,751 121,466 166,901
ARES ARES ARES ARES AR®S
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
BRELRBF Basic earnings per share 31.63 23.84 20.33 14.06 10.32
= Note:

AEBDR _ZE— ) \FENESWEREEBSE  The Group adopted HKFRS 15 in 2018. Comparatives for year ended 31
155 B E—E—+FE+-_A=+—BItFEEML  December 2017 have been restated accordingly. The financial results prior
RNYFTEMEEESY  E_E—LtEURMIEEL  to 2017 have not been restated.

WEE S o
MW12B31H
As at 31 December

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ARETRT AREFTT AREFTT ARETRT AR®ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BWEE Total assets 21,757,042 21,732,558 20,036,552 20,705,427 21,606,419
HEEE Total liabilities 8,124,112 8,510,251 7,221,075 8,665,316 10,004,016
AR Total equity 13,632,930 13,222,307 12,815,477 12,040,111 11,602,403
B4 MBE4EZEY  Cashand cash equivalents 1,056,780 1,563,945 2,356,350 2,076,839 1,473,317
e (BE)FE Net current (Liabilities) (623,190) (439,236) 475,101)  (1,868,005) (1,337,930
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2019, Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together as the “Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our”
or “us”) adhered to the corporate vision of “Honesty and Diligence;
Innovation and Excellence (5 & £) & - B #>k# ) " and upheld
the principle of “Value Marketing (B{E%& #5) ”. With a focus on
operation, we were dedicated to creating brand value, pursuing
steady development and striving for progressive advancement
by “Healthy Practice (2 F#E) ", with an aim to evolve into an
enterprise boasting “Integrity (@ #%) ", “Brand (&) ” and “Taste

(i) "

In 2019, subject to the uncertainties of the Sino-US trade
negotiations, many industries were hit hard and economic growth
was sluggish. Nevertheless, upon a series of stimulus measures
rolled out by the government, there was a relatively stable
development in general. Under the intense industry competition
in 2019, the Group insisted on maintaining stable prices fixed for
the sales channels, investing in its brands and facilitating product
freshness management to provide consumers with a better product
experience. While the quality of classic brands continued to be
improved to attract new consumer groups, novel products were
developed based on the new lifestyle to facilitate industry upgrade
and strengthen the use of new technologies and new packaging.
With more mature self-heating technology, self-heating hotpot and
meals were launched to enlarge the territory of convenient food,
marking a new chapter for the development of food technology.

In 2019, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB22,019.7 million,
representing an increase of 1.1% as compared to that of last
year, and profits after tax of RMB1,366.2 million, representing an
increase of 32.7% as compared to that of last year. In particular,
“Uni Assam Milk Tea (£t —FEM %) " and lifestyle noodles
“Soup Daren (3% # A )", being well-recognized by consumers,
continued to record a double-digit growth and became the drivers
of revenue growth and facilitated optimization of the product mix.
Sugar-free tea “Chai Li Won (£ 2% ) ” was launched in response
to consumers’ demand for health and light burden. New flavours
of the self-heating rice meals “Premium Meal (53/\kE) " were
introduced to provide more options for consumers. A new future
of Chinese cuisine was developed by leveraging on the prevailing
technologies. With the concerted and conscientious efforts, the
Group strived to improve its business performance and maximize
interests of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 5
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RKEIR B

ERAEE010FRBESIRR E25E
B BEUBERL UEREARTHE K
rEIEE ([ER2)g([EFg)ERER
AR RITZBEFRIAASHERELZEE
2019F12ABIH L FEARBAR R ETK
ARM31.6350 (HEHRE AR %1,366.2

e —

BEIT) °

AREE

2020 7 45 - £ %1 2 & R 5 ECOVID-19%
BEWEET AEBE2HEABNHEBLEE
S WiBASHEFTERMRBER  HEE
EHEEABRHMEEFFEE ARRER
KB EME UNEETSHREZEABRE
T e BA - 5NN & B 7 & 5 3 75 I
EBFEELEE  HE A NBHERERE
(Standard Operating Procedures)’ fE2 B f
ERERBEBEEAGEETSERERT &
FRAGEEHEMSEERT -

REFET ELEBENEERTARETET
B EREBESHEVENEE KTAE
e AEEKHHHZEEHERER
SEETEEEENMERREENER B
APEUHEE R RIS -

6

Annual Report 2019 F#§

FINAL DIVIDEND

Having accounted for, including but not limited to, the Group’s
overall performance, surplus, financial condition, capital
expenditures in 2019, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company will propose to declare a final cash
dividend of RMB31.63 cents per share (amounting to a total
dividend of approximately RMB1,366.2 million) for the year ended
31 December 2019 at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

PROSPECT

Since the widespread of the novel coronavirus COVID-19 in
the beginning of 2020, the Group has thoroughly followed the
government’s epidemic prevention measures. To pay tribute to
healthcare staff and epidemic prevention personnel, the Group has
also coordinated the inventory level and logistic services in different
areas to provide free instant noodles, self-heating rice meals,
beverage and other supplies to healthcare staff in critical regions.
Additionally, the Group has maintained active communications
with local governments to strive for early resumption of work and
production and formulated internal epidemic prevention standard
operating procedures in order to cater the market and consumer
needs amidst full-scale epidemic prevention by commencing
production and supply as soon as possible.

Under the influence of the epidemic, the lifestyle under otaku
economy has affected the changes in consumption pattern for
e-commerce and otaku economy. Opportunities are found in time.
The Group will take advantage of this opportunity to implement
corresponding measures in order to continuously provide
consumers with convenient and satisfactory products in the hope
of creating a wonderful life to consumers.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Chairman’s Statement

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our Group’s steady growth is credited to every party’s support
and dedication. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our
sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers, business partners,
financial institutions and shareholders for their unparallelled support,
especially for all our colleagues’ efforts and contributions in the past
year.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

25 March 2020
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The gross domestic product (GDP) of the People’s Republic of
China (“China” or the “PRC”) recorded a year-on-year increase
of 6.1% in 2019, down 0.5 percentage points from last year.
The China-U.S. trade friction as accompanied by deadlocked
negotiations, continuous disputes, tariff barriers and other
situations has affected the overall economic development. The PRC
government has responded quickly to roll out a series of economic
stimulus measures to reduce burden of enterprises and encourage
consumption such as reduction of taxes and administrative fees.
As a result, the domestic economy remained generally stable in
2019 amidst continuous adjustment, transformation and upgrade
of industrial structure, with active demands in the domestic market
and thriving development of the food industry.

In 2019, under a wide range of favourable catalysts including lower
pressure on costs given the reduced prices of raw materials for the
food industry as well as economic stimulus from the government,
companies acted promptly to seize market share by increasing
market investment, which resulted in more intense competition
in the industry and fluctuated market prices in channels. A wide
variety of distinctive marketing tactics were adopted to attract
channels and consumers. Given the improving living standards
and booming development of new technologies and new services,
consumption has been led by diverse and innovative products. In
this ever-changing world, new business opportunities can only be
captured by focusing on consumer needs and satisfaction.

Since the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”)
in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control measures
continued to be implemented in the PRC. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the outbreak and evaluate its long-
term impact on the financial position and operating results of the
Group. As of the date of this annual report, the Group was not
aware of any significant effect on its business as a result of the
outbreak of COVID-19.

8 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, our Group remained steadfast in its own strategies
of brand building and value marketing. Under the principle of
“Healthy Practice (f#fE121E) " adopted as always, control over
the freshness of our products was strengthened while market price
remained stable. With a focus on development of brand assets,
we strived to improve our product mix to achieve better operating
results progressively with our cautious and prudent attitude.

The Group recorded a revenue of RMB22,019.7 million in 2019,
representing an increase of 1.1% as compared with that of the
corresponding period last year. Information about the Group’s core
businesses is as follows:

Food Business

The Group was aware that consumers had different requirements
on food quality and convenience given their changing lifestyle and
rapid improvement in material conditions. With an aim to satisfy the
needs of consumers, on top of upgrading its instant noodles, the
Group also applied the emerging self-heating technology to develop
a series of self-heating food and frozen fresh noodles for simple
family cooking, which enabled a more diversified and convenient
dining experience with more tasty food.

Instant Noodles Business

In 2019, there was an intense competition in the instant noodles
market. Adhering to the principle of value marketing, the Group
continued to focus on brand building to develop popular products
appealing to consumers as driven by its innovative spirits, and
promote industrial upgrading to optimize its product mix in lockstep
with the times. Revenue generated from the Groups’ instant
noodles business in 2019 was RMB8,500.7 million, representing an
increase of 0.9% over the same period of last year. Such business
growth was attributable to “Soup Daren (52 A ) ”, a mid and high
end brand that continued to be well-received by the market and
recorded a double-digit growth over the same period of last year.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 9
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In 2019, “Authentic Sourness and Crunchiness, Our Originality ( 1E

REAEE - FuhRAl) ¥ was adopted by the Group as the main theme

of “Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Noodles ( %t

—ZIEMBE 4 AM) ", whose leading position continued to be

enhanced as the Group crossed over with famous animated
characters in China such as those of “Mo Dao Zu Shi ( &
fHEAD) ” under Tencent Animation in an effort to connect with
the young generation. Through creative videos, animation
exhibitions and integrated marketing communications such
as co-branded packaging and e-commerce limited-edition
gift boxes, we attracted the attention of and resonated with
new consumers. In particular, the creative content launched
jointly by “Uni-President Lao Tan (#—3£18)” and “Chen
Qing Ling (BR15% ) ” has become a hot topic among the
public and the brand “Authentic Sourness and Crunchiness
(IERB %) ” has widely spread to the aficionados of the
original novels, animations and movies successfully. Multi-
level marketing was achieved and our brand vitality and
loyalty were further enhanced through youthful
communications.

The “Vine Pepper Beef Noodles (BEHIAFPI%E) ” under the brand
“Teng Jiao (BE45) ” brought electrifying sensation to the taste bud
of customers with its unique and fresh aroma and long-lasting pure
numbing taste. As for brand building, in order to develop a unique
image of “refreshing appearance and enthusiastic heart (9M& ;&
¥ DA ER) 7, the new packaging of “Teng Jiao Wu Yu (BE1E4
&) " conveyed the concept of “electrifying (8% ) ” to consumers
with its “50Hz Electrified Love (50Hz#) f# & 1
&))" message to deepen the brand’s association
with “electrifying (B8 % ) ". The refreshing
packaging together with differentiated shelf display
worked well to increase its appeal. The Group
targeted young consumers through in-depth
cooperation with youth romance dramas and
variety shows in the second half of 2019 with the
assistance of a strong combination of media
coverage.
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“Mix-up in Town with you (B # —#) " focused on the
development of the most representative foods in various regions
with the slogan of “Mixed like this, taste so good! (E/EH &
Z 1), enabling consumers who are local delicacy lovers to enjoy
the healthy taste of mixed noodles. The innovative cold noodles
developed and launched in April 2019 uses heat treated dough
and is served with unique and rich sauce. The “Sour and
Spicy Cold Noodles (B£# /R ) " and “Sesame Sauce
Cold Noodles (fii# =) " conquered consumers with
their distinctive aroma. We cooperated with “Cat’s Kitchen
(HE&E) ", afood specialized media channel, to enhance
the popularity of our cold noodles by producing and
broadcasting a short video online on our cold noodles and
through live broadcast by Internet Key Opinion Leaders
(“KOL"). In September 2019, the Group’s “Sesame Sauce
Cold Noodles (fif 3% ) ” under “Mix-up in Town with you ( &
PE—3) " received the “2019 Most Innovative Award in the
Instant Food Industry (20195 @ R ®ITEREFRIFERALE) " at
the “19th China Convenience Food Conference-cum-
Convenience Food Expo (T NMEFEFERMASESTER M
&) "organised by “the Chinese Institute of Food Science and
Technology (B R MBI HIITEE) . More featured products
will be developed under “Mix-up in Town with you ( &+ —3)
by keeping in line with higher consumer demand on specialty
food to promote the food culture of “mixed”.

In order to bring street delicacy of urban local flavour to the
consumers, the “Urban Bistro (£8&/)\88) " “sour and spicy pig
intestine noodles (B4 ERAEFZ4E) " offer an unforgettable taste with
a special combination of bean vermicelli and noodles served in a
sour and strong soup with pig intestine. The product has received
positive online feedbacks since its launch and achieved great
results in e-commerce sales due to its extensive widespread.

“Uni-President The King of Tomato (#—#12) " focused on the
development and innovation of tomato flavoured products.

The fresh taste of “Uni-President The King of Tomato (#t

— &) ” Tomato Egg Noodles (Z/MZE4)” comes

from the scrumptious egg drop soup well integrated with

the sour and nutritious Xinjiang tomatoes, which were
exposed under 16 hours of sunshine every day, by using

the unique seasoning method of “Uni-President The King

of Tomato (#—#i2 ) ”. The product adopted a theme of

“taste of sunshine ([ AJIKE) " and a cute brand

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I »]
Annual Report 2019 £ &



EEENWRE D

Management Discussion & Analysis

RE| AEE - BRERAEHE LIRS [F—
Sl mEER  2019F38 LMK EEE
FHREBER M OME - 2020F [ — i £
BAT—OME —OBX ] AEEYR AE
Bl 5 RS Y5 BB MR E M - B S
ERIELRMAE -

20194 5% A Woas #7548 B 31 B U 8UE
R EBEREAAIEI BX BIR]
FERMERBERBIZNRA1E (i e
MERNBRER BHELRER KA
ZEAN] MEREBEE TENITR] A
TR R - [BEAN] [TTRERE]
NETHER

HEFHEA

BENRA

B& it

[&x- 8

TCR ] E

I S

HERHEE

F e s

o

2019 THF NHEAN] FHARRY [1RKE ]
EELT - EEARBI0T AimE B BRHE
BENRmBE R -[FEA] [BKE|TE
[GFH)5RTE | B0 fm R A% 0 - B R [RRAR
R EAAE ] - [ 4b8 8 EK e 5 5B A |
MERAK EHEEARINEGE 5
MoK SREEAR ERRERLARER
TE WA RIMABME S QR BHE
BEIEEMNGERER-

12

Annual Report 2019 F#§

image of “Uni-President The King of Tomato (#—#i&) " for its
packaging. Since its launch in March 2019, it has gained a good
reputation among the young generation. In 2020, “Uni-President
The King of Tomato (£ —#12) ” will adopt the slogan of “A bite of
The King of Tomato, a bite of sunshine (—H#i £ —A¥) ” to
promote the active brand image across the country to enhance its
brand differentiation and visibility.

“Soup Daren (/%# A)” continued to achieve double-digit

growth in revenue in 2019. The cooperation with Liu Haoran ( |

£4R) , one of the new generation actors who is also featured by

“focus, sunshine and vitality (X B BxTR)”,

strengthened the emotional connection between the brand and

the new youth generation and therefore their recognition who
would then become loyal customers of
“Soup Daren (5% A)”. A brand core
spirit with “Genki ( JL& ) " was created.
The “Genki Music Festival (7T & & 4
g1)” of “Soup Daren (BEA)”
provided an immersive experience by
utilizing multiple scenarios and an
interactive style to strengthen the brand
image of “sunshine and vitality ( B3 «
BILR) " and enhance interaction with
new generation users.

In the second half of 2019, “Gourmet’s Selection (fREKEE) 7, the
upgraded series of “Soup Daren (JZiZ A ) ", was officially launched
with a price fixed at RMB10 to satisfy the high-end needs of its
target consumers. To extend the brand core value of “Soup Makes
Good Noodles (#f# 57 F )", “Soup Daren (JFiE A)”
“Gourmet’s Selection (f&EKEE) " rolled out two new flavours of
“Kumamoto Tonkotsu Ramen (RE AR KK &%) " and
“Hokkaido Seafood and Tonkotsu Ramen (4t /& 3& 215K /& & JX & 11
¥1) " respectively. Both flavours feature “mellow upgraded” broth
and a comprehensive improvement in soup,
noodles, ingredients and container. Rectangular
container box is used for the first time and
designed with a round rim to allow consumers to
have a wonderful experience in enjoying the

products.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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“Imperial Big Meal (j#/# A% ) ", a high-end brand of noodles of
the Group, regards inheriting Chinese cuisine as its mission. The
condiment bags sealed with fresh meat and original flavourings
truly contain “large piece of genuine beef (EH)H ASLA) ” as
contained in “Imperial Big Meal (jf@# X% )" provide comfort to
the industrious and uncompromising people. “Imperial Big Meal (j#
SE K ) " always connects people with positive attitude and great
emphasis on quality lifestyle, with the marketing slogan of “Hitting
the market with beef ( FHAI$T)L L) ”. Our current offerings of non-
spicy “Taiwan Braised Beef and Beef Tendon Noodles ( & =X 3 #5 3
A4 A%E) ”, sour and spicy “Royal Lao Tan Pickled Mustard Beef
Noodles (£ B4 %) " and numbing spicy “Sichuan-
style Spicy Beef Noodles (JI| =\ $5z8 i B4 W 4H) " provide a
comprehensive range of tastes for selection.

Other Food

Since the development of self-heating food, it has enabled
consumers to enjoy hot food anytime and anywhere as they wish.
The self-heating food of “Premium Meal (BF/]\t) * of the Group
has received many positive feedback since its launch due to the
utilization of Northeast China rice, instant cooking technology
of the self-heating series and exquisite cooking techniques,
which together contribute to the yummy taste of Chinese cuisine
“sizzling wok airflow ($85,) ”. In 2019, “on the go (HHFIZESN) "
was adopted as the main brand theme of “Premium Meal (5/)>
L) ” to accurately target the customer groups through context
marketing in channels such as major holidays, bus stops, scenic
areas and exhibitions as well as vertical cooperation with outdoor
activities, self-driving and travelling platforms. In the second half
of 2019, on top of the three classic flavours of “stewed beef
brisket with potato (£ Z 4 ) ", “Kung Pao Chicken (= &
#T)” and “simmered pork with small mushroom ( 7]\ & ## &
A1) ", the Group further developed three new flavours, namely the
fresh and tasty “Meatballs with Bamboo Shoots (= &f/gm=)"”
which is suitable for people preferring a mild flavour, “Sliced Beef
in Hot Chili Oil (ZKE4H) " with regional features suitable for
people enjoying a piquant taste, and the classic Cantonese dish of
“Cantonese Pot Rice with Sausage (EEKZFER) ”. Al these
six flavours contain the core Chinese cuisine ingredients of “pork”,
“chicken meat” and “beef” and cover all levels of spiciness ranging
from very spicy to non-spicy, which together with the integration
with regional features, family and classic dishes, providing more
extensive offerings to consumers for selection. In the end of 2019,
through engagement of Xiao Zhan ( § &) , an artist, as the brand
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spokesperson, the brand awareness was quickly increased. The
Group directed the attention of consumers back to the original
intention of “Premium Meal (Fi/J\4t) " by leveraging the influence
of Xiao Zhan ( ¥ 8%) who also shared the same attributes of
“warmth and care (REE - B12) ", and spread the message of
“Premium Meal, Special Treat (4f 4FIZ8R - F/)\kt) ” to expand the
dining occasions and further enhance the brand effect.

“Q-Fresh (Q/)N@) " continued to target at the
market of frozen fresh noodles to align with
the middle-class families’ pursuit of a lifestyle
characterized by freshness and health. The
product contained a tasty and mellow broth
bags to allow consumers to easily cook a bowl
of delicious noodles at home, bringing a more
convenient new choice for the home setting.

In 2020, while both the internal and external uncertainties faced
by the PRC economy are expected to increase, the food industry
might also experience greater changes. More diversified businesses
will emerge as healthy consumption and family consumption have
gained popularity among consumers and the e-commerce channel
has become an important catalyst for growth. With a focus on
brand value, the Group will continue to optimize its product mix
and introduce differentiated and innovative products to satisfy
consumers’ need as food is the paramount necessity of people.
Also, the Group will develop different products that are suitable to be
served in various daily occasions for enjoyment by consumers, thus
creating a new landscape for the food business.

Beverages Business

Freshness management remained the emphasis of the Group’
s beverages business. In 2019, amidst the chaotic movement in
market prices, the Group still upheld value marketing to stabilize
channel price and was dedicated to value building in order to build
up brand assets. The annual revenue of our beverages business
amounted to RMB12,730.5 million, representing a year-on-year
growth of 0.9% in 2019. The business performance of our major
beverages is as follows:

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Tea Drinks

Revenue of tea drinks in 2019 amounted to RMB5,616.3 million.
The classic brands of “Uni lce Tea (#i—/K4LZ%) " and “Uni Green
Tea (i —#72%) "

Xiaoming (/N F1£2) " performed relatively weak in terms of sales.

registered stable performance while “Classmate

Readjustment of the brand positioning has been underway. Due to
health awareness and consumption upgrade, “Chai Li Won (ZX2& ) ”
was launched to satisfy demand of the high-end market together with
the refrigerated tea product of “Refreshing Tea (% - B f) ™.

“Uni Ice Tea (48 —K4LZL) 7 insisted in the brand spirit
of “Stay Young for Ever or Fight for it (& &EHR
TR EE) .
game among young consumers, as a media, the Group
cooperated with KPL (King Pro League) to promote the
brand proposition of “youth, passion and unlimitedness

HE A EHRBR) ", During the spring competition,
we incorporated the images of game characters into the
packaging and launched the “My Hero Bottles ( AN #p 5
#ER) 7, and carried out the annual marketing project of
“King Battle-An Honorable Fight ( £ & battle55 2 H% ) ”
to attract the attention of consumers with game tools

By leveraging on eSports, the popular

and stylish gifts. We collaborated with the game Honor

of Kings to hold an important social event of “Five-Five
Team-up Festival (AR REF) " for players. The project of “Uni
Ice Tea fly with you (£t — /KA B#EFSIRAR) " was held on 5
May to enable in-depth communications between the e-commerce
platform and fans. We conducted promotion by presenting the
2019 KPL spring finals and organized a feast for eSports fans. In
the second half of 2019, the Group introduced the “Non-yielding
Bottle (AR X F3) ” on which the game languages were printed
on the bottles to convey the brand attitude of “young, passionate
and non-yielding (B &Z M TR % ) ". During the 2019 KPL
autumn competition, various sessions of “Trendy Parties (&l
BE\) " were organized across the country and more enthusiasts
were attracted through live streaming on online platforms, horizontal
cooperation and trendy and creative competitions. With a deep
focus on eSports culture, “Uni lce Tea (45— /KALZE) " strived
to narrow the distance with eSports enthusiasts and attract
new consumers through product marketing, game exposure,
cooperation in competitions and other marketing activities in order
to improve brand favorability and build up brand assets.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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“Uni Green Tea (£ —#4%2%) ” is made of freshly picked tea leaves,
the essence of which is full of tea polyphenols and gives a natural
good taste. “Experience the Nature, Implementation of Green
Actions (T B - 4R 1T8)) " continued to be
adopted as the annual theme in 2019, under which
in-depth promotion was conducted by selecting the
media platforms teenagers liked. The Group carried out
content marketing through producing a series of videos
and long comic stories featuring “Liu Kanshan (2|&
IL) ", the mascot of Zhihu website, and launched the
“Uni Green Tea Zhihu Bottle (i — 4k ZX&1FH) " on
which the accumulated content on Zhihu website was
applied. We also invited “Liu Kanshan (ZI& L) ” to
participate in the marketing activities in order to realize
an integration of online and offline marketing and
increase the brand awareness of “Uni Green Tea ( £t —
4:%%) 7. In May 2019, the Group conducted a cross-
industry cooperation with Xiaomi’'s green travel
ecological chain. The application of Xiaomi’s mi band was utilized
to count steps and check in for green activities, therefore
consumers were encouraged to travel in a green and healthy way
and further emphasizing the concept of green and healthy. City
orienteering competitions were held in key cities, in which we
communicated with new generation consumers in a fun way
through horizontal cooperation and live streaming on online
platforms. In July 2019, the Group organized the “Challenge of
Green Actions by Tens of Millions of People ( T & A4k & 1781 Ak
&) ” to initiate a green travel challenge on Weibo with young idols
as our brand ambassadors. More consumers were called on to
embark on a green travel by bringing with them “Uni Green Tea ( #t
—#k %) 7 and shooting creative videos, promoting our proposition
of green and healthy “Uni Green Tea (4 —4%2%) 7.

In 2019, “Classmate Xiaoming (/N Z [R&) " cooperated with the
British Museum to create the “Egyptian Theme (¥ K £ %) ” and
“Greek Theme (FIEERE) " bottles for developing our personalised
brand value. Meanwhile, the bottle packaging was matched with
the “Play Ancient Civilisation, Scan QR Code for Gift (FT# & X B3
H EB£E) " to communicate with young consumers.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Based on the healthy consumption concept of “minus (JEJ%) ”
and the product strength of “No Additives (7% 0) 7, “Chai Li
Won (ZXZE T )" utilized the extraction process under high and
low temperature to maximize the preservation of tea essence.
Taiwan Dong Ding Oolong Tea with a rich aroma and long-lasting
tea taste is chosen to produce the “Chai Li Won Sugar-Free
Taiwanese Oolong Tea (R EFEmIEAXSBES) ", while early
spring green tea is used to produce the “Chai Li Won Sugar-Free
Japanese Green Tea (RXE T EERA 4L )", the fragrance of
which is enhanced and locked by using the Japanese sencha
technique. The products bring a wonderful taste and a pleasant
feel to consumers with their simple and high quality packaging.
For marketing, the Group created the word-of-mouth effect
through recommendation and assessment by Internet KOLs to
spread the product appeal of “no additives and a sweet taste
came after ("N B2AEH ) ”. Fang Wenshan, a well-known
lyric writer for Chinese songs, wrote a poem for “Chai Li Won
(XZETF)” that “A sweet taste came after in the throat, like
lingering a few days in the top of the room, Inhabit at the freezing
Mountaintop as its own Kingdom, Truly the King of the tea ( ¥z s
EH —mEHER BERIBEALIL ZXF ), which attracted
high-end consumers through a sentimental way. Since the launch
of the two new flavours of “Chai Li Won (ZXZE X ) " in April 2019,
they have been highly acclaimed and recognized by consumers
after progressive promotion in key cities.

The refrigerated tea product of “Refreshing Tea (2% - B ) ” adopts
the freeze-extraction technique. The fresh and natural taste of tea
leaves is fully preserved as tea leaf harvesting and tea production
are completed within 24 hours and the tea is then stored at —18°c.
In 2019, the Group conveyed the brand concept of “fresh” through
the “Attitude Cups (¥TE£REZ#F) " and emphasized on the brand
feature of “21 days” freshness. At the same time,
based on the consumers’ attention to the daily fortune
topics, we cooperated with Wangyi News to launch
the “Fortune Cups (¥TE£iEZ4R) 7 in order to deeply
communicate with consumers. In addition, in order to
bring consumers a taste of “21 days” of freshness, we
invited internet food experts to take part in the product
evaluation activity of “freshness assessment ( 7 &£ 8l
FF4T4) " in order to create the word-of-mouth effect
and further enhance brand exposure and awareness.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2020, with the changes in consumption concepts, consumption
habits and awareness, the Group will keep up with the times and
explore new opportunities under new models for its tea drinks
business. Online consumption on the internet and household
consumption will be strengthened and sales channels and product
mix will be reasonably adjusted to enhance the development of our
e-commerce channel and satisfy consumption needs in various
scenarios. At the same time, we will consider the changes in
consumer sentiment caused by current public opinions to adjust
our brand promotion and improve or brand image.

The “Uni Ice Tea (#t —/KALZ)” will continue to nurture new
generations. We have enhanced our cooperation with the game
industry by strengthening the cooperation with King Pro League
to specifically target games, expand our operations in otaku
economy and create more drinking occasions. Capitalizing on
the consumption awareness, “Uni Green Tea (£ —#4%%%)”
will strengthen its feature of green health. The brand adopts
“Experience the Nature, Implementation of Green Actions (3}
MER EKEITE)” as its annual theme to reach new
consumers in a youthful way. “Classmate Xiaoming (/NE R &) ”
will re-position itself in 2020 with package upgrade and brand
image renewal. Brand spokesperson has been engaged as part of
the promotion plan to achieve the goal of rapid expansion of the
consumption age groups, and therefore achieving success in both
reputation and sale volume. “Chai Li Won (ZXZ= T ) ” will continue
to express the brand appeal of “no additives and a sweet taste
came after (NN BAARHE ) ” and targets commuters; while
“Refreshing Tea (4% - B# &£ ) ” will continue to focus on key cities and
its development in the chilled market.

Juice

In 2019, for the juice business, the Group continued to adhere to
the business strategy of value marketing, focus on brand building
and enhance product strength, enter consumers’ life with products
of different temperatures and drinking occasions. The Group
adopted the communication and interaction methods favoured by
the new generation consumers to attract and accumulate a pool
of new generation consumers. The juice business of the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB1,746.6 million in 2019, representing
an increase of 1.3% as compared with that of the corresponding
period last year.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Wang Yuan (EJ&), a popular idol favoured by teenagers, was
engaged as the brand spokesperson of “Uni Orangeate ( £t — B &
%)” in 2019, whose energetic and positive image helped to
convey the product’s merits of rich vitamin C and containing
equivalent to 3.5 oranges in terms of dietary fiber. Through buzz
marketing, the Group effectively associated the image of Wang
Yuan ( £J&) with “Uni Orangeate (# — 8% % )" brand,
contributing to the new height of “Uni Orangeate (% —&f 5% ) ”.
We promoted the brand value of “Uni Orangeate (£t — &% %) ”,
which was “More Vitamin C, More Fiber, More Beauty ( % C% # %
SZ5%) ", through organising the “Uni Orangeate
Pretty Life Fan Festival — Wang Yuan Fan
Meeting (4t — 815 2515 2 o4 E — TIRH
#4 RB®<)” and being the title sponsor of
2019 Wang Yuan Concert with “Uni More
Orangeate (i —#1& %) ".
generation consumers took part in the above

Many new

activities, which realized a connection between
“Uni Orangeate (#t —# &%) ” and the young
consumers and thus an expansion in sales.

In 2019, as the connection between “Haizhiyan (/82 =)~ and
“the sea” was consistently enhanced, the jogging competition
themed by “Take a Refreshing Walk to the Sea (/B E £ K
/) " was held in a greater scale. The Group developed the sports
scenario to foster the awareness of salt supplement after sweating
and spread the refreshing brand image.

The core appeal of “Uni Crystal Sugar Pear Drink (& —/kiEE
F1) 7 is “Pear Juice Moistures your Mouth and Heart ( E & & T
JE) 7. In 2019, the Group continued to create and strengthen
the public awareness of “Moist (JE) . Based on the music
attribute of the brand, the “Moisten the Voice, Sing for the
Young (B E%E 1B 5 %&)" themed event was held in
campuses to connect the young people in high schools with
music, shape the brand’s new vitality and develop a deep
rapport with those new generation consumers.
We leveraged a 245ml small can to expand the
product into scenario of hot drinks for winter. A
themed event of “Moisten the Heart with Warmth
and Cuteness (B M BE# - HMROH) " was
conducted through cooperation with LINE
FRIENDS, an internationally renowned cartoon
brand to fortify the product concept of “Moist

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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(&) " and brand communication. The lovely characters of LINE
FRIENDS, which perfectly matched with the brand personality,
sent warmth to people and were favoured by young consumers.

“Uni Tomato Juice (£ —&F fivt) " is made of high quality
tomatoes planted in the Xinjiang base with exposure to extreme
day-to-night temperature fluctuations and 16 hours of sunshine.
With a brand proposition of “Double Vitality & Health (& 71 &2 f
BIfE) ", the Group promoted the efficacies of lycopene, which are
anti-oxidant, anti-aging and reducing prostate lesion, to consumer
groups targeted through e-commerce and TV shopping platforms
in order to cultivate target consumers’ knowledge and their habit
of drinking lycopene.

A new concept of vitamin element was introduced to the fruit
soda “Fighting (¥T5) " in 2019, being one can of “Fighting (T
&) " is able to satisfy the daily need of vitamin C. Convenience
store chains, schools and catering were the channels that we
focused on to cultivate consumers’ dining culture and we co-
operated with “Zhou Hei Ya ([EZ8§) ", a famous snacks brand,
to strength its association with gourmet.

The chilled fruit drink “Fruit Trio (ZRZE2) ” features a combination
of juice, pulp and fibre jelly (27 27 -4 X&) . The fresh fruit
juice, soft pulp and chewy fibre jelly are mixed together to bring a
triple taste to consumers. The music attributes and sensibilities of
the brand continued to be strengthened in 2019 through further
cooperation with the headphone brand FIIL (22 E ) designed by
a famous musician, Wang Feng (7Z1&) . Taking advantage of the
2019 Wang Feng National Tour Concerts, the Group launched the
co-branded limited edition headphones to strengthen the music
attributes and sensibilities of the brand.

The 100% chilled fruit and vegetable juice, “Vitality Awakening
(JTRBEE)”, with the appeal of “delicious”, “healthy” and
“fresh”, aims to offer an integrated and delicious solution for
the convenience of contemporary urban people to supplement
nutrition of fruits and vegetables. In 2019, the Group extended
the brand into the room-temperature segment to expand the
brand coverage by launching the room-temperature 100%
orange juice that targets the healthy consumer group which
favoured 100%, deliciousness and nutrition intake. “Vitality

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Awakening ( JLREHE) " satisfies consumers’ need for healthy
products that are served in different temperatures and tastes
by offering the product in both chilled and room-temperature.
The themed event “Awakening the Vitality (BE/REITR)”
was organized in 2019 together with healthy light sports
platforms to continuously communicate with consumers with
the starting point of healthy needs.

In response to the widespread of COVID-19 in 2020, in respect
of the juice business, the Group has promoted the merits of
healthy juice products to consumers, concentrated resources and
continuously interacted with consumers online with regard to the
topics including protection, work and life during the epidemic. “Uni
Orangeate (4 — &1 %) ” reminded consumers to supplement
vitamin C while “Haizhiyan (/82 % ) ” promoted workouts at home
to enhance immunity. At the same time, more resources have been
put into online platforms to leverage e-commerce, community
group buying and other channels to provide consumers with a
combination of healthy and diversified juice products.

General Beverages Business
Milk Tea

In 2019, the revenue of milk tea business of the Group increased by
13.1% as compared with that of the corresponding period last year,
which marked a double-digit growth for three consecutive years. The
freshness management over “Uni Assam Milk Tea ( #i—BiiEEE4E) »
was continuously improved to offer a much better product experience
to consumers. Continuous innovation and upgrade were conducted to
provide a wide range of drinking options for different age groups and
scenarios in order to enhance consumer satisfaction.

As a leader in the milk tea category, “Uni Assam Milk Tea ( & —Bi iz
28 ) " has always been favoured by consumers. Based on the brand
core value of “Smooth and Good Mood ( JIB}& 47 1»
15) " brought by a perfect balance between milk
and tea, brand themed events under “Exploration
of Good Mood (HRERIFL:E) ” were conducted. In
cooperation with Discovery Channel, the first
documentary and short video titled “Exploration of
Good Mood (FRZE4F0ME) ” were produced. Also,
brand spokesperson Guo Caijie (X 2)
introduced the brand value of “Balance Brings
Good Mood (#5547 0:E ) " in advertisement

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2»]
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and video blogs. The Group jointly worked with the media to recruit
“Good Mood Explorers (37 03 EHRZEE ) ", who would embark on the
“Exploration of Good Mood ( #RZ 45L& ) 7 trip with Guo Caijie ( #83K
) , in order to strengthen brand favorability and loyalty. An in-depth
cooperation was conducted with a famous website to hold an
afternoon tea session with a theme of “Uni Assam, Cheers for Good
Mood (#t— B EEH - BT OE%2HF) 7, which was loved by young
people due to the dedicated webpage activities. The brand awareness
and favorability of “Uni Assam Milk Tea (£t — U I2%) " were
enhanced in more areas and among young people.

In 2020, “Uni Assam Milk Tea (%t —FiBE#12%) " will continue to
protect the stability of market order and facilitate the healthy and stable
development of the brand. With a change in the mode of consumption,
the Group will work together with e-commerce online shopping platforms
to plan for online sales activities. To correspond with the bulk purchase
habit in on online shopping, we have developed new packages containing
3 bottles or 4 bottles of “Uni Assam Mik Tea (&5 —PFifEREIZE) ” of
different flavours to meet different drinking needs. The brand promotes
rejuvenating vitality and facilitates cross-industry fun practices by
cooperating with popular authorized images among young people.

With continued operations in the hot drinks

season in 2019, “Assam Small Milk Tea (i &

M/NEE) 7, introduced iSharing of Taiwan

and the popular “Sharing Popo (5 # %K

&) " in Taiwan to carry out promotion in a

more warm-hearted and creative way and

attract consumers’ attention by implementing

a differentiated marketing model. In 2020, the

product strength of “Assam Small Milk Tea ( F iz 4

/NS ” will continue to be upgraded with a focus on key cities and

the hot drinks market in order to build up a brand image associated
with warm winter.

Low-temperature sterilization technology and freshly extracted tea
essence are used to produce the chilled “Uni Assam Milk Tea ( &%
—PBEMRIZE) . Being stored between 2T ~8C for 21 days, the
taste of the milk tea is further enhanced. The product is sold and
promoted in in key cities to, coupled with the packages combined
with fresh food available at convenience stores, allow consumers to
enjoy a “Smooth and Good Mood (JIE/E 1 15) 7.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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“Uni Milk Tea (#— 325 ) ” focuses on student groups to cultivate
the habit of milk tea consumption. It stresses the fragrance of
malt to highlight the brand proposition of “Mouthful of Malt, it is so
smooth (FZEIR » g2 AFEENIE) . In 2019, a horoscope packaging
was launched under the “Uni Milk Tea x Uncle Tong Dao ( #— %%
x BB AH) " cooperation in order to communicate with students
and nurture milk tea consumers.

Aqua More

The core brand proposition of “Interest Your Boringness (i {R
B2 BK) " of “Aqua More (7K %) "continued in 2019. With the
light flavour of lactobacillus as the product feature, Aqua More
introduced fun to drinking water. In collaboration with the film
“Pokémon Detective Pikachu”, the “Interesting but No Boring (&
#-RZB) " brand image was created for “Aqua More (7K
%) ” with the adorable and interesting image of Pikachu. Adhering
to the parent-child brand proposition, the Group held various
parent-child activities, such as “parent-child painting (3 F 4
£) 7, “water park (7K _E£4E ) ” and “fun school term (i B £
Z)”, to communicate and interact with consumers in a fun way
and strengthen the brand image. In terms of channel, the operation
focus was placed on core cities to develop new growth points with
our steady expansion efforts.

Others
Coffee

In respect of “A-Ha ( #H¥% ) ” Coffee, the Group exerted main efforts
on “A-Ha Iced Coffee (FERKBIBE) " in 2019, and promoted
the launch of the new packaging and new flavour of “A-Ha Italian
Mellow (#M B EEZ ) ” series in order to optimize the product
mix. The 280ml volume of “A-Ha Italian Mellow ( 7 i & =X B
&) " targets consumers who pursue a strong coffee flavour and
consumers of “A-Ha Iced Coffee ( FEM /KM BE) 7.

“Chat Happily (aifR#IX) ” remained the communication axis of “A-Ha
(FEMS) " in 2019. Integrated marketing communication of “Talk More if
Talkative (2 BI{/RFL % 542 ) " was carried out through metropolitan idol
dramas and Bilibili (the “B Platform”), a popular cultural community and
video platform among the young generation. “A-Ha Chief Chat Officer
(BB EFIKRE)” was talormade for “A-Ha (¥R ) ” Coffee on
the B Platform to build up the brand recognition of “A-Ha (#M) ” in
various selected groups on the B Platform.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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With the popularization of coffee culture, in order to reach to the
upgraded market, the Group launched the “La Rive Gauche de la
Seine (7 =WIBEEE) ” in May 2019 to enter into the high-end
chilled beverages sector. “La Rive Gauche de la Seine ( 7 7= Ui Bk
fE)” was inspired from the aspiration of the left bank of Seine
River in France which is known as a
melting pot of cultures. With the “French
Romance [VAZRE ] spirit of “romance
is life”, it targets young metropolitans aged
between 18 to 35 and promoted romance
is not exclusively limited to love, but also a
life attitude. Two flavours of “La Rive
Gauche de la Seine (ZZ =WIBEEE) " were
launched, namely the coffee-rich “Latte”
and milky “Café au Lait”, each containing
over 50% of fresh milk and 100% Arabic
coffee and medium dark roasting and high pressure extraction are
utilised to meet the expectation of consumers for high-end
products.

In 2020, the Group will continue to regard “A-Ha Iced Coffee ( ¥
MR 7KINEE) ” as the focus of coffee business so as to develop a
coffee city and communicate accurately with consumers. We will
selectively expand the sales area of “La Rive Gauche de la Seine
(= MBESE ) ” to realize a stable development in the chilled coffee
market.

Bottled Water

The Group continued to focus on the operations of high quality
natural mineral water brand “ALKAQUA (%) " which is available
in various channels with a stable selling price of RMB4. The brand
proposition of “Colorful and outstanding natural mineral water ( —
R e R ARERIK) " was further promoted based on its enticing
appearance and excellent content, so as to meet the demand of
“new generation” and “new middle-class” consumer groups for
high quality drinking water.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2019, the Group newly launched the upgraded “colorful
totem edition (- EIBER) " and put the seven colors named
by PANTONE, a global color expert, as totem, to reinforce
the brand identity. At the same time, the Group launched the
limited version “Live Coral Orange Version (GEHI#i4EiR) 7 as
the annual representative color under the official authorisation
of PANTONE, which was pursued by the extensive young and
fashionable consumer groups. A crossover version was launched
in cooperation with “Pancoat (3 %) ”, a fashion clothing brand,
the adorable animal design of which was favoured by young
consumers. “ALKAQUA brand event day (= mE/EEH) ” was
held to emphasize the outstanding image through the interaction
between the brand spokesperson Wang Kai ( £&l) and brand
fans.

In terms of the contents of “ALKAQUA (& &
put to convey the unique product feature of “contents of H2SiOs
exceeding 50mg/L ({RE & 2 XK 50 mg/L)” and developed a
Zhihu corporate account of “ALKAQUA (E ) " to disseminate

”, great effort was

water information and the message of healthy drinking to health-
conscious consumers. The video of “Praise Every Generation
with Love (FBE#E#E & — M) " focusing on brand attitude was
created to convey the positive brand spirit of “Praise with Love

(REFBE) "

In 2020, the Group will continue to concentrate on the operations
of “ALKAQUA (& #5) ”. With a focus on the integrated marketing
communication of “contents of H2SiOs exceeding 50mg/L ({R%
Bt 5 & K 50 mg/L)”, the interactive experience in respect of the
“HSiOs( R ) ” efficacy will be enhanced to continuously nurture
the “new generation” and “new middle class” consumer groups.
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Soy Milk

The Group continued to upgrade the brand image of its botanical
protein “Honest Bean (& E ) ” soy milk in response to consumers’
pursuit of healthy and nutritious life, and adhered to the brand
concept of “nutrition with light burden (& &88 & #Z) ”. The soybeans
of “Honest Bean (HET)”

Mountain hinterland with good soil, climate and water

are 100% grown in the Changbai

quality, and ceramic fine grinding is used to fully
extract nutrients in the soybeans to create a more
natural, smooth and fragrant flavour.

In terms of marketing communication, the brand
image was interpreted based on the quality of raw
materials. The “Honest Bean (FiE S )" is “good

soy milk from good soil and with good raw materials

(WEMHTREEEAOTZY)”. A stop-motion
animation was created for “Honest Bean (& 2 ) " to develop a
fantasy adult fairy tale world, enabling consumers to directly feel the
core brand values of “originates from the black land of Changbai
Mountain R B &AL E i) ” and “natural and good beans
grown in 120 days (120KZ2E M B ARIFE) ". At the same time,
we conducted integrated promotion by way of the internet and
immersive experience to present the product value and ingenuity
of “good beans, good mik CRBFZ - BAFH) " and develop
consumption occasions so as to penetrate into the markets of
breakfast drinks and gifts.

Bottle Can Drinks

The Group launched three bottle can drinks in January
2019 to take a pre-emptive move to develop the high-
end beverages market. Our “Manya (4 #)” cold
dripped and extracted coffee targets white-collar
businessmen by creating for them a drinking scenario
as if they are at a boutique café anytime and anywhere
with the differentiated appeal of “coffee with a fruit-
like fragrance”. Our “Chuan Qi ({&3) " tea, for which
famous national-level tea is selected and the modern
and innovative technique of “cold extraction” is used
to extract the mellow aroma of Melan (Z® ), is
acclaimed as “drinkable perfume (BEI8RIZEK) ”. For
our “allégre” milk tea, limited quantities of black tea of
Quinta de San Pedro Alejandrino with rosy aroma is selected and
mixed with premium imported milk, delivering a silky and pure

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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taste. The warm and healing personality of the brand is based
on the brand spirt of “Encounter allégre, Encounter love (i& &,
allegre - BRE) ",

The “Keep Sweet (1EZE )" “Mango & Pomelo Sweet Soup
(B EE)”

technology based on a classic Hong Kong dessert. Each carefully

is a ready-to-drink dessert made through scientific

selected fruit brings consumers a readily available taste of
happiness anytime and anywhere.

Amazake

Amazake was originated in Japan with a history of over 1,000
years. It is a kind of low-alcohol drink made from sake lees. The
“Qian Bai Du Amazake (TH#EE HIH) " newly launched by the
Group in January 2020 uses distillers grains of zake imported from
Japan and high quality. Double fermentation, together with the
traditional Japanese craftsmanship, was adopted to produce a
strong and sweet natural flavour enriched with light alcohol taste
(<0.5% alcohol concentration). The “Qian Bai Du Amazake ( T 1%
EHB)”

can be served cold or hot.

is an amazake drink full of amino acids and glucose that

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

From the perspective of consumers, the Group’s Research and
Development (“R&D”) Centre continued to integrate innovative
resources in multiple directions, adhere to innovation of value
and product categories, establish core technologies and
upgrade existing products. As of December 2019, our R&D
Centre had 81 authorized patents and 49 patents were in
application. We will continue to create barrier for our superior
technologies.

As for food, the Group’s R&D efforts in 2019 continued to focus
on developing Chinese cuisine, sterilization, preservation and
self-heating technologies as well as new self-heating containers.

The product line of “Premium Meal (F3/)\/t) " was expanded.
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Three new flavours were launched, namely “Sliced Beef in Hot
Chili Oil (/KZ4A) ", “Cantonese Pot Rice with Sausage (&=
FEIR B F8R) " and “Meatballs with Bamboo Shoots ( = & 4& 0
% )", which perfectly complemented the original three flavours of
“Premium Meal (F/)ME) " to satisfy the multiple needs of different
customers. “Soup Daren (j5# A)” continued to be upgraded
and “Soup Daren (J53E A ) " “Gourmet’s Selection (1REKEE) " was
launched in 2019 to offer an original taste available in Japanese
ramen restaurants with its low concentration mellow bone broth,
large pieces of roasted pork and rich toppings. The exquisite cubic
packaging and special curved rim design signify the upgrade and
innovation of the “Soup Daren (J5# A)” brand. In 2019, R&D
continued to vitalize the innovation of the respective product line
of the Company’s existing brands. Optimization of flavours and
continuous attempts at technological innovation improved
the performance of existing brands and stabilized
development. “Uni-President The King of Tomato (#t
—#E)” “Tomato Egg Noodles (BHZEERE) " were
successfully launched in which fresh Xinjiang tomato
sauce and matured tomatoes granules are used to produce
big bags of tomato soup. The freshness and
sweet and sour flavour of tomatoes are
perfectly preserved, which together
with the industry-first microwave-
dried onion and egg pieces
provide a homemade taste to

consumers.

In order to meet consumers’ demand for different types of noodles,
“Sour and Spicy Cold Noodles (B2 #k 77 ) ” and “Sesame Sauce
Cold Noodles (i # %57 ) ” were successfully launched under
“Mix-up in Town with you (B —#) ". Low-temperature non-
frying extrusion production technology is adopted to produce
chewy and smooth noodles that are ready-to-eat in 4 minutes. The
“Sour and Spicy Cold Noodles (E&#R/REZ ) " are made by three-
stage hot oil production technology. Together with the chili oil and
vinegar, a signature sour and spicy flavour with the nice colour and
aroma of chili is presented. The “Sesame Sauce Cold Noodles ( Jif
#R) ”, featuring an optimal taste of complex sesame paste
fragrance, are made of carefully selected aromatic and smooth
sesame paste and a perfect balance of ingredients including
vinegar, chili oil and vine pepper oil.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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As for drink, with the rising health awareness of consumers, the
market demand for sugar-free products has been increasing. In
2019, Uni-President conducted a comprehensive upgrade of “Chai
Li Won (ZXZEF) ". Two sugar-free tea flavours of “Japanese green
tea” and “Taiwanese oolong tea” were launched to provide high
quality tea featuring “no additives and a sweet taste came after
(I B2REIH) ”. Given the carefully selected tea leaves and
multiple core technologies including the extraction process under
high and low temperature, the tea fragrance is fully released while
freshness and sweetness are preserved to create a multi-level
aroma, providing consumers with an enjoyment of “sweet taste
came after” as always and spiritual pleasure.

Core technologies were developed to ensure the Group’s
competitive advantages. In 2019, through internal and external
synergies and innovation as well as independent and proprietary
innovation, we continued to exert greater effort in over ten core
technology projects to create technological barriers. For instance,
the original soup processing technology was applied to “Soup
Daren (J5# A ) ” “Gourmet’s Selection (11K %8 ) ”; the multi-stage
sterilization technology was applied to condiment bags of “Premium
Meal (F/)N(E) 7; the fast rice cooking technology was applied to
the rice of “Premium Meal (F/J\4f) " to provide pre-cooked rice;
tea roasting and aroma preservation technique was applied to the
two types of sugar-free tea of “Chai Li Won (32 E) "

In 2020, the Group’s R&D will be dedicated to continuous
innovation, product optimization and upgrade and development of
core technologies to ensure that consumers are comfortable and
happy to enjoy our products.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FOOD SAFETY

We uphold the philosophy of “Three Goods and One Fairness:
Good Quality, Good Credit, Good Service and Fair Price ( =#F
—RBE:- @B ERT RET B RE)” and offer safe,
healthy and delicious food to consumers. To enhance the level
of food safety management system, we have set up Food Safety
Committee and Food Safety Centre to cultivate food safety culture
and implement food safety assurance system, formulate food safety
policy, improve assessment, alert and monitoring of food safety
risks for guaranteeing food safety, undertake quality assurance
system management of the Group, formulate and implement policy
of product quality for guaranteeing product quality.

With the mission of “be comfortable and happy to eat (I8 % /D)~
12758/ ) ”, a consensus is reached that food safety is the Group’s
commitment to customers and the brands as well as the foundation
of the Company’s sustainable development. We will continue to
promote the development of a food safety culture and a working
environment that encourages food safety practices and food safety
culture where all employees could participate in prevention and
improvement works in respect of food safety so that our products
could meet the requirements of laws and regulations and earn the
recognition of consumers.

We continue to improve regulatory mechanism of supply chain of
raw materials and focus on strengthening food safety management
of the source of supply chain and monitoring of food products safety.
We have implemented assessment of food safety qualifications of
suppliers and field inspection of food safety of suppliers, established
monitoring mechanism of food safety projects of raw materials to
ensure the implementation of monitoring of food quality and safety
starting from the source of supply chain and established mechanism
of qualification review of production plants and field assessment.
Apart from conducting strict inspection on food products according
to the relevant laws and regulations prior to their delivery, all-rounded
food safety monitoring will also be carried out to ensure safety and
taste of our products.

We actively promote source management of suppliers. In addition
to provision of training to our suppliers, we have introduced third
party professional agencies to evaluate our suppliers, and assist
them to establish their own scientific and effective food safety and

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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quality management system. We have fully introduced Food Safety
Protection Program covering the production and sale process
starting from product design to ensure consumers are rest assured.

We pay close attention to various food safety incidents of other
food manufacturers, timely carry out risks assessment, inspect
raw materials and food products similar to the ones used in
those incidents, improve food safety management system to
guarantee food safety, actively participate in the formulation and
revision of relevant national standards, compile and promulgate
food regulations and domestic and foreign food safety information
to enhance food safety awareness of the Group, promote full
implementation of food regulations and safety standards to
safeguard consumers’ interests.

Our Food Safety Centre passed the annual China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS
accreditation) since 2005 and 172 projects of the Group had been
approved thus far. Meanwhile, with the co-operation of laboratories
of each of our subsidiaries and external detection and testing
institutions, the needs for detection and testing key food safety items
are met, providing us with professional and authoritative detection
and testing service and technical support to guarantee food safety.
With our innovation in laboratory detection and testing system, three
technical achievements were awarded with national patents.

As of 2019, 27 subsidiaries of the Group have passed the
ISO9001 International Standard Quality Management System
Certification, and 25 subsidiaries have been accredited with the
ISO22000 International standard Food Safety Management System
Certification. These certifications and awards recognised our ongoing
improvement of food safety and quality assurance system and our
capability of safeguarding food safety as well as our dedication to
providing consumers with delicious, healthy and safe food.

PRODUCTION STRATEGIES

The Group spared no effort in our operation, research and
development, innovation, brand building and sales expansion,
aiming to meet customer needs, develop and strengthen the
corporation constantly and maximise the revenue. In order to
focus the use of resources, maximize the benefits, the Group did
not solely rely on its own production resources. It also outsourced
its production to other professional beverages manufacturers
(including external independent third parties and related party

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 8»]
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companies). A strategic alliance was formed under such long-term
co-operation with the external manufacturers, enabling the Group
to outsource production mode to adjust production capacity in
addition to the basic production capacity, providing the Group with
production flexibility. Thus, the Group was able to fully utilise its
resources on core operation and optimise its efficiency.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB22,019.7 million, representing an
increase of 1.1% from RMB21,772.2 million for 2018. Revenue
from the instant noodles business increased by 0.9%, and
revenue from the beverages business increased by 0.9%, standing
at RMB8,500.7 million and RMB12,730.5 million respectively,
accounting for 38.6% and 57.8% respectively of the Group’s total
revenue. During the Year, gross profit of the Group increased by
8.6% from RMB7,288.6 million for the corresponding period last
year to RMB7,918.3 million, while the gross profit margin increased
by 2.5 percentage points from 33.5% for the corresponding
period last year to 36.0%, which was mainly due to the Group’s
continuous optimisation of its product mix, decreasing cost of raw
materials and a series of reductions in taxes and administrative fees
by the PRC government.

During the Year, the selling and marketing expenses increased
to RMB5,367.6 million (2018: RMB5,097.7 million). During the
Year, administrative expenses amounted to RMB1,007.2 million
(2018: RMB1,114.5 million). The increase in selling and marketing
expenses was due to the Group’s increased investments in
channels and brand marketing and enhanced focus on the
promotion of newly launched products, whereas the decrease in
administrative expenses was due to the value-added tax reduction
policy implemented by the PRC government, which led to the
reduction of the corresponding surtax.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Operating profit was RMB1,806.3 million for the Year, increasing
by 35.6% from the operating profit of RMB1,331.9 million for
2018, mainly benefited by an increase in both gross profit margin
and revenue. The share of profits of investments accounted for
using the equity method decreased by 84.6% to RMB13.0 million
(2018: RMB84.4 million) during the Year, while 2018 benefited
from the increase in the investment results of joint ventures.
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the Year
was RMB1,366.2 million, representing an increase of 32.7% as
compared with RMB1,029.7 million of the corresponding period
last year. Earnings per share during the Year were RMB31.63 cents
(2018: RMB23.84 cents).

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Cash and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and bank balances
of RMB6,483.5 million (31 December 2018: RMB5,176.5 million),
among which 99.8% was denominated in Renminbi. The Group
mainly financed its operation and capital expenditures with internally
generated cash flow. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total
financial liabilities decreased by 39.3% to RMB1,207.1 million (31
December 2018: RMB1,987.7 million), which was attributable to
the repayment of RMB500 million notes falling due and certain
bank borrowings. 99.2% of the Group’s total financial liabilities
was denominated in Renminbi. As at 31 December 2019, all of the
Group’s financial liabilities excluding lease liabilities bore floating
interest rates. As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have
any secured bank borrowing (31 December 2018: Nil).

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Financing

The Group aims to maintain an appropriate capital structure. Taiwan
Ratings Corporation, a credit rating agency, issued a credit rating
report on 18 July 2019, and maintained the Group’s long term
credit rating at “twAA”, with its rating outlook standing at “Stable
(¥7%E) ". The following table sets out the gearing ratios of the
Group during the two years ended 31 December 2019.

2019 2018
AR®B TR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

mEE (BEHEAR) Total borrowings
(including lease liabilities) 1,207,108 1,987,726
W RIRITE R Less: cash and bank balances (6,483,500) (5,176,478)
R 58 Net cash (5,276,392) (3,188,752)
B Total equity 13,632,930 13,222,307
FEE= /N Total capital 8,356,538 10,033,555
ERBELE (HE) Gearing ratio (Note) (63.14%) (31.78%)

fist: BEXAAGELRERSFEGRAGERLRS
SR HETH -

PEETHEREARGBL R KEBERKER
REFR - MRREAKLRES L2 2EERF
T YAREBEERENECABELRS
e

ReREREART Y

M2019F12A31A  AEBER @ LR EE
MRLLR D FEAEARES05.98 8 L £
EEFEPHEEANFHRSRABARK2,869.3
BELT REZPEANFESRLEAAR
1,469.8E 8 MMEGEHEANFHRENM
HAEARK1 005488 L RFEEREEX

Note: The gearing ratio was computed as the net cash divided by the sum
of total equity and net cash.

The Group reviewed its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According
to the capital plan for the future, the Group tried to maximize
revenue for its shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind.
Capital structure was constantly adjusted according to changes in
the operational environment.

Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a year-on-year
net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of RMB505.9 million,
comprising net cash inflow from operating activities of RMB2,869.3
million, net cash outflow from investing activities of RMB1,469.8
million and net cash outflow from financing activities of RMB1,905.4
million. The Group’s capital expenditure for the Year was RMB409.0
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million (31 December 2018: RMB985.8 million),
resulted from the procurement,

which mainly
improvement and upgrading of
equipment and the investment in R&D equipment.

Analysis of Operating Efficiency

Sales to most customers were made on a delivery on payment
basis. Trade receivables were generated from credit sales to credit
customers in modern channels (including but not limited to food
and groceries stores, stalls, department stores and e-commerce
merchants) with credit terms normally ranging from 60 to 90 days.
During the Year, as the sales to credit sales customers increased,
net trade receivables increased by RMB39 million to RMB569.1
million (31 December 2018: RMB530.1 million).

The Group’s trade payables mainly arose from credit purchase
of raw materials, and the inventories mainly comprised raw
materials, packaging materials, finished goods. Trade payables of
the Group increased by RMB169.2 million to RMB1,723.4 million
(81 December 2018: RMB1,554.2 million), while the inventories
increased by RMB280 million to RMB1,739.0 million (31 December
2018: RMB1,459.0 million). The increase in inventories was due
to the increase in raw materials, packaging materials and finished
goods required in the early preparation for increased production
and sales during the Chinese New Year. The following table sets out
the major turnover days during the two years ended 31 December
2019.

BE12A31BLEE

Year ended 31 December

2019 2018
FEUE 5 R BE K& Trade receivables turnover days 9 9
FEEEXE Inventory turnover days 41 33
BB PR EE X Trade payables turnover days 42 37

KB SEFEAERFZNEKE F RN
FUREREGOFHERIANEERE B
AFERKE -

FERABRBENFNREREFEEHRNT
BERAEERES  BRAFARE-

Trade receivables turnover days was calculated based on the
average of trade receivables balances as at the beginning and the
end of the year divided by revenue multiplied by days in the year.

Inventory turnover days was calculated based on the average of
inventory balances as at the beginning and the end of the year
divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.
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Trade payables turnover days was calculated based on the average
of trade payable balances as at the beginning and the end of the
year divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

The Group reckoned that inventory turnover days, trade receivables
turnover days and trade payable turnover days in the distribution
channel helped the Group in understanding the efficiency of
inventory liquidity and the sales and cash conversion cycle.
Through reviewing and improving the turnover days, the Group
could improve its revenue, profit and the ability of on-going growth
for the sake of enhancing operational efficiency.

Financial Management

The Group adhered to the principle of financial prudence. It sought
to control risk variables and moved forward prudently by moderately
adjusting its selling and marketing expenses according to market
conditions, and made appropriate capital expenditures to optimise
and expand its infrastructure. The Group’s finance department
formulated financial risk management policies based on the policies
and procedures approved by the Board and guided by executive
Directors. These policies were reviewed by the Group’s internal
audit department and the internal control department regularly. The
Group’s financial policy aims at reducing impact of interest rate and
exchange rate fluctuations on the Group’s overall financial position,
as well as minimising the Group’s financial risk exposure.

The Group’s finance department provides centralised financial risk
(including interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash flow
management, and cost-effective funding for the Group and its
members. During the Year, the Group has maintained an automated
reconciliation system, which significantly improved capital efficiency
and accounting treatment effectiveness.

Treasury Policy

It was the Group’s treasury management policy not to engage in
any highly risky investment or speculative derivative product and
not to invest the working capital in financial products with significant
underlying leverage or risks, including hedge funds or similar
financial products. The Group continued to adopt a conservative
approach to financial risk management with no significant bank
borrowing during the Year. Most of the Group’s receipts and
payments were denominated in Renminbi since a majority of its
revenue was derived from operations in the PRC. The Group may
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use foreign exchange forward contracts, when appropriate, for
risk aversion when it is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from assets or liabilities, such as cash and cash equivalents and
borrowings, which may be denominated in other currencies.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income was RMB6.0
million (2018: RMB218.6 million). The decrease in financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income was
due to the disposal of the equity of Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy
Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (“Wondersun”) (non-listed securities).

On 18 December 2019, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to dispose of
and the Purchaser agreed to purchase all of the Group’s interest
in Wondersun, being approximately 9% of the equity interest
of Wondersun, at a consideration of RMB334.0 million (the
“Disposal”), A gain on Disposal of RMB122.3 million, or RMB92.1
million net of PRC income tax of RMB30.2 million was derived
from the Disposal. The Disposal was completed on 27 December
2019. The net of tax gain of RMB92.1 million was recognised in
other comprehensive income according to the Group’s accounting
policies. Such net of tax gain on Disposal together with the
cumulative loss from fair value changes previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and transferred to other reserves of
RMB21.4 million was reclassified from other reserves to retained
earnings upon completion of Disposal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group did not have any charge on group assets as at 31
December 2019.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Year.
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FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this annual report,
there was no plan to acquire any material investment or capital
assets other than those in the Group’s ordinary business of
manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of employees of the
Group was 29,494. The Group adhered to the policies of focused and
streamlined operation, and organisational structure and staff structure
were improved on a continuous basis to build a stronger and efficient
enterprise. In terms of recruitment, the Group was streamlining its
administration and progressing towards meritocracy. The Group
insisted on building a stable and robust team through mechanisms
including comprehensive training and humane care. Internal training,
regular position transfer, external part-time study and other measures
enhanced our overall performance and provided talents for key positions
of the Group steadily. Meanwhile, priorities were given to internal
promotion over external recruitment, and performance appraisal and
other measures were implemented to keep the current management
team ambitious and strong. To achieve the Group’s annual goals, the
Group had performance bonuses and incentive schemes in place to
commend and encourage employees at all levels to make outstanding
contributions to the Group’s business. Performance bonuses were
distributed on the basis of the realised earnings and profits objectives
of individual business units and the Group as a whole, as well as the
performance appraisal.

The Group’s remuneration policy rewarded our employees and
directors with reference to their performance, qualifications,
demonstrated capabilities, market comparable information and the
performance of the Group. As part of the Group’s remuneration
policy, the Group entered into individual employment contracts
with each of its employees, which covered wages, social security
benefits, workplace safety and hygiene environment, confidentiality
obligations on trade secrets and termination conditions.

During the Year, total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
were RMB3,416.1 million (2018: RMB3,217.4 million).
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Report of the Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is pleased to
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales of
beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of 31
December 2019 are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 98 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB31.63 cents per share of the Company for the Year amounting
to a total dividend of approximately RMB1,366.2 million. The
payment of the final dividend is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Further details relating to dividends are set out in
Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. There was no
arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under which he/
she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 102 of the annual report and Note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB7,993,081,000.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB601,148 (2018: RMB692,625).
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and as at the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien,
Mr. Liu Xinhua and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Each of Mr.
Lo Chih-Hsien, Mr. Liu Xinhua and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election. There is no service contract entered
into between each of Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, Mr. Liu Xinhua and Mr. Su
Tsung-Ming, and the Company which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 62 to 66 of
the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the associated
corporation

BRAEE
Number of shares
20195
12A318 2
185% EREAL
U Fxsh Percentage of
ZEEBR BBz ER shareholding
HERRFEZHES BAER Interest of AFERE as at
Name of corporation and Personal child under Corporate #%5 31 December
name of its relevant shareholder Interest 18 or spouse Interest Total 2019
(BE49)
(Approximate)
G— ¥ #H  Uni-President
ARAT Enterprises
Corporation
7R 5 Lo Chih-Hsien 4,059,095 93,402,447 - 97,461,542 1.72%
M FSCEREEE SN R2019F 128318 - #f  Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
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the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors or their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and may
be renewed upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts/letters of appointment with the
Company, during the Year, no other contracts of significance,
transaction and arrangement to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

HEe/ RE Long positions/short positions
#2019
12A31H
ZERBOL
KATH Percentage of
EEREE shareholding
Number of as at
7B 51 ordinary shares 31 December
Name Capacity of the Company 2019
(8E49)
(Approximate)
B—ERNBRATR (M) XA E s 3,055,207,983 (L) 70.73%
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (Note 1) Interest of controlled
corporations
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (FffzE1) EmEBA 3,044,508,000 (L) 70.49%

Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (Note 1)

L) RRREADRGHHTA -
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Beneficial owner

(L) denotes a long position in the Company’s shares.

Holdings Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

Notes:

1. Out of 3,055,207,983 shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
3,044,508,000 Shares were held by Cayman President Holdings Ltd.
(“Cayman President”), which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (‘UPE”), 2,445,983 Shares
were held by President (BVI) International Investment Holdings Ltd.
(“President (BVI)”), which is indirectly owned by UPE as to 69.37%,
8,254,000 Shares were held by Kai Yu (BVI) Investment Co., Ltd. (“Kai
Yu (BVI)”), which is indirectly wholly-owned by UPE. Accordingly, UPE
was deemed to be interested in all the Shares respectively held by
Cayman President, President (BVI) and Kai Yu (BVI) by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no other
substantial shareholder or person (other than directors or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this Report of the Directors, (i) no contract of
significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to provision of services by the controlling

shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. During the Year and as at the date of this annual report,
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) was or is being in force for the benefit of the
Directors.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

UPE is the holding company of Cayman President which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. As Cayman President
is a connected person of the Company and UPE is an associate
of Cayman President, UPE is also a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by,
and/or subsisted between, the Group and UPE, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group) (for the purpose of this Report of
the Directors, hereinafter referred to as “UPE Group”) during the
Year and which are not being exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the
Listing Rules are set out below:
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Report of the Directors

2017 Framework Sales Agreement

On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2017 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell or
procure the sale of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group
certain beverages, instant noodles and bakery products and
such other products as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020. The pricing basis and the other terms of the sales
transactions contemplated under the 2017 Framework Sales
Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in accordance with the
internal control procedures of the Group, which, in principle,
shall be no less favourable to the Group than those offered
to independent third parties by the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the
2017 Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2017.

The 2017 Framework Sales Agreement will expire on 31
December 2020. To cater for the continual demand for the
Group’s food and beverages products from UPE Group,
on 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2020 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
sell or procure the sale of, on a non-exclusive basis, to
UPE Group certain beverage, instant noodles and bakery
products and such other products as may be agreed by the
Group and UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023. The terms and conditions of the 2020
Framework Sales Agreement (including the pricing policies)
are substantially similar to those of the 2017 Framework
Sales Agreement. Further details of the 2020 Framework
Sales Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 25 March 2020.
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(ii)

2017 Framework Purchase Agreement

On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
purchase agreement (the “2017 Framework Purchase
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase or procure the purchase of, on a non-
exclusive basis, from UPE Group certain raw materials,
packaging materials, finished goods, low-cost consumables
and such other goods as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020. The pricing basis and the other terms of the purchase
transactions contemplated under the 2017 Framework
Purchase Agreement shall be subject to the terms and
conditions contained therein and determined in accordance
with the internal control procedures of the Group, which,
in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group than
those offered to the Group by independent third parties in
comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 24 March 2017
and 19 May 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 26
April 2017.

The 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement will expire on 31
December 2020. Foreseeing the continual demand for the
raw materials and other goods by the Group, on 25 March
2020, the Company entered into a framework purchase
agreement (the “2020 Framework Purchase Agreement”) with
UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase
or procure the purchase of, on a non-exclusive basis, from
UPE Group certain raw materials, packaging materials,
finished goods, low-cost consumables and such other goods
as may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group for a term
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. The terms and
conditions of the 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement
(including the pricing policies) are substantially similar to those
of the 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement. Further details
of the 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020.
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(iii) 2017 Framework Logistics Service Agreement

On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
logistics service agreement (the “2017 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE
agreed to provide or procure the provision of, on a non-
exclusive basis, to the Group transportation and logistics
service (including, but not limited to, storage and design of,
and the provision of support service to, logistics application
systems and such other logistics related ancillary and support
services as may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group)
for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The
pricing basis and the other terms of the transportation and
logistics service transactions contemplated under the 2017
Framework Logistics Service Agreement shall be subject to
the terms and conditions contained therein and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered by independent third parties suppliers to
the Group in comparable transactions of the same period.
Further details of the 2017 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 March 2017.

The 2017 Framework Logistics Service Agreement will expire
on 31 December 2020. Considering the continual needs of
the Group for the transportation and logistics services, on 25
March 2020, the Company entered into a framework logistics
service agreement (the “2020 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE agreed to
provide or procure the provision of, on a non-exclusive basis,
to the Group transportation and logistics service (including,
but not limited to, storage and design of, and the provision
of support service to, logistics application systems and
such other logistics related ancillary and support services
as may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group) for a term
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. The terms
and conditions of the 2020 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement (including the pricing policies) are substantially
similar to those of the 2017 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement. Further details of the 2020 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 25 March 2020.
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(iv)

2017 Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement

On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
technical support service agreement (the “2017 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to provide or procure the
provision of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group
technical support and management services (including but
not limited to the human resources management services and
such other technical support services as may be agreed by
the Group and UPE Group) for a term from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2020. The pricing basis and the other terms
of the technical support service transactions contemplated
under the 2017 Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in accordance with the
internal control procedures of the Group, which, in principle,
shall be no less favourable to the Group than those offered
to independent third parties by the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the 2017
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 24
March 2017.

The 2017 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
will expire on 31 December 2020. In view of the continual
demand from UPE Group of the Group’s technical support
services, on 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a
framework technical support service agreement (the “2020
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement”) with
UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide or
procure the provision of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE
Group technical support and management services (including,
but not limited to, the human resources management
services and such other technical support services as may
be agreed by the Group and UPE Group) for a term from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. The terms and
conditions of the 2020 Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement (including the pricing policies) are substantially
similar to those of the 2017 Framework Technical Support
Service Agreement. Further details of the 2020 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020.
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KRBVB R RAEHARRRE (18 The maximum aggregate annual value (the “Annual Cap”)
BRAME) 2AFEZREREHFERE approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
B ([FELR]) RIBIE2017TFELH or set by the Company (as the case may be) and the
EiE 2017 FAELRKEWHZE 2017F aggregate annual transaction value actually recorded
HE 2290 37 AR 755 135 7 B2 2017 4R AE 2R £ 90 pursuant to the 2017 Framework Sales Agreement, the
YTERBSHE (GE (201753 B & 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement, the 2017 Framework
REMZEI)ERBRBZAFFERS Logistics Service Agreement and the 2017 Framework
BEHKIET: Technical Support Service Agreement (collectively, the “2017

CCT Agreements”) for the Year are set out below:

ERRZEE
Actual
x5 2017 HERER B HE Transaction FELR
Transaction 2017 CCT Agreements Amount Annual Cap
(ANRBBEET) (AREBET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
2017 IEZRSHEWEE 2017 Framework Sales Agreement
RIEEEE Total sales value 101.2 357.0
2017 IEZRIXEER % 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement
BEIEBEE Total purchase value 3,644.8 5,410.0
2017TFEIEZR YR ARTE 2017 Framework Logistics Service Agreement
=
B H5EE Total transaction value 4.4 46.5
C017HFAE SR T =#E 2017 Framework Technical Support Service
Pl 75 173 2% Agreement
B H5EE Total transaction value 52.9 59.5
% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 5»]
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When determining whether the above transactions have
been conducted in accordance with the pricing policies
under the above framework agreements, the management of
the Company would obtain sufficient market intelligence to
ascertain the relevant prevailing market rate, payment terms
and practices, as well as the latest market and independent
third party information. For example, the management would
review quotations from at least two independent suppliers
or service providers and evaluate them from a commercial
perspective, so as to ensure that the products or services
to be procured from the UPE Group are of comparable
prices for such products or services being offered by the
independent third parties of the same period. Where there
are no sufficient comparable transactions available, the prices
of such products or services would be determined on arm’s
length basis with reference to historical prices and cost
analysis. Likewise, the management would also determine the
prices of the products or services to be provided to the UPE
Group by reviewing market information to ensure that they
are of comparable prices for such products being offered to
independent third parties by the Group.

The internal audit team of the Company has reviewed the
continuing connected transactions based on the relevant
documentations and internal control procedures and have
provided findings to the independent non-executive Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors consider that the
methods and procedures established by the Company were
sufficient and effective to ensure that the transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms and not prejudicial to
the interests of the Company and its minority shareholders,
and that appropriate internal control procedures were in
place. In the opinion of the independent non-executive
Directors, the above transactions pursuant to the 2017 CCT
Agreements were carried out in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms and
were in accordance with the relevant 2017 CCT Agreements
and the pricing policies of the Company, and on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding
the continuing connected transactions of the Group, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

- the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

- for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, such transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

- the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; or

- the transaction amount of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions as mentioned above have
exceeded the annual cap set by the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with
the subsidiaries and/or associates of UPE during the Year as
disclosed in Note 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
conducted during the Year as disclosed in Note 33(b) and Note
33(c) to the consolidated financial statements do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received a written confirmation from UPE
confirming that UPE Group has not breached any of the terms of
the non-competition deed entered into between the Company and
UPE on 23 November 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong
Kong)).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the Year and as at the date of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements for the Year
and has recommended their adoption by the Board.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business, financial
key performance indicators and performance and indication of
future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
Those discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties

There are a number of factors which may affect the results and
business operations of the Group, some of which are inherent
to beverages and instant noodles business and some are from
external sources. Major risks are summarized below.

(i)  Consumer preferences risk

The Group’s success depends on its ability to anticipate the
tastes and dietary habits of consumers and to offer products
that appeal to their preferences. The Company’s failure to
anticipate, identify or react to the changes in consumer
preferences could result in reduced demand for the Group’s
products, which would, in turn, lead to excessive inventory
levels and lower sales volume. The Group will continuously
introduce new products throughout the seasons and will
further shorten the product development cycle in order to
improve our portfolio of products to satisfy consumers’
changing preferences.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.



(i)

(i)

BEmE

AREBEFBEZE M&TEETEN
BEEEAR  ARE 2 HEFEN ER
RIZEELBURRAKBERET AR IEER
RETSIBEORKMEFZemEEMR
NeHFEERPHAML - ANEB %
FEAEZREHMSRENE (2
1o NEEE) — L FE LT BRI
HEMEMTEEEERNTISME
EGEEXAKEREA -HEMETHE
BEEANERBEN,REARKRNHD
W AR AREREEER 2B
BREMER AAgEMS LELEER
[ 3 {12 = fisd AN 52 [ B9 355 55 9 F S B B
FARNMSNE AEENHEEA
REAETE REERFER ~EE
B T SR R AT HE A a0 DA M
HRAEMND@EKF MR
Fe

AR 2 T 5 m R

FENRMAITEX I 2REEBERE
BTEEPNTE 2REBERETE
BN REEBURBE (R D R Al X
AT # B - 4 i B K AN 5 [ 2 m
FERUFEREEZERE - AL 2R
A3 [ 47 - B B A BE IS 4B B
FEORE) o RRR P B R 2 HREFE AR
KBS —REE TR EETENR
mMABITERAREERNTREKA
EEE EMPEAREEY 2EXE
RFHARR - R RARITENRER
BBTRTE » A 5% (B A 48 A L 3 A DA
RITE FRAIE R WARIEHIA - LA
KRR FOEE # B AN RBE DARRE R
BEREEREBRTISKBNERZF
@,

(i)

(ii)

EEGHRE

Report of the Directors

Competition risk

The industries in which the Group operates in the PRC are
highly competitive. The Group’s ability to compete is, to
a significant extent, dependent on its ability to distinguish
its products from those of the Group’s competitors by
providing high quality products at reasonable prices that
appeal to consumers’ tastes and preferences. The Group’s
competitors have varying abilities to withstand changes
in market conditions. Some of the Group’s competitors
have larger market shares in the PRC with respect to
beverages or instant noodles products, have operated their
respective businesses longer than the Group has, have
wider geographical coverage for its products and/or stronger
distribution networks in the PRC, may have substantially
greater financial and other resources than the Group has and
may be better established in the market. Should the Group’s
competitors manage to seize a larger market share, the
Group’s sales volume may be adversely affected. To manage
competition risks, the Group will continue to research and
develop new technology, introduce new products as well as
maintain a high level of quality of its existing products for a
better competitive edge.

Economy and financial markets risk

The food and beverage industry in the PRC is impacted by
fluctuations in the global economy and financial market. The
slowdown of the worldwide economy, including that of the
PRC, caused a drop in consumer confidence and the level
of disposable income, which translated into lower demand
for the Group’s products, affecting the Group’s results of
operations. As a result, the global and local economies,
including the PRC economy, could continue to experience
significant volatility. Significant volatility or another downturn
in the PRC and global economy in the future could have an
adverse effect on the food and beverage industry in the PRC
and the demand for the Group’s products, which may affect
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition. With a relatively stable cash flow in the food and
beverage industry, the Group will continue to launch new
products to boost revenue, strictly control costs, and maintain
a stable and appropriate capital structure to reduce the
impact from global economic and financial market volatility.
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(iv)  Supply chain risk

All of the packaging materials used in the manufacture of the
Group’s instant noodle products and a large percentage of
packaging materials used in the production of its beverage
products are supplied by independent third parties or related
party suppliers. In the event these independent third parties
or related party suppliers fail to continue to supply or cannot
meet the Group’s demand for such packaging materials, or
the Group is unable to reach agreement upon reasonable
terms with them in relation to such continued supply, the
Group may be unable to find a comparable substitute
supplier of packaging materials, which may lead to delays
in the delivery of its products to customers. Such delays
may affect the Group’s results of operations. The Group
strives to maintain stable and cooperative relationships in the
procurement of important raw materials, develop long-term
strategic partnerships and productivity strategies with three or
more suppliers to reduce the risk on being over dependent on
a single supplier.

Key Relationships

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key
relationships which comprise employees, suppliers, distributors and
customers.

()  Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group.
In view of the huge market opportunities for beverages
and food products in the PRC, the Group is continuously
recruiting talented professionals. In respect of the new lower-
level staff, the Group devotes considerable resources in staff
training and monitor their development and progress in a
timely manner in order to familiarise them with the working
environment and build up team spirit. Meanwhile, the Group
recognises the value of its key personnel in maintaining
team morale and competitiveness. Both internal promotion
and external recruitment are applied to select and promote
outstanding personnel for vacant positions and attract
qualified candidates to join the Group. On the other hand, the
Group ensures the continuity of the senior management by
grooming management talents with various measures, such
as continuous internal training and appropriate job rotation as
well as external on-the-job training.

Holdings Ltd.
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Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of suppliers and take great care to ensure that they
understand the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. To
achieve the objective of fair trade and win-win situation with
suppliers, the Group carefully selects suppliers in conformity
with the food safety requirements of “three lines of defense”
(i.e qualification audits, on-site evaluation, food safety testing),
through inviting quotations from suppliers to be procured to
the extent that those products are of comparable nature,
quality, quantity and condition via open tender.

Distributors

The Group sells products to end customers through third-
party distributors. The Group works with distributors like
business partners with the same interest, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales
growth. The Group requires distributors and sub-distributors
to comply with its policies, including but not limited to
retail selling price, promotional activities and standardised
application of the Group’s system.

Customers

The Group is committed to offer tasty, differentiated and
trendy products to customers. The Group provides safe,
healthy and delicious beverages and instant noodles to
consumers. The Group also stays connected with customers
to keep abreast of the changing consumer preference
through various channels like the Company’s website,
customer hotlines, marketing materials and social media.
In the instant noodles and beverages industry, the Group’s
vast number of customers are from modern channels
(including but not limited to food and groceries stores, stalls
and department stores) which are scattered and separated.
Therefore, the Group does not have major customers which
account for a significant part of the Company’s revenue.
The credit terms and subsequent settlement for customers
have been disclosed in the paragraph headed “Analysis of
operating efficiency” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) on 31
December 2018 to enhance the transparency of the Company and
to facilitate its shareholders (“Shareholders”) and investors to make
informed investment decisions relating to the Company.

According to the Dividend Policy, in addition to final dividends, the
Company may declare interim dividends or special dividends to the
Shareholders from time to time.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board will take into account, inter alia, the Group’s
general financial position, current and future operations, working
capital requirements, liquidity position and any other factors it may
deem relevant from time to time. Any payment of the dividend by
the Company is also subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association”).

Subject to the factors set out above, the final dividends to be
declared and paid by the Company shall be not less than 20%
of the Group’s audited consolidated profit attributable to the
Shareholders in any financial year.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time
and there is no assurance that any dividend will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or that the Company is
obliged to declare any dividend at any time or from time to time.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the shares of the Company are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Our operations are regulated by
Hong Kong and PRC laws. During the year ended 31 December
2019 and as at the date of this report, we have complied with
the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC and Hong Kong that
have significant impact to the Group. In particular, as a food and
beverage manufacturer, the Group’s operations are regulated by
the applicable food safety and environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the year under review, the Group
did not have any material non-compliance with such laws and
regulations.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Environmental Policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of the
Group’s business, it is also the responsibility of each of us. The
Group initiates and strives to minimize environmental impact by
using water-saving facilities, saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group also
requires factories of original equipment manufacturer (OEM)
to operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules and possess all necessary permission and
approval from the PRC regulators.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

The discussion of future development of the Company business
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those
discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and epidemic control measures have been
implemented in the PRC including, but not limited to, extension
of the Chinese New Year holiday nationwide, suspension of work
in certain regions, travel restrictions, quarantine arrangements,
heightening of hygiene and epidemic prevention requirements
in factories and offices and encouraged social distancing. It is
expected that such measures would impose a temporary and
limited impact on the transportation and production cost of the
Group in certain regions. As at the date of this annual report, the
Group was not aware of any significant effect on its businesses
as a result of the outbreak of COVID-19. The Group will continue
to monitor and evaluate the impacts may be brought to it by the
outbreak of COVID-19.

On behalf of the Board
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman
Taipei, Taiwan
25 March 2020
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Executive Directors

Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (#%55C), aged 63, is the chairman and
executive director of the Company. Mr. Lo is also a director and/
or the chairman of the board of directors of most of the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group
in September 1998 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He has over 34 years
of experience in the food and beverage industry and is currently
the chairman of President Chain Store Corporation (£ — B %
AR AT, Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (i —BXBMHABR A
7)), TTET Union Corporation ( K#tzm kM ER A A, Prince
Housing & Development Corp. ( X F @& FERH BR A A ) and
ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. (&2 @ER KD BRAF), al of which
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He is also
the director of Tait Marketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. ({52 F1T
DB AR), a company listed on the Taipei Exchange. He is
also the chairman and group chief strategy officer of Uni-President
—EEBROBRAR) ("UPE"),
the substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined in the

Enterprises Corporation ( 4t

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), and the director of 104 companies associated with UPE
and its subsidiaries. Mr. Lo holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of California, Los Angeles, the
U.S.A. His spouse is Mrs. Shiow-Ling Kao, the director of UPE.

Mr. LIU Xinhua (2]37%8) | aged 49, is the president of the Group
and the general manager of Uni-President Enterprises (China)
Investments Ltd. (i —% (FE)EEFR A A (“Uni-President
China Investments”). He has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. He has
over 26 years of experience in strategic marketing in the food and
beverage industry. Mr. Liu joined the Group in July 1994 and since
then has been involved in sales and marketing for the Group. He
acted as the sales general manager for the Sichuan province of
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (X #s5— ¥R
B R A F]) from November 2006 until August 2008. From August
2008 to September 2014, he acted as the general manager of the
food business department of Uni-President China Investments.
From October 2014 until June 2016, he acted as a general
manager of the marketing planning office and convener of strategic
marketing committee of Uni-President China Investments. Mr. Liu
holds a doctoral degree in business management from Southwest
Jiaotong University (A Eg R A ) in the PRC.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (#f52%%), aged 62, is a non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Su joined the Group in August
2007. He joined UPE Group in August 2000. He is currently the
vice-president of UPE and a director of President Chain Store
Corporation (£t —#E & I {7 B R A7) and ScinoPharm Taiwan,
Ltd. (B E@ERHDBMRAF]), all of which are members of UPE
Group and are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
Mr. Su is also a director of 23 members of UPE Group. He has
over 34 years of experience in banking and financial management.
Before joining UPE Group, he was the vice-president of the Taipei
branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was the financial specialist of Seibu
Department Store in Tokyo, Japan in 1988 and the senior specialist
of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in Tokyo in 1990. Mr. Su holds a
master of business administration degree from the University of
lowa, the U.S.A..

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (B /), aged 51,
director of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group in May 2011

is a non-executive

as the chief financial officer of the Group and is also a director and/
or supervisor of certain of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries
in the PRC. From February 2011 to July 2019, he was a director of
Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Joint Stock Co., Ltd. ( 288/ T & 52
L FLEE AR
in December 2019). Mr. Chen has worked in UPE from November

f& 17 B BR A A]) (the Group has disposed all equity interest

1997 to April 2011. He was appointed as an executive director of
the Company between August 2013 and June 2017. Since July
2017, Mr. Chen was re-designated as a non-executive director of
the Company and was re-designated as the chief financial officer of
UPE. He is currently a director or a supervisor of 5 wholly-owned
subsidiaries/joint ventures of the Group. Mr. Chen is also a director
of 4 members of UPE Group and a director of President Securities
Corp. which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
He has over 23 years of experience in financial management. Mr.
Chen holds a master’s degree in business administration from
University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sun-Te (fRE272), aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Chen has over 36 years of experience in the banking
and financial industry and is currently the Chairman of Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank. He is also an independent director of Lion Travel
Services Co., Ltd. and a director of Fubon Financial Holdings.
Prior to that, Mr. Chen was an independent director of China
Telecom Corporation from March 2012 to July 2019, the president
of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd. (North Asia and Greater
China regions) between 2005 and 2012, the president of Chinatrust
Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (now known as CTBC Financial Holding
Co., Ltd) in 2005, the chairman of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd.
between 2003 and 2005, the country officer and country head
of the corporate bank in Taiwan of Citigroup between 2001 and
2003 and the regional head of financial markets in Asia Pacific of
Citigroup between 1998 and 2001. He gained extensive financial
management experience from various positions held with Citibank
and Citigroup and has acquired general knowledge about the food
and beverage industry through dealing with clients in such industry.
Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business administration
from University of Missouri, the U.S.A. and a bachelor’s degree in
political science from National Chengchi University, Taiwan.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Mr. CHEN Johnny (BR& %), aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in December
2015. Mr. Chen Johnny is currently an Adjunct Associate Professor
of Department of Finance and Department of Management, Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chen Johnny
joined the management of Zurich Insurance Group (“Zurich”)
in 2005. He worked in Zurich from March 2005 to February
2015 in multiple senior managerial roles in the Asia-Pacific
region. His last position in Zurich was the chairman of the life
and general insurance business in China. Prior to joining Zurich,
Mr. Chen Johnny was an executive member of the Greater-
China Management Board and the Operating Committee of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC”), as well as a managing partner
of PwC’s Beijing office. Mr. Chen Johnny is also the chairman and
an executive director of Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1019),
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1836), Alibaba Pictures

an independent non-executive director of Stella

Group Limited (stock code: 1060) and China Travel International
Investment Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 308), all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From December
2015 to November 2018, he was an independent non-executive
director of China Minsheng Financial Holding Corporation Limited
(stock code: 245) and from July 2017 to March 2019, China
Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3818), all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From June 2010
to February 2019, he was an independent non-executive director of
Viva China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8032) which is listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen Johnny holds a Master
of Science Degree in Accounting from the University of Rhode
Island and a Bachelor Degree of Accounting from the Johnson &
Wales University and is a U.S. certified public accountant.
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Mr. FAN Ren-Da, Anthony (5B{Z3% ) , aged 59, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Fan is the chairman and managing director of AsialLink
Capital Limited and also an independent non-executive director of
Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206), Raymond
Industrial Limited (stock code: 229), Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited (stock code: 563), China Dili Group
(formerly known as Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited)
(stock code: 1387), Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 6868), Citic Resources Holdings Limited (stock code:
1205), China Development Bank International Investment Limited
(stock code: 1062), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 2882), Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1868) and Semiconductor Manufacturing International
Corporation (stock code: 981). Mr. Fan was an independent non-
executive director of each of Lerthai Group Limited (formerly known
as LT Commercial Real Estate Limited (stock code: 112)) from
March 2013 to June 2017, Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Corporation Limited (stock code: 1296) from September
2011 to August 2017 and CGN New Energy Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 1811) from September 2014 to June 2018.
All of the said companies are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Fan holds a master’'s degree in business
administration from the U.S.A..

Mr. LO Peter (¥ %= 2
independent non-executive director of the Company in November

, aged 64, was appointed as an

2007. Mr. Lo is currently a director of China Enterprise Capital
Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director of Ajisen
(China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 538), and from March 2011
to June 2018, he was the chairman and an executive director
of China Outfitters Holdings Limited (stock code: 1146), both of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo
has over 26 years of experience in the business field and holds a
bachelor’s degree in mathematical economics and econometrics
from the London School of Economics and Political Science, the
United Kingdom.
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Senior Management

Mr. LIU Xinhua (2/37% ), aged 49, was appointed as the
president of the Group since 1 July 2016 and an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. Mr. Liu’s
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Directors’
Profile” of this annual report.

Mr. LIU, Tzu-Chiang (%|F73%), aged 50, is the chief financial
officer of the Group. Mr. Liu joined the Group in April 1998. Mr. Liu
also acts as a supervisor of certain of the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries in the PRC. He has over the years served as the
manager of the finance department at Uni-President Enterprises
(Xinjiang) Food Co., Ltd. (¥TEH— 2R MmAMRAF]) , Nanchang
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (A E&H— ¥ ER A F)),
Shenyang President Enterprises Co., Ltd. GBS & — D EAR A
A]), Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (B &R — &
¥ 2 MmAMRAF)and Zhengzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(BN — R EBR AR, all being the subsidiaries of the Group.
From August 2007 to May 2012, he was also the administrative
director of the Group in the Northeast region and Southwest region
of the PRC. Since 2014, he has been the chief accountant of the
Group. From July 1994 to April 1998, he had served in UPE Group.
He has over 26 years of experience in financial management.
Mr. Liu holds a bachelor degree in business administration from
National Cheng Kung University, Taiwan.

Mr. ZHANG Ling (3&1%) , aged 51, joined the Group in October
1994. During the period from 1994 to 2009, Mr. Zhang was
responsible for management of marketing in different subsidiaries
of the Company, such as Nanchang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. (& — 1% BMR2AE]), Shenyang President Enterprises
Co., Ltd. BB A — X BMR A7) and Wuhan President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (RUEHR —EERmMBR AR . In
January 2010, Mr. Zhang served as the Brand Manager of Instant
Food Department of the Group and was promoted to the position
of General Manager in October 2014. Mr. Zhang has over 25
years working experience in the food industry. Mr. Zhang holds
a bachelor's degree of engineering from the Hankou College of
Huazhong Institute of Technology of the PRC (now renamed as
Huazhong University of Science and Technology) and a master’s
degree in EMBA from Wuhan University, the PRC.
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Mr. HUANG, Wei (=#), aged 38, joined the Group in June
2004. From June 2006 to October 2009, he was responsible for
the planning and brand marketing of the food product business.
From 2010 to 2013, he served as the manager of the marketing
department at Beijing President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (1t
RiFE—RBMBAEMAA) and Kunshan President Enterprises Food
Co., Ltd. (BRI —RMBER AR . From 2013 to 2014, he
was responsible for brand management of the Instant Food
Department of the Group. From 2014 to 2016, he was employed
as the general manager of the E-commerce Department of the
Group and concurrently served as the strategic development
director of the marketing strategy office. Since September 2017,
he has been the general manager of the business unit of the Life
and Food Business Department and the E-commerce Department
of the Group. He is currently the general manager of the Life and
Food Business Department. Mr. Huang holds a master degree in
business administration (MBA) from the School of Management,
Fudan University, the PRC.

Mr. ZHAO Nianen (#5252 ), aged 43, joined the Group in
April 1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of
operation and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (B~ 2RERBERRD
7]) from March 2000 to October 2006, and has been appointed
as the head of bottled water business of the Group since October
2006. He has been a general manager of the combined drinks
business of the Group since October 2014. He has more than 21
years of experience in the food and beverages industry and holds a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai Maritime University,
the PRC.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Mr. WEI Chih-Chung (&), aged 51, joined the food
product business (Taiwan) of UPE and the Group in 1999 and 2003
respectively. Prior to 2010, Mr. Wei served as product manager
of food product business, combined drink products business
and juice business and as a manager of the investment planning
unit of the Company. In 2010, he served in the PL (Private Label)
OEM business, which was a new business unit of the Group. In
2011, he was transferred to a subsidiary, Uni-President (Shanghai)
Private Label Marketing & Trading Co., Ltd., as general manager
of the Group. In 2012, he was the general manager of the trading
business unit of the Group. He has been the general manager of
juice business of the Group since 2013. He has more than 26 years
of experience in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Wei graduated
from Drexel University in Pennsylvania, the U.S.A. with a master’s
degree in business administration.

Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen ([ 35 %5
President Enterprises Corp. (&M & —

, aged 47, joined Guangzhou
TEFERAA), a
subsidiary of the Group, in February 2009 and was responsible for
the management of marketing functions of Guangzhou President
Enterprises Corp. (BNt — 13 AR A F]) and Wuhan President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (RZH — D EXRMABR R A,
subsidiaries of the Group, prior to October 2011. She was re-
designated as the deputy general manager of the head office of
the Group’s tea business in October 2011 and was promoted to
the position of general manager in July 2013. Before joining the
Group, she has engaged in marketing in various companies such
as Wyeth Nutrition, Taiwan Branch, Ting Hsin International Group
(TEFTEIPR &) and YFY (GkZ8) and has 23 years of experience
in the food and fast moving consumer goods industries. In 2006,
she started to work in Mainland China when she joined Wei Chuan
Foods Corporation (Bk2 R fa TE R M BB A A]) of Ting Hsin
International Group (TE#TEIFE & & ) and has since gained 14
years of work experience in Mainland China. Ms. Chen holds both
master’s degree in nutrition and health sciences from Taipei Medical
University in Taiwan and EMBA (Shanghai) of Taiwan’s National
Chung Hsing University.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2019 £ &

09



SREEEBE

Senior Management’s Profile

RAME

BERSEE 3B ARAZREIWE - Bk
AR2014F5 A MAREB EERRF A A
MEFE REFRLENMEEK TEES
BOFKR FIFARBNMAREE SN
DEEIAIEEME 267 - LA K E B Edinburgh
Napier University M) @5t X B T2 - B AH
BEARNEAEREBBHANERITHRAS

=, L=
nEgg8-

Company Secretary

Mr. Fung Kwan Ho (J$39%) , aged 33, is the company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Fung joined the Group in May 2014 as the
company secretarial officer of the Company and has over 9 years
of experience in the field of accounting and corporate secretarial
practice. He holds a Master of Science Degree in Professional
Accounting and Corporate Governance from City University
of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy
from Edinburgh Napier University, the United Kingdom. He is an
associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom.
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Corporate Governance Report

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
with its subsidiaries,

(the “Company”, together
“Group”) is committed to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance practices and procedures and
appreciates that good corporate governance is crucial to enhance
investors’ confidence in the Company. In the opinion of the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, the
Company has complied with all code provisions of the corporate
governance code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Year”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code, any new Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the first general meeting of the Company after the appointment. In
accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-third of
the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, the number nearest to, but not less than, one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to the Director
Nomination Policy (as defined below) and the Board Diversity Policy
(as defined below) of the Company, the Directors’ qualifications,
duties, responsibilities and experiences, and the prevailing market
conditions.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, investment and
strategic decisions, maintaining the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and monitoring the
performance of the Group. There are currently four committees
established under the Board, being the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the investment, strategy and development
committee (the “Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee”). Each committee has its terms of reference and
reports to the Board regularly.

The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the president of the Group (“President”).
The roles of the Chairman and the President are performed by
separate persons. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that
the Directors perform their duties properly and ensuring discussions
on material matters take place on a timely basis. The power and
authority to carry out day-to-day operations and implementation of
the strategies and directions set by the Board are delegated to the
management team of the Company (the “Management”) which is
led by the President. The Management assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operation of the Group.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of the minimum
required number of independent non-executive Directors
which shall be at least one-third of the Board with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules: (a) having served
the Company for more than nine years could be relevant to the
determination of a non-executive Director’s independence, and (b)
if an independent non-executive Director has served for more than
nine years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders of the Company. Each of
Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter has
served as the independent non-executive Directors for more than
nine years since 2016, and the shareholders of the Company have
approved their appointment under a separate resolution at the AGM
held on 20 May 2016.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors his respective confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
each of them to be independent under the aforesaid Rule 3.13. Mr.
Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter have in-
depth understanding of the Company’s operations and business,
and since they are not involved in the daily management of the
Company nor are they in any relationships or circumstance which
would interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments,
the Board is of the opinion that each of them has the required
integrity and independence to continue to fulfil the role of an
independent non-executive director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function including developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. During the Year, the Board
reviewed the Company’s status of compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to have
full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.

SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been given relevant
guideline materials regarding the roles, duties and responsibilities
of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to
them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of the Group.
They have also been updated on the latest development regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. A procedure has been approved by the
Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at
the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed that they have
complied with Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all of the Directors
have participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars/in-house briefing and/or reading materials on
the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided relevant records of training to the Company.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FRBEEIEE (M)
Topics on training covered (Note)

BESEE (FE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) a
BIRREE ST (HRASHE) Mr. Liu Xinhua (President) a,c
FeR B A 2 A= Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui a, b, c
BE AL Mr. Su Tsung-Ming a
PREEfESE A Mr. Chen Sun-Te a,b,c
RERTLE Mr. Chen Johnny a, b, c
SBIESLE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony a, b
BEE%iE Mr. Lo Peter a
Bt &1 Note:

()  corporate governance/regulatory
(o) finance

()  industry-specific

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Board meetings were held at regular intervals. During the Year,
the Board has held five board meetings for, among other matters,
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance of
the Company, and considering and approving the overall strategies
and policies of the Company.
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BHEHINATE:

The attendance of individual Board members at the Board and
Board committees meetings during the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the table below:

B/ BIERERE (M)
Number of meetings attended/held (Note 1)

RE HER
ENZBEE REZEE HHZEE  BEZE9
-4 a3 gz gz 82 RRBEAE
Investment,
Strategy and
Audit Nomination Remuneration  Development Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings Meeting
HIEE Executive Directors
BRARAE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien 5/5 - 212 212 3/3 N
mERE Mr. Liu Xinhua 5/5 - - - 3/3 1N
FHTEE Non-executive Directors
REE R & Mr. Chen Kuo Hui 5/5 - - - 3/3 1N
BR#ra Mr. Su Tsung-Ming 5/5 33 - - 3/3 1
BUHHTEE Indgpendent Non-executive Directors
REERE Mr. Chen Sun-Te 4f5 23 - 112 3/3 0
RERTE Mr. Chen Johnny 4/5 2/3 12 - 33 1
BrLEks Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony 5/5 33 - 2/2 33 1/1
BEERE Mr. Lo Peter 5/5 213 212 - 2/3 il
B EE - Note:
1. Attendances during the Year were made by reference to the number
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T8
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CESE RERLEE RERLELE B
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of meetings held during the Directors’ respective tenures.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Fan Ren-
Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Lo Peter,
being independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming,
being a non-executive Director. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors, reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong and on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review

the interim and annual financial statements and the effectiveness of

the internal control practices of the Group. A summary of the work

performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as

follows:

)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the interim and annual financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2019 and for the Year respectively;

met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;

reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the risk management, internal control

systems and the internal audit function of the Group;

conducted an annual review of non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year;

approved the audit plan for the year ending 31 December
2020;

reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved the
engagement of the external auditors and recommended the
Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors; and

reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the
corporate governance requirements as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and terms of reference of Audit
Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised Mr. Chen

Johnny and Mr. Lo Peter, being independent non-executive

Directors, and Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, being an executive Director. The

Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Peter.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board, or select individuals nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong and the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the composition
of the Board whenever the Company needs to meet the business
demand, opportunities and challenges and to comply with the
applicable laws and regulations. The Nomination Committee
has adopted a director nomination policy (“Director Nomination
Policy”) on 13 December 2018, which serves to improve
the transparency of the process and criteria in selecting and
recommending candidates as directors of the Company for the
Board’s approval from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. The Directors and the Nomination Committee
will consider and nominate candidates, according to the Director
Nomination Policy based on objective criteria with due regard to
the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board Diversity Policy of
the Company, to the Board for approval. In identifying individuals
and making recommendations for nominations, the Nomination
Committee considers whether such individuals have the appropriate
qualifications, abilities and perspectives that would enable them
to effectively fulfil their roles and responsibilities as directors of the
Company. The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee (as
further set out in its terms of reference) form the key part under the
Company'’s Director Nomination Policy.

Where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, his/her independence will be assessed
in accordance with, among others, the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as
may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications
and experience will also be evaluated to consider whether he/she
has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise for filing the office of an
independent non-executive Director as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
to review (i) the composition and structure of the Board; (ii)
the confirmation of independence by the independent non-
executive Directors; (i) the Company’s progress on compliance
with the corporate governance requirements as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and terms of reference of
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has reviewed
the independence of each of Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter who has served more than nine years as
an independent non-executive Director at the Company pursuant
to Code Provision A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Nomination Committee has also reviewed the Board Diversity
Policy.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy (as amended on 14
December 2018 to align with the amendments of the Corporate
Governance Code and to comply with Rule 13.92 of the Listing
Rules which came into effect on 1 January 2019) (“Board Diversity
Policy”), which aims to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and
to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board.

Under the Board Diversity Policy, in order to achieve a diversity of
perspectives, skills and experience within the Board, a number of
factors will be considered when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
length of service, skills, regional and industry experience. In forming
its perspectives on Board diversity, the Company will also take into
account its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. Please refer to the Company’s website for details of the Board
Diversity Policy.
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In addition, the composition, experience and balance of skills
on the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board
retains core members with long-standing knowledge of the Group
alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring
fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness, and will propose
and recommend any amendments to the Board Diversity Policy as
it thinks fit to the Board for consideration and approval.

The names of the current Directors and their biographies (including
their roles as well as their skills and experiences) are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Sun-Te
and Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony; and one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr.
Chen Sun-Te throughout the Year.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. The specific
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection upon request at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year. A
summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee is set
out as follows:

(i) reviewed and recommended to the Board on the fees of the
non-executive Directors;

(i) assessed the performance of executive Directors, reviewed
the current remuneration structure/package and approved the
specific remuneration package of the executive Directors; and

(i) reviewed the current remuneration structure/package of the
senior management.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the year, the range of remuneration payable to the members
of the senior management (other than the Directors) of the Group is
set out below:

Number of

S E Remuneration range persons
AE

AR #500,0007T & A R#999,0997T RMB500,000 to RMB999,999 1
AR #1,000,0007T = A R #1,499,9997T RMB1,000,000 to RMB1,499,999 3
AR #1,500,0007T = A R #2,000,0007T RMB1,500,000 to RMB2,000,000 3

RE BRRBRREES

RAFERE BBELERZEENEHNT
EEREEARERBIFERE FRTEER
BRESERGRHELEARBIIFRTES
REEEE RERLLE BCLEXLERKS
ESREAK BETTERRE BREER
ZEEER-

BRE BREMERZEGNAFERIT=ZAE
FoRE BEMERZEGZIEZBERE
BAKEZIRE MNERFSIREE EHERE
EREYRNEEGRIEZZ -RE BRILER
ZEENRHTRERES AIRARRELEE
RERMWHIRHERER-

INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee comprised Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and Mr. Liu Xinhua,
being executive Directors, Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui and Mr. Su Tsung-
Ming, being non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr.
Chen Johnny, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, being
independent non-executive Directors. The Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.

The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee held three
meetings during the Year. The primary functions of the Investment,
Strategy and Development Committee are to review the investment
and development plan and policies of the Group and to review
investment proposals and make recommendations to the Board.
The specific written terms of reference of the Investment, Strategy
and Development Committee are available for inspection upon
request at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong.
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AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditors of the Company to
ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with the applicable standards. Members of the
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s external
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC”), is independent and
have recommended the Board to re-appoint PwC as the external
auditors of the Company subject to the shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming AGM. During the Year, the remuneration paid/
payable to all external auditors engaged by the Group for their audit
services amounted to RMB8.8 million. No significant remuneration
was paid to PwC for the provision of non-audit related service to
the Company during the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code during the Year and up to
the date of this annual report.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of inside information, have also been
requested to comply with the provisions of the securities dealing
code adopted by the Company, which is no less exacting than the
Model Code, when dealing in the Company’s shares.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The system includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and is designed to help the Group to identify and manage
significant risks to achieve the Group’s overall business objectives,
determine the Group’s risk profile, oversee risk management
framework structure, review key risks and mitigation strategies
and to ensure risk management effectiveness and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported
by key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top-
down approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively
identified, prioritised, and properly addressed by key business units
to accomplish the Group’s objectives. The management team is
regularly monitoring emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based internal audit
plan and periodically assess the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management and internal controls for ongoing risk assurance
purposes. This enhances the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and
control framework.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent
and detect fraud and protect shareholders’ investment as well
as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained and
applicable legislation and regulations are complied with. During the
Year, through discussions with the management, the internal audit
team and external auditors and with reference to a report submitted
by the internal audit team, the Board has conducted assessments
and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system in various perspectives, including,
among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each
review covers a whole financial year.
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The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions under
the authority of the Board, the guidance of the Audit Committee
and co-ordination with the external auditors. It regularly reports
to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and
recommendations on internal control. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than to eliminate risks
of failure in the Group’s operational systems and to achieve the
Group’s business objectives.

During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered food safety, financial, operation, statutory
compliance and risk management of the Group at all levels and
functions, taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
During the Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and is
of the opinion that the resources for and staff qualifications of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with the present
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
considers them effective and adequate. During the Year and as
at the date of this annual report, nothing has been found which
requires substantial improvement.

The Company adopted a policy for the Directors, senior
management and other employees of the Group on disclosure of
inside information to ensure that inside information is handled and
disseminated properly. During the Year, the Company regarded
information of an event as inside information if such event might
impact the price or trading volume of the shares of the Company.
Should public disclosure of inside information be required,
announcements in relation to inside information, being approved
by the executive Directors under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time, would be published by the Company as soon
as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10
of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions (as
defined under the Listing Rules) under Part XIVA of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFQO”).

#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Group has also adopted an internal policy for certain
employees who, because of their office in the Company, may from
time to time encounter inside information (as defined in the SFO).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates with
the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways:
(i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s)
(the “EGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific purpose
and provide opportunities for the shareholders of the Company
to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as
required under the Listing Rules and providing updated information
of the Group on the website of the Stock Exchange at “http://www.
hkexnews.hk”; and (jii) the availability of latest information of the
Group and, if appropriate, press releases of the Company at the
Company’s website at “www.uni-president.com.cn”.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for constructive communication between the shareholders of the
Company and the Board. During the Year, the AGM was held on
17 May 2019. Members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
(Chairman), Mr. Liu Xinhua, Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Su Tsung-
Ming, Mr. Fan Ren-Da Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, were present
at the AGM to answer questions raised by the shareholders of
the Company at the AGM. The Company’s external auditors and
Company Secretary also attended the 2019 AGM.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(1)

(2)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

According to the Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company or any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) may request for an EGM to be convened upon
depositing at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong a written requisition specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that as
at the date of deposit of the requisition, such requisitionist(s)
hold not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at a general
meeting of the Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after three months
from the date of the original deposit and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the
Company Secretarial Office by post to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong or by fax to +852
2893 1150.
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(3)

Procedures for putting forward proposal at general
meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at general meetings under
the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”) and
Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. If shareholders of the Company wish to do so, they
may request to convene an EGM as stipulated above and
specify the proposals in such written requisition. Pursuant
to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing
by a member of the Company (not being the person to be
proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional

documents.
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ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from the
Company’s external auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
of the annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the role of the Company Secretary (‘Company
Secretary”) of the Company was performed by Mr. Fung Kwan
Ho (“Mr. Fung”). Mr. Fung is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He serves as a full-time employee and
assists the Board in functioning effectively and efficiently. According
to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Fung has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

F Rk K &
To the shareholders of Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 98 to 236, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ARICRAE Gt T BT » A RR PR 1 =

At : +852 2289 8888 » HH :

+852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

o Deferred income tax assets

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHETNAEERRETSE

1. Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

1. KRR BR#EE

Refer to Note 2.24 (Summary of significant
accounting policies) and Note 5 (Revenue
and segment information) to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

w20 EEBEFEAMBmRMF224(XE
EHBORBE) RWEs(E R HER) -

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group recognised revenue from sales of
goods amounted to RMB22,020 million.
BE2019F12ABALF R BEEE®ER
727 on 88 5 W e HET AR 22,0208 & 7T

Revenue is recognised when the Group
satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring the control of promised good
or service to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for that
good or service.

2 BEEERNTKAEFPEEE @R ZES
BOBRHOEE BEFiesERG E5£EEH
RXBZEERARBERESHORE 77

RIABEHE Y -

We focused on this area due to the huge
volume of revenue transactions generated
from sales of numerous kinds of products to
a large number of customers, including direct
customers and distributors in many different
locations.

MR BEEEAENE@EERHWRIRR
MBERZHEPRERHSEER BEIMHR
TR R B B B P A S - Bt AP
miHEWE R ERBERETFE

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s controls in
respect of the Group’s sales transactions. In addition, we tested the
general control environment of the Group’s information technology
systems and the automated controls that were related to revenue

recording.
BAESE AT REEEEY SEERMHEHERS2EH -
MvﬁﬁWW EEBERRMARZ — h?ﬂ&%‘lﬂﬁﬁw

smACER A B2 BB -

We conducted testing of revenue transactions on a sample basis by
examining the relevant supporting documents including customer
contracts and orders, goods delivery notes and good receipt
records. In addition, we circularised confirmations on a sample
basis on trade receivables balances as at the balance sheet date.
BMARAEEREEFPEAARITE REBERRIFFRAHEEN
B AR BB B M S R SR AT ORI B o A BPIM S B IR
HEREEREWE RN AERE L AFE R -

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date, by reconciling recognised
revenue with the goods delivery notes and good receipt records,
to assess whether revenue was recognised in the correct reporting
periods.

AN B EEBERBAAMERREHBANHEER 5ETA
BB EEREL G R - AT AR RS RS
FEEEHEER -

Based on the work performed, we found the Group’s revenue from
sales of goods being tested were supported by the evidences that
we obtained.
RBERPIPAAITOET TIE BFIRA
BERBREH-

B S BRE  an iH S ek
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEF AR ERARETSE

2. Deferred income tax assets

2 FEFTEHEE

Refer to Note 2.21 (Summary of significant
accounting policies), Note 4.1 (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and
Note 20 (Deferred income tax) to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

B2 EfREFaBRAME221(F2
SHEEME) Wik (BRI HERA
i) KMt 20 CGREPRISHL) ©

As at 31 December 2019, deferred income tax
assets of approximately RMB127 million were
recognised for tax losses that can be carried
forward in respect of certain subsidiaries in
Mainland China, to the extent that, realisation
of the related tax benefits through the
availability of future taxable profits is probable.
2019124310 - & S BRI AR KR
REAGEERNEMTFTSE st EAME
TP B8 N m St H R R BAR ] B 0 0 2 A%
BIEERECMENEERBORARK127

e —

BETTe

Significant judgement is required in
determining the recognition of deferred
income tax assets, considering whether
future taxable profit will be available against
which the accumulative tax losses can be
utilised. Management prepared a 5-year profit
forecast to assess the probability of generating
sufficient taxable profits in the foreseeable
future. The major assumptions involved were
revenue growth rate and gross profit margin.
FHURIERTIS M EEMN RIS N EZ HE - F
ZRINAKREEEESCHNEMATAEEE
NAREHNRAMBER - EREREOF G
A FERD - PART ik 70 AT 78 B % SR 22 A T 4 P AR5
%@mﬂ%ﬁoigﬁ§%&WE%E$&%
Rl 2K o

We focused on this area due to the inherent
complexity and judgements involved in the
forecast of the availability and timing of future
taxable profits based on which deferred
income tax assets were recognised.
EZRINZE A AT EREM I Bz
B B R IR R AN P15 FE Y AT B IR M Ko ELE
BIRYTER - B tE RBREE ST B 10 IR LR
PGB EDERR -
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As part of our risk assessment in this area, we compared the
current year actual results with the prior year forecast to consider,
with hindsight, whether key assumptions included in that forecast
had been subject to management bias.

ERAREN—FD BALRAFEERZEEBUARMFEZ
BANFER AR ERAGRNFEAT CERRRESFTEERRE
w5 e

We then evaluated and challenged management’s profit forecasts
for the next five years of individual entities that have accumulated
tax losses. Our assessment focused on certain key assumptions,
such as revenue growth rates and gross profit margin, by
comparing them to these entities’ historical operating results
and future operating plans, together with economic and industry
forecasts, where appropriate. We also considered the potential
impact of reasonably possible downside changes in these key
assumptions.
BAFHEABREEEHERANBEENER FRRIMENR
RAEFRMNBAZAEEE ERMNFEPERBEIXLEZR
RIEE PINR A RERMENE - FEBBLEBBEBRTARNE
SEHIE MR REEE WHESHEERITR AR (RER) -
FH0 HFI it PR EBRRRARELAN TRBEH AR EE
R EET BEITRE

The existence and amounts of tax losses, together with their expiry
dates, and the income tax rates applicable to the entities have
been verified by examining the tax returns submitted by the relevant
entities and reviewing the correspondences with the tax authorities.
BP@RERE FRAREE EHMMEURE T EREKEE 2 EH
NBRENBERNTE REOEREE FHOFRARZQFE
RE PSR -

Based on our work performed, we found that management’s
judgement and estimation for the recognition of deferred tax assets
were supported by the evidences that we obtained.
BREBERMPMITHET TE BHARR EREHHELEMEHE
ERRZ ARG EBEREBIE T
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the consolidated financial statements represent

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Dou Wang, Angel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement

HZE2019F12 8318 [FFE For

the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
B 5 ARET R ARBFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W Revenue 5 22,019,737 21,772,240
$HE P AR Cost of goods sold 6 (14,101,447)  (14,483,641)
EF Gross profit 7,918,290 7,288,599
HibUezs, (B5#E) —F%  Other gains/(losses) — net 7 14,142 (9,421)
H At g A Other income 8 360,095 382,406
H B Other expenses 6 (111,402) (117,463)
HE MR Selling and marketing expenses 6 (5,367,608) (5,097,691)
THRZ Administrative expenses 6 (1,007,196) (1,114,505)
KRR Operating profit 1,806,321 1,331,925
BEKA Finance income 209,472 169,617
A& KA Finance costs (57,466) (46,142)
BE WA —FEE Finance income — net 10 152,006 123,475
R EAERZ Share of profits of investments
FE(R 1% & i F accounted for using the
equity method 18 13,033 84,374
BRAT G B AT Profit before income tax 1,971,360 1,589,774
FTigBi Income tax expense 11 (605,148) (510,070)
FERAATERETEA Profit for the year and
FE{R &R attributable to equity holders
of the Company 1,366,212 1,029,704
FERQNTAEZERTA Earnings per share for
BiaR 28R 2 F profit attributable to equity
(LNERAREDIE) holders of the Company
during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
—EARNEE - Basic and diluted 12 31.63 cents 7 23.84 cents »

F105F236 8 7 Wi A A 4R

—55 -
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The notes on pages 105 to 236 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HZE2019612 8318 IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
B 5E AR¥TR AREKTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FERF Profit for the year 1,366,212 1,029,704
HizmWhzE (BE) : Other comprehensive income/
(loss):
RNE|E#FHF A EEwIEH  Items that may not be reclassified to
profit or loss
HERAFESFAEMEE  Gain on disposal of financial assets
WMo & E S at fair value through other
—BRTFHE comprehensive income, net of tax 19 92,058 -
BAFERA Fair value losses on financial
Efh2mE a2 assets at fair value through other
TRMEE A FEEIE comprehensive income, net of tax
—REUFER 19 (929) (3,472)
FEHMREE WL (EIE) Other comprehensive income/
—BRBLF R (loss) for the year, net of tax 91,129 (3,472)
FERAQAFAEREFEA Total comprehensive income
Ehz2EKREETE for the year and attributable
to equity holders of
the Company 1,457,341 1,026,232

$105E236H 2 M B AGA YT BH®AKZ  The notes on pages 105 to 236 are an integral part of these

—&m e consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
72019F12A31H As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
B 5 ARBTRT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
RBEE Non-current assets
VI BB KR Property, plant and equipment 14 8,902,118 9,906,103
T fb AR Land use rights 15 - 1,967,815
FRHEEE Right-of-use assets 15 1,832,541 -
A Investment properties 16 313,609 335,929
mREE Intangible assets 17 14,713 15,391
NEREARNRE Investments accounted for using
the equity method 18 780,118 747,837
BRFEERA Financial assets at fair value through
HEt2EKENemEE other comprehensive income 19 6,027 218,621
RIERFHEE Deferred income tax assets 20 344,188 328,684
H b pEUk k18 —JERNEAER S Other receivables
— non-current portion 24 15,816 11,912
REIFEHTFR Long-term time deposits 25 2,530,000 550,000
14,739,130 14,082,292
REBEE Current assets
rE Inventories 22 1,738,962 1,459,019
JEUNE ZER A N K Trade and bills receivables 23 569,064 530,062
TR R Prepayments, deposits and other
2 & H M fEGRIE receivables 24 710,983 1,002,819
B AT Y Bl AT IS R A R Current income tax recoverable 45,403 31,888
Hae MBITES Cash and bank balances 25 3,953,500 4,626,478
7,017,912 7,650,266
HEE Total assets 21,757,042 21,732,558
= EQUITY
EAREREFEEA Equity attributable to equity
iR holders of the Company
[N Share capital 26 39,764 39,764
& 15 4 18 BR Share premium account 26 4,829,899 4,829,899
Hth 1 Other reserves 27 2,767,524 2,506,851
RE BT Retained earnings 5,995,743 5,845,793
MR Total equity 13,632,930 13,222,307
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REEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet
R2019%12 8318 As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
M FE AR®T T AREF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
aE LIABILITIES
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
EEFSH AR Deferred income tax liability 20 228,788 183,094
HEaE - ERNEES Lease liabilities — non-current portion 15 21,865 -
H b (T 5008 — JEBDHEAEE > Other payables — non-current portion 29 232,357 237,655
483,010 420,749
REERE Current liabilities
FERTE SRR Trade payables 28 1,723,416 1,554,219
B ENFRIBENEREA Other payables and accruals 29 2,546,002 2,753,153
AHEaE Contract liabilities 5(b) 2,104,004 1,698,986
= Borrowings 30 1,162,867 1,987,726
HEBE Lease liabilities 15 22,376 -
EHIFERAE Current income tax liabilities 82,437 95,418
7,641,102 8,089,502
FR=R Total liabilities 8,124,112 8,510,251
EERAEAE Total equity and liabilities 21,757,042 21,732,558

E105%236 B 2 M sE R A

— 85

F98E236H AR A B 75 ik B 202043 A
SHEEESHE WA TIATRERES
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REMBmERZ

consolidated financial statements.

signed on its behalf.

‘EX B
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
HITEF HITEF

Executive Director

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Executive Director

The notes on pages 105 to 236 are an integral part of these

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 236 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2020 and were
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2019912 8318 IFFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

RAREREEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BRA R4 B Hitf# e REEF At
Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total

WeE  ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARBTL ARETL
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000

R2018F1 1A 2 &8 Balance at 1 January 2018 39,764 4,829,899 2,351,131 5,594,683 12,815,477
EA 6 Comprehensive income
FREN Profit for the year - - - 1,029,704 1,029,704
HEthzmiis Other comprehensive income
—HATEFAEMBEE - Fair value losses on financial
Hﬁl A EREE assets at fair value through other
REEEE-RIUFHE comprehensive income, net of tax 19 - - (3472) - (3,472)
Hit2HRELE Total other comprehensive income - - (3,472) - (8,472)
FEZZAENGARE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (3,472) 1,029,704 1,026,232
RBEGAETZRS Transaction with owners
BREATCHRE Appropriation to statutory reserves 27(c) - - 159,192 (159,192) -
H017E BB KA Dividends relating to 2017 - - - (619,402) (619,402)
R2018F12831H 2 &%  Balance at 31 December 2018 39,764 4,829,899 2,506,851 5,845,793 13,222,307
H2019FE1 B1A 2 &% Balance at 1 January 2019 39,764 4,829,899 2,506,851 5,845,793 13,222,307
2EKER Comprehensive income
FERF Profit for the year - - - 1,366,212 1,366,212
Hit2ElE Other comprehensive income

“HEBATESALM - Ganon disposal of financial
2EBENEREEL assets at fair value through other

FE-BHEE comprehensive income, net of tax 19 - - 92,058 - 92,058
—BATEFAEMBEE - Fair value losses on financial
uﬁl TR ERMEEL assets at fair value through other
ATEBE-KRRFE comprehensive income, net of tax 19 - - (929) - (929)
Htt2EREEE Total other comprehensive income - - 91,129 - 91,129
FEZEEKRAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 91,129 1,366,212 1,457,341
HESRMEERFBE A Transfer of net fair value losses
EEZ DT RERBENUR  previously taken to reserves, and
HERATES AR gains on disposal of financial
PEBENEREEL assets at fair value through other
FEREZRERA comprehensive income, to retained
earnings upon disposal of the
financial assets 19 - - (70,700) 70,700 -
BEGAETZRS Transaction with owners
BRELTRE Appropriation to statutory reserves 27(c) - - 240,244 (240,244) =
E20185E AW 25 Dividends relating to 2018 - - - (1,046718)  (1,046,718)
R2019F12A31A 248  Balance at 31 December 2019 39,764 4,829,899 2,767,524 5,995,743 13,632,930

1052236 B 2B ALZE T BREK 2 The notes on pages 105 to 236 are an integral part of these
— &5 e consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HZE2019612 8318 IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
B 5E AR¥TR AREKTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BETBHRERE Cash flows from operating
activities
BEEACES Cash generated from operations 31 3,574,416 3,110,451
ERFEREZ Interest expenses paid (73,382) (57,752)
BEAFTER Income tax paid (631,693) (489,495)
BERYELEZFES Net cash generated from
operating activities 2,869,341 2,563,204
RETEZHERE Cash flows from investing
activities
XA b fE AR RIE Payment for land use rights - (275)
HE TR M- Proceeds from disposal of
TR 5= R 3 2 FT1S 3R land use rights and property,
plant and equipment 31 - 71,388
HEFREEE WX Proceeds from disposal of
BB M2 MEIA right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment 31 291,903 -
EEWE BB L& HE Purchases of property,
plant and equipment (504,025) (908,149)
BERAME Purchases of investment properties (792) (2,747)
BEENEE Purchases of intangible assets (7,433) (4,826)
HEZAFEFAEMEE  Proceeds from disposal of financial
WHNemEE L assets at fair value through other
FriS 38 comprehensive income 333,960 -
HEZAFEFABEDN Proceeds from sales of financial
TRUEE IS RIR assets at fair value through
profit or loss - 60,000
U —RHERIEHIEEEZEIN  Payment for acquisition of additional
AN interest in a jointly controlled entity 18 (39,299) -
S BR IR 7717 5K &9 3E 0 Increase in restricted bank deposits (467) (33)
FIHAE R =R A Increases in time deposits with
e e pill maturity more than 3 months (1,563,720)  (2,661,119)
BeERER Dividends received from
—REE QR S joint ventures and an associate 18 20,051 56,253
JEEBA 2 F RS Net cash used in investing activities (1,469,822) (3,389,508)
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SABERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HZE2019912 8318 IFFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Bt & AR®TR ARETET
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
AMETECREERE Cash flows from financing
activities
RITEESHIA Proceeds from bank borrowings 31 17,999,981 17,013,970
EBEFRTEE Repayments of bank borrowings 31 (18,823,680) (16,361,483)
HEMNREAESHS Principal elements of lease payment 31 (34,974) -
FARAERFER A Dividends paid to equity holders
XHRE of the Company (1,046,718) (619,402)
MEES (FTA) WEZ Net cash (used)/received in
FRE financing activities (1,905,391) 33,085
RERRELEEBEYHDFERE  Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (505,872) (793,219)
FUZzHe MRS EED Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 1,563,945 2,356,350
RekB2ZEM Exchange (losses)/gain on cash
EX (BB HMiE and cash equivalents (1,293) 814
FRZ2BEeRASEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 25 1,056,780 1,563,945

51055236 H v Mt B A A BMA 2  The notes on pages 105 to 236 are an integral part of these
— & e consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant
noodles in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the
“PRC Beverages and Instant Noodles Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRS”). They have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments) measured at fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following amendments to standards relevant to the

Group are mandatorily adopted for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

o Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation — Amendments to HKFRS 9

o Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures — Amendments to HKAS 28

° Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2015
- 2017 Cycle

o Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement —
Amendments to HKAS 19

° Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

The Group had to change its accounting policies as
a result of adopting HKFRS 16. The Group elected to
adopt the new rules retrospectively but recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard
on 1 January 2019. This is disclosed in Note 2.2. Most
of the other amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.

(b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
and amendments to standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2019 and have
not been early adopted:

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on
or after
Amendments to Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
HKFRS 3
Amendments to Definition of Material 1 January 2020
HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Revised Conceptual  Revised Conceptual 1 January 2020
Framework Framework for
Financial Reporting
Amendments to IBOR Reform and its 1 January 2020
HKFRS 9, Effects on Financial
HKAS 39 and Reporting - Phase 1
HKFRS 7
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
16 “Leases” on the Group’s financial statements and
discloses the new accounting policies that have been
applied from 1 January 2019.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from
1 January 2019, but has not restated comparatives
for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the
specific transitional provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The new
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.27 - Leases.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of
HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 3.9%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

()  Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has

used the following practical expedients permitted by the

standard:

° the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of

leases with reasonably similar characteristics

° reliance on previous assessments on whether

leases are onerous

° the accounting for operating leases with a

remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at

1 January 2019 as short-term leases

° the exclusion of initial direct costs for the

measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date

of initial application, and

o the use of hindsight in determining the lease term

where the contract contains options to extend or

terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether

a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial

application. Instead, for contracts entered into before

the transition date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 and (HK)IFRIC 4 Determining

whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.
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2 EEETTHRME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
22 BIHEZEE (&) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) HEEEZITE (i)  Measurement of lease liabilities
2019
AR%T
RMB’000
MR2018F12A31HEE 2 Operating lease commitments disclosed
B A as at 31 December 2018 66,550
R Less:
BREBEEERRARAY 2 Short-term leases recognised on
REEE a straight-line basis as expense (8,952)
57,598

¥R FE R B BRER AR A TS Discounted using the lessee’s incremental
BB EEIR - 2019561 H1H borrowing rate of at the date of

mRZHEEAE initial application, lease liability
recognised as at 1 January 2019 53,478
AU TIEERE: Represented by:
B EaRE Current lease liabilities 22,011
JERNERTRE B & Non-current lease liabilities 31,467

53,478
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2 EESHBXEE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
22 BFBEZBE (&) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) FEHELEZE (i)  Measurement of right-of-use assets
FRAEEEDNRETEESFERE The right-of use assets were measured at the amount
& FET 2 WH M2018412 A31 equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
AMEERBERANEREZEE of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
BN EREN KK ETHEN to that lease recognised in the balance sheet as at
HNEEELERABZE-RYIXERB 31 December 2018. There were no onerous lease
B BEEETERESN B ER contracts that would have required an adjustment to the
HEEFHAE: right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.
2019
AR®T T
RMB’000
R2019F1 A1E Rz HEAE Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 53,478
i Add:
72018F 12 A31 B #R Rental prepayments recognised as at
sk U 31 December 2018 3,929
T EREEN S Reclassification of land use rights 1,967,815

R2019F1 A1 B HRMEAMEEE Right-of-use assets recognised
as at 1 January 2019 2,025,222

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] z] »]
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iv)  Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on
1 January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following
items in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

° right-of-use assets — increase by RMB2,025,222,000

o prepayments — decrease by RMB3,929,000

° land use rights — decrease by RMB1,967,815,000

o lease liabilities (current portion) — increase by

RMB22,011,000

° lease liabilities (non-current portion) — increase by
RMB31,467,000

There was no impact on retained earnings on 1 January
2019.

(v) Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor under operating
leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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2.3 WELQF 2.3 Subsidiaries
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2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

(@  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(@)  Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with HKFRS
9 either in the income statement or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 EESTTHREE (&)

23 MBEATE (&) 2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
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2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in the income statement. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to income statement.

2.8.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Principle of equity accounting

2.4.1 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (Note 2.4.3), after initially being recognised
at cost.

2.4.2 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement.

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (Note 2.4.3), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 EESTTHREE (&)

24 #EETHERR (E) 2.4 Principle of equity accounting (Continued)
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2.4.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity. Unrealised gains
on transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.10.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 EESTTHREE (&)

26 IEBE (&) 2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
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(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities held at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCI") are included in the fair
value reserves in other comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

()  Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statements during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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27 ME -BMERFZE () 2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as

follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’, in the
income statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 2 — 5 years.
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2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
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Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use - are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in the income statement or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.11.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
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2.11.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in the income statement and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in ‘administrative expenses’
in the income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
2.11.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
the income statement and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in the income
statement as other income when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from

other changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.4 Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 3.1(b) for further
details.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of item being hedged. Derivative instruments
held by the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of these derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 2.11.2 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
Note 2.11.4 and 3.1 (b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.16 Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Borrowing costs

2.21

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

(@

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Qutside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and where the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxed levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)
(Continued)

The Group has participated in defined contribution
plans administered by the relevant authorities in the
PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong for its employees. The
Group is required to pay monthly contributions to these
plans at certain percentages of the relevant portion of
the payroll of the employees to fund the benefits. The
relevant authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to the existing and future
retired employees of the Group under these plans and
the Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells beverages and
instant noodles. Sales are recognised when control
of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, the customer
has full discretion over the channel and price to sell
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped
to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The products are often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a period of
time. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is
only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability
(included in other payables and accruals) is recognised
for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales. No significant element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit
term of 60-90 days, which is consistent with market
practice.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of good’s (Continued)

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such
returns at the time of sale. Because of the large size
and low value of each individual product, the amount of
products returned were immaterial. It is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability
for goods return was recognized. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion
activities, the Group did not provide a distinct good
or service to customers and therefore recorded as a
deduction of sales price.

The Group does not expect to have any contract
containing financing components. As a consequence,
the Group does not adjust any of the transition prices
for the time value of money.

2.25 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.
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Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.26 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 10 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

2.27 Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed
its accounting policy for leases where the Group is
the lessee. The new policy is described below and the
impact of the change as mentioned in Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were
not transferred to the Group as lessee were classified
as operating leases (Note 32). Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease. Payments for land
use rights were recorded in prepayments for land use
rights assets and amortisation was charged to income
statement on a straight line basis over the period of the
land use rights.
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2 EEETNBRME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
227 HE (1) 2.27 Leases (Continued)

B2019F1H1HR HEBRRE From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-

FAEEE WEHEZEEAHAR of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
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HENRMFABENGTE - extension options are also included in the measurement
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HEMNZERBENESHHX The lease payments are discounted using the interest
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2 EESTHEBE(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.27 HHE (&) 2.27 Leases (Continued)
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Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability, and

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2019 F i ,I 89



e MR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHREE (&)

227 HHE (E)

KAREHE (AEEER/TLHE
AN) 2 HEWAREEAAERE
U ATER (HIaE16) - AR
LG M E ST Z HI8 B &K A
AHEREENRE SR WRHES
WA BT E W AR R Y B R
RAX - ZSHEEERBERSFME
FFABERER - ANEMAHMEE
R AEREHAERER/LEAM
FRAMBEENSFHAFEREMA

%%o

228 RREBERAREE

140

HABET) —HEBE SR A
EENAE MZEBEFMHNF
EEATHR-BEXZRTIFAAE
EEREHN AR THABRESD
FHELEE -HARBBETAR—
HRTKAEFTERALHEER
HAEZ SRR EEFEM
ARERZBEEHEEZRA X
Mo

KARBERT AR - ED KB H
BERPWE - WEALEERZA
REMELREHBEAAIETRER
REER XA BESERR
Bim-o

SREEEEAREEOEET
REENEE HEEERER
BAEE R AT 20— E
% T8N HE R 5 A IR R O 8
-

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2019 F#§

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.27 Leases (Continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 16). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of
adopting the new leasing standard.

2.28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(Continued)

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk
0 Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the USD for
certain PRC subsidiaries whose functional currency are
Renminbi (‘RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.
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108,0007T) " e EEHNBMEI
ENLRABTLHENEEURRS
RIRITHEMRTERMIE N EER,
G-

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has set up a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against their functional currency. To manage their
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities,
entities in the Group use forward contracts outside the
PRC, transacted by group treasury. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from recognised assets or
liabilities, such as trade and bills receivables (Note 23),
cash and bank balances (Note 25) and borrowings
(Note 30), part of which are denominated in United
States dollar (‘USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (‘HKD”).

As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2019 would have been
approximately RMB167,000 lower/higher (2018:
RMB108,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD and HKD
denominated borrowings and cash and bank balances.
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BHRERER (&)

31 HEERRAEAX (E)
(@ FEERE (&)
0 SMNEESE (E)

[R\ B A

TR AEENHERRTE
EERINERR (AARB T T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

() Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Exposure

The Group’s major exposure to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period, expressed in RMB’000,

HME) : was as follows:
e
NERTFHE N atE BEHiHE
Other
usb HKD currencies
denominated denominated denominated
R2019512A31R As at 31 December 2019
Be Cash 10,166 3,655 1,713
B E 585 Trade receivables 1,213 3,395 -
RITIEE Bank borrowings (9,767) - -
2018F12A31H As at 31 December 2018
Re Cash 14,968 2,653 206
EWE SEX Trade receivables 1,564 3,231 -
RITIRE Bank borrowings (13,726) - -

RIBamRER ISR

FRADRBRRER T ZIMNE

Amounts recognised in the income statement

During the year, the following foreign-exchange related

RS amounts were recognised in the income statement:
2019 2018
AR®T R AR®TTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEWA—FE Finance income — net
—BEEEEN — Foreign exchange (losses)/gains
(&), FE on financing activities (132) 344

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3 MBERERE (&)

3.1 WHEEREZ (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

144

@ wmEmEE(E)
(i) EEELR

AEBBEZ ELTAEFRERE
ERBERTOBE/BEAFETA
HEth 2w (eE19) A% E
B A AR E 5 2 EANERR
RN JE TR DL N
SEMEECREELE ZERE

B o

IARBRERATAHERE LK
AEREME A HEDZEM SR
BmMEE-

M2019F12 8318 - T B Hitb
DHREFETE BREATTHEEZ
BEMBRELFA T EI0%
AEEANLAHEE ZIEAFER
AHME2EBRENEESEDS
BERBEBELN RO OARE
0.6EHT (2018F : ARKO0.7H

e —

gt °

MAKREAFEAREBEBNRAR
B RFESERANERTISER
EARFHZMEMETE - mHER
EETLrREERRNMAE-

(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to major equity securities price
risk because of its holding of listed equity investments
which are classified on the consolidated balance sheet
as FVOCI (Note 19). The Group has not hedged its price
risk arising from investments in equity securities financial
assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly
traded, the fair value is determined with reference to
quoted market prices.

As at 31 December 2019, if the quoted market price of
the listed equity investments had increased/decreased
by 10% with all other variables held constant, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s publicly traded FVOCI
and total equity would be approximately RMBO0.6 million
(2018: RMBO0.7 million) higher/lower than the current
value.

For the Group’s equity investments that are not
publicly traded, the fair value is determined with
reference to valuations based on a combination of
income and market approaches. The market approach
takes reference to certain multiples of publicly traded
companies.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 HM¥EKRERE (F) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
31 HEERRAEAX (E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) THERE (&)
(i) Bz jmE R IN-FEFEER

FRIRE R IRITHE AR (HMIEE25) JtE
& (PMEE30) B B4N - R & E I &%
THEBERGFEEERAE

REEZ A ERER KB RITHFR
LEE - FERITERRERES

SEAZRSREN KRR - Mk
RERAGEAKREARAFE
MERER - A EESERERESR
ERAFENXERETEMY
e SRITIF SRR AE B RO R R K 5
7 Bl B 5RO BT £ 25 K MY 7E30 ©

MR2019F 128318 - WA A HAth
BHRIFTE  RITFAREEF
KHF, FBIEAOOE L, NEE
BMemnfgegm mIouAR
#39,888,0007T (20184 : A &
#624,477,0007T) + EEHR BT
REERFI BUAIE I, R - SO
BENMEEREHE-

(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and bank balances (Note 25) and
borrowings (Note 30) with interest charges, the Group
have no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 25 and Note 30 respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB39,888,000 (2018: RMB24,477,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank balances which would offset partially
by interest expenses on borrowings.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 MBERERE (&)

3.1

146

BEREREE (&)
(b) EFERE

FERBRKRERHARS FE
) REBHAAN - R ERAR
fib 2 H W MR A P E AR
JIRMEBEBIAZAHNRE M
BENTESRITARTFRRNR
TREMBEBNRE  ARBER
ZEEFPNEERR  BREAWER
Z & WK A »

0 EREE

EERRULEEFAERE -
2019 12A31H  BEHRITHEXK
RETHESDEREERITER
BEFERRRERNSBEE-
TRBTRERSGFESWIEITH

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried
at amortised cost, at FVOCI and at FVPL, favourable
derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks
and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding
receivables.

() Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. As at 31
December 2019, the bank deposits and cash at bank
were deposited in reputable financial institutions which
are considered with low credit risk. The table below
shows bank deposits and cash at bank balances by

RERITE S & H counterparties:
2019 2018
ARET T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

R Counterparties

— R MWER7T* - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 868,285 158,665
—HINEERTT — Foreign owned banks 3,118,076 1,234,429
—HiHAFEIRT — Other domestic commercial banks 2,496,468 3,782,073
6,482,829 5,175,167

* MAFEEARTEERET
BIRITIRDARRE PR
RITRMBR AR REETR
MARRA A BEZERRITR
[ZELENGIE

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.



e BB R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 BEBRERERE (&)

3.1

B¥REBEE (&)
(b) =EEE (&)
() EREE(E)

HEABESRBILAE  AIER
ZER B WELBBULF
A REBRENEFEEPONERE
- RANEEEMBAR  BEL
BUNEMEAR - RREFSREN
PR - B AR PR B 2 1R A R kS
BARRE - BREEECHE
BUBREFPHERBEENETH

HRTESRTA  EEERHE
PREE - B RME B A E A
HFEFARHREBMAEMEGHD
FEAZI0%

AEEREBTANRERER
BRREE REHEER/L K
SEEeEERENERATR-

AEEEREENE S EWKRIA
B rEHEERREA-

BEREMNRSEFEYNAET
BEMHEREENFIRANRER
E-EDBEAARERELTNE
j(a

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
0 Risk management (Continued)

If wholesale customers are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent
rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are
set based on internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit
limits by wholesale customers is regularly monitored by
line management.

For derivative financial instruments, management has
established limits so that, at any time, less than 10%
of the fair value of favourable contracts outstanding are
with any individual counterparty.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are
considered to be low risk investments. The credit
ratings of the investments are monitored for credit
deterioration.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of goods that
are subject to the expected credit loss model.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2019 F i /I 47



)

B R EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 MBERERE (&)

3.1

148

mEREREE (F)
(b) EEERE (&)
(i) ZEEERE(E)
FEYE 5 iR

AEERBELEVBREEDSE
O A EEREEREE
RNPHERE SAEERKES
B EREETERANRSE
%°E%§%%ETE% W E
RERBEGEEERR
&L%%@“@ E%%ﬁi'%
20194 12H31H k2018412 A
BTHEENRKEZRANEHN
BEMBRBEIRNOT

2019§12A31A 31 December 2019

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018 was determined as
follows for both trade receivables and contract assets:

ROOKRK  91E180% 181Z365Kk  —FMLE Bt
Within 91 to 181 to Over
90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total

BEHBALE Expected loss rate

BERAE Gross carrying amount
-ERE SRR — frade receivables

BEEE Loss allowance

201812A31A 31 December 2018

0.85% 16.39% 76.57% 100.00%

541,169 36,124 2,189 1,098 580,580
4,608 5,922 1,676 1,098 13,304
MOORA  91E180K 181E365Kk  —FME B3t
Within 91 to 18110 Over
90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total

BHERLE Expected loss rate

BEHE Gross carrying amount
~ERE SRR — trade receivables

BRRE Loss allowance

0.82% 16.86% 71.28% 100.00%

504,102 35,402 2,337 1,870 543,711
4,145 5,968 1,666 1,870 13,649

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 BEBRERERE (&)

3.1

MBEEEE (&)

(b) EFEREE (&)

(i) 2EEERE ()
JEWE FBRF (&)
201912 A31H - B E 5 Bk

R BRERBEBEESDNE
REEIIRMT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at
31 December 2019 are reconciled to the opening losses
allowances as follows:

2019 2018
AR®T T AR¥EFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M ATER Opening loss allowance as at 1 January
Hi V) s 18 13,649 15,478
FAREBERRBERL Increase/(decrease) in loss allowance
EEREEm recognised in the income statement
ORtA) (MIEEe) during the year (Note 6) 2,020 (1,702)
RERNER/TAIE Receivables written off during
FIBMIEEEUEETK  the year as uncollectible (2,365) (127)
M12A31HH Closing loss allowance as at
HRE R 31 December 13,304 13,649

EAGFEA W@ A IR
AEBSMIERKE 5N - T
FErAI @ e &R ERNIEREE
(8 EHABERRAEE
KR AT 8l R AL i R 8
60 H 290 H M BRFK1F i & 49 1 5K
(A -

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than 60-90
days past due (credit terms).

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 MBERERE (&)

3.1

150

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

mEREREE (F) 3.1
(b) EEERE (&)

(i) ZEEERE(E)

FEYE SR (&)

EWE ZEROBREBBEREE
A2 BT - g4
FRIE MBS B AR —R
H o

BRI R At REE

REBHERAI Rz B REE
B A HL At I8 W R TR HL A B MR TR
MEDZI2EAEREEERR
2HEREEERITE RYEE
R B VIR EREED A KNEE
AT FE © fis FE MR IR 2 (5 B LR B
Via R R IRIZ N - BET IR 2
HEREERRE-

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as administrative expenses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses
or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.
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3 BEBRERERE (&)

3.1

B¥REBEE (&)
(b) FEmLE (&)
(i) TEEENRE (&)

REaXERAZEREERERR
S (FIf5) 28

FR-ERESREEAHEN T
BiE (/)R EBaRPHT
BRI AT IAER:

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Net impairment losses/(gains) on financial assets
recognised in the income statement

During the year, the following losses/(gains) were
recognised in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income
statement in relation to impaired financial assets:

2019 2018
ARBTT AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EWE SBEZRN Movement in loss allowance for
B R AR E E) trade receivables 2,020 (1,702)

(i) BLFIEGFARGH T BEE

BRETHBEHERATESABZ
MEBKREBBCEERR X
201912 A31H Kk2018F 124
IR ELESRERE ZRK-

) REBEZEE

BEHEZRDESRAREESEE
RRAZRERASEEY EB
RERAMZEARBCEERERE
MBS RES REEMS
BT 2N -AEEZBRET#
RAMZCAEEERERE.
NERAEEEARTHMRERZ
EerHtEA-

(i) Financial assets at FVPL

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in relation to
debt investments that are measured at FVPL. There was
no exposure to such financial assets at 31 December
2019 and at 31 December 2018.

(¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3.1

152

BsEEEE ()
) nmEBELEE (HF)

TRAEAREHEZERAEI N
ZRABESNGEERZAMNIIHA
ZHTHERFEREBIHAE
AABE - RANAIBRBESRAAH
AERBRERE -

A&H Group

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

PR-% -EWME WERE BBIF st
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total

ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT
RMB'OOO ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

R2019F12A31R As at 31 December 2019

f5E Borrowings 1,162,867 - - - 1,162,867
EEFENRK Interest payments on borrowings 2,302 = = = 2,302
HEEE Lease liabilities 23,604 18,283 4,048 13 45,948
ENESER Trade payables 1,723,416 - - - 1,723,416
Hiv B HIER Other payables and accruals,

[EZT B (excluding non-financial liabilties)

(TeE2BAR) 2,074,813 - - - 2,074,813
HipRHENFIE  Other long term payables - 232,357 - - 232,357

4,987,002 250,640 4,048 13 5,241,703

MN20185F12A318  As at 31 December 2018
EE Borrowings 1,987,726 - - - 1,987,726
EEFMBRT Interest payments on borrowings 39,528 - - - 39,528
ENESER Trade payables 1,554,219 - - - 1554219
Hiv R HIER Other payables and accruals,

BB (excluding non-financial liabilities)

(TeEELBAE) 2,341,946 - - - 2,341,946
HivRHENFIE  Other long term payables - 237,655 - - 237,655

5,923,419 237,655 - 6,161,074

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BHRERER (&)

3.1

3.2

B¥REBEE (&)
(C) ///Lﬁﬁf”m(%)

EEMBNRNIREZBNEE
FEUEEEARKEE T
REBEERAERNNEREER

EXRAmER

AEEERERNZBORRER
SEHEBURBERLETARBBRR
REDMUR BEMERITE A
wARAE - Y EERREEAERE
OB DB RS

RERFIARELRGE  AEET
HEABRRREZ 28 #1T
MR EEENR D ER-

BITERA AT~ AR EIRE
ARAMEERRAR  EAR
ff b S T R OB SRR DA K
L

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
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3 MKEBER (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.2 EXREKMEE (&) 3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
AEENXRBEFELRAAGER The Group's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
T TER50% © 20195 & below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2019
201812 A1 HM AR A KL X and 2018 are as follows:
LU
2019 2018
AR%T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
@EE (REHEEAMRE) Total borrowings
(M9 3E15 % Fff 5£30) (including lease liabilities)
(Note 15 and Note 30) 1,207,108 1,987,726
B BRERTFR Less: cash and deposits
(MF5E25) (Note 25) (6,483,500) (5,176,478)
il Net cash (5,276,392) (3,188,752)
B Total equity 13,632,930 13,222,307
BE TR Total capital 8,356,538 10,033,555
EREBHEX Gearing ratio -63.14% -31.78%
ARAEBENFRESMN  KE The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 was
ER2019F12A31AMELRAE negative since the Group is in net cash position.
LEEABEH-
/I 64 #i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 HMEBERERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 AFEME 3.3 Fair value estimation
TRAGBBEZED TIZAFESE The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
JeMIA -ZEBAEREMOT: fair value by valuation method. The different levels have

been defined as follows:

e HRAEEZABGEERM e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
SR RE (REFHE) (F1 identical assets or liabilities (level 1).
) e

e BRIFIEMBREMNRE *  Inputs other than quoted prices included within
I ZEERBEZAER level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
2 Hpveg A 0] B EE (H either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
BlanfE &) sk @ (BR & is, derived from prices) (level 2).

E1%) (F28) -

o EENABBWIEKEAER e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
MIZEIE 2 @ A (B IER] B on observable market data (that is, unobservable
=EA) (F3E) - inputs) (level 3).

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I 55
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3 UHBERER (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 AFEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
TRETRAESESBMEEN2019 The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
FR2018F12H31HEE 2 A F that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2019
B and 2018.

20194 20184
12H831H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
AR®BT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
BAFERA FVOCI (Note 19)
H2mas (MEE19)
—F1E — Level 1 6,027 6,956
— %38 - Level 3 - 211,665
6,027 218,621
REZE2019F12A31B ILFE - During the year ended 31 December 2019, there are no
HESRIAEAFTEMERAT transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
BEEAETEEDRER  BRER in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
BEZEEEB /M KERA MR also no changes in the classification of financial assets
TRMEEMNDH as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.

/I 66 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 BEBRERERE (&)

3.3

DNFEGE (&)

3.3.1 @ /HEE L -FlE
(E1E)

AEBEZFIBRETZERERE
BRI FTER ETA D 2 RE - %R
BZRFEDREREERZT

LRE M EE -

3.3.2 ABAT BB EE
RFE (E3E)

HZE2019F12A31HILEFE
mEEANFEFAELCEZEKE
EHEMEIETA (2018F : AR
#211,665,0007C) - AE B E R
2019 W E A MR A FEEF A
Hith2EWR=EMMNEIEILA-
BREAFHBENMEI -

R2019F12A31H I A FE
AEME2EWRFZNEMEEZE
HLEEFENFEHEE -

4 BARSTHHERIE

AEBEEERRRGFENG AR
ERETERMEMETETHE 857
EBERBRTEHRKEFORETEA -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1)

The Group’s investments in level 1 mainly comprise
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair
values of the investments are determined based on the
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

There were no level 3 instruments related to FVOCI
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB211,665,000). The Group disposed all level 3
instruments related to FVOCI in 2019. Details are set
out in Note 19.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts
of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income approximated their fair values.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@) Fair value of FVOCI

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market, such as equity interest classified
as FVOCI (Note 19) is determined by using valuation
techniques (Note 3.3). The Group uses its judgment to
select a variety of methods and to make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date. The effect of the changes in
one or more of the inputs has been disclosed in Note
3.3 above.

(b) Income taxes and deferred income tax assets

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(b) Income taxes and deferred income tax assets
(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group would
need to increase/decrease the deferred tax assets by
RMB12,729,000 (2018: RMB10,919,000).

(c¢) Estimated impairment of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment

Land use right and property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2019 F i ,I 5 9



=y

BF 5 R 2% MY &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 BARSTHEERFE
(%)

4.1

160

RIS EERRR (&)

) L1HEFERYF BERR
w2z igatmE (&)

EEEAREEMETE L H
B LEEENMG  ()REACEE
SHBETNBHEEEENRERX
WE: () —HEEZREAERSR
AT LAE AT Bl & 58 (BI 2 F B R
HERAABREBNEBHE
ABEBEEMMGENRRRER
EREFEIBEE ) B+ R
RwEERERERBKERAE
ENTIERR ULEHEBRIRE
BRAREERAEMNLL RRE -
ERENERERMERZRR
(BRREREFRORER EH R
RIBRE) AR - A LR ER
ATHNREFEENEATE
I B i AN S B 2 B s RO R AR
EREEKRTE - WBAEERA
HEEORKRRERERANBE
RAMES AR ERREEEE
Wan R ERBE SR

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2019 F#§

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections and whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take
an impairment charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales
and business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a
product perspective, management assesses the performance
of beverages, instant noodles and others. The executive
directors assess the performance of operating segments
based on segment profit or loss. Other information provided,
except as noted below, to the executive directors is measured
in @ manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

The majority of the Group’s sales are through distributors and
no revenues from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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5 WaEksMBER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(a MEFR (@) Segment information
#H £20194F &2018F12A31H The segment information for the year ended 31
IEFE2OHERDT December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:
2019
&R HEM Hitr AAE A58
Instant
Beverages noodles Others Unallocated Group
ARBTR AR%¥Tn ARETn AR%®Trn AR%¥Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DBEE Segment results
Wozs Revenue 12,730,490 8,500,711 788,536 - 22,019,737
WA TR 2 B ] Timing of revenue recognition
TER—BEE At a point in time 12,730,490 8,500,711 615,394 - 21,846,595
E—-RERR Over time - - 173,142 - 173,142
12,730,490 8,500,711 788,536 - 22,019,737
b/ (BR) Segment profit/(loss) 1,614,295 490,015 48,964  (346,953) 1,806,321
BBERA-FE Finance income - net - - - 152,006 152,006
WEREANR 2B Share of profit of investments
RERHM accounted for using the
equity method 44,441 - - (31,408) 13,033
BRETET AR T Profit before income tax 1,971,360
EHRRX Income tax expense (605,148)
FERF Profit for the year 1,366,212
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 940,322 274,030 61,753 108,852 1,384,957
BE ) Assets 8,354,300 3,421,359 934,238 8,267,027 20,976,924
R EANRNERE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 575,533 - - 204,585 780,118
GEE Total assets 8,929,833 3,421,359 034,238 8,471,612 21,757,042
aE Liabilities 3,612,398 2,857,772 259,295 1,394,647 8,124,112
BERE Total liabilities 8,124,112
REERBEE Addition to non-current assets 43,999 245,461 5,845 113,677 408,982
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WEkoBER (F) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
DEER (E) (@) Segment information (Continued)
2018
B HfEME Hity AAE Y8 3E |
Instant
Beverages noodles Others  Unallocated Group
ARBTT AREBTT AR®TT AR®Tn ARET:
RMB'000O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
PEEE Segment results
gz Revenue 12,619,416 8,425,149 727 675 - 21,772,240
W R 2 B ] Timing of revenue recognition
EX K At a point in time 12,619,416 8,425,149 556,720 - 21,601,285
E—RERA Over time - - 170,955 - 170,955
12,619,416 8,425,149 727,675 - 21,772,240
DEbER,/ (i) Segment profit/(loss) 1,285,022 460,927 26,075  (440,099) 1,331,925
BEBEKA-FE Finance income - net - - - 123,475 123,475
DR EARZEG Share of profit/(loss) of
BB,/ (FE) investments accounted for
using the equity method 32,133 - - 52,241 84,374
BRETE B A& F Profit before income tax 1,539,774
FBRAY Income tax expense (510,070)
FEEF Profit for the year 1,029,704
BERAMIIE Other segment items included
2HEE in the income statement
MENEH Depreciation and amortisation 960,298 221,898 70,638 115,352 1,368,186
ITBEERERE Segment assets and liabilities
BE Assets 10,447,079 3,157,950 709,294 6,670,398 20,984,721
BREZZEARNRE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 551,143 - - 196,694 747,837
BEE Total assets 10,998,222 3,157,950 709,294 6,867,092 21,732,558
BfE Liabilities 3,498,190 2,448,781 360,300 2,202,980 8,510,251
BERE Total liabilities 8,510,251
REERBEE Addition to non-current assets 627,330 277,112 41,387 39,936 985,765
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5 KWaEkosBEH (&)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(@

Segment information (Continued)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash
and bank balances, investment properties and related
right-of-use assets.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category
comprised primarily of deferred income tax liabilities,
current income tax liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to land use
rights, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, investment properties and intangible assets.

The total of non-current assets located in different
countries is as follows :

2019 2018
ARET R ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FnBEE (TRE The total of non-current assets other
TRTAREE than financial instruments and
FIiSHi&RE)BHE deferred income tax assets
—/ - PRC 11,822,042 12,942,400
—BINE R - Overseas countries 21,057 30,675
ST HE Financial instruments 2,551,843 780,533
BEFSHEE Deferred income tax assets 344,188 328,684
14,739,130 14,082,292
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5 WakoHBER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
HEEENEREEE (b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers
AEECEHRATIEEFPEHNE The Group has recognised the following liabilities related
Bz afE to contracts with customers:
2019 2018
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR E—gR Contract liabilities — Beverages 1,162,607 1,020,291
aHBEE-HFEE Contract liabilities — Instant noodles 880,946 605,065
aHaE-—HEM Contract liabilities — Others 60,451 73,630
BENEE Total contract liabilities 2,104,004 1,698,986
() BHEEZEAZE (i) Significant changes in contract liabilities
2019F A B EE M AR ETT The increase in contract liabilities in 2019 was due
A BRI R ST to the change in the time frame for the performance

obligations to be satisified.
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5 KWaEkosBEH (&)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

b) EEFEHNEHEEAE (&) (b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers
(Continued)
(i) FHENEEHER Nz (i)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities
TRITKE R WwEHERER The following table shows how much of the revenue
MlErEAENENBERR recognised in the current reporting period relates to
HEEE  ARENBREFERITH carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates
BHOEEEBEMNEE- to performance obligations that were satisfied in the
prior year.
2019 2018
AR®BT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FIAFEREAIB E458F  Revenue recognised that was included
B R Nz in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year
Ok Beverages 1,020,291 801,423
F{E50 Instant noodles 605,065 434,412
H A Others 73,630 133,374
1,698,986 1,369,209

(i) KEITHIEAEF

(i)  Unsatisfied performance obligations

AEERERERDNUTHOERER The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and
EOARERBEAKEBEHNRET R omitted disclosure of remaining performance obligations
RATERBE MR —FHIA as all related contracts have a duration of one year or
Te less.
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5 WEKkIMEHR (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(o) REESTtBXREEMES (c) Restatements for changes in accounting policy
RN BT 2.2 Fy a3 FE & ZE B ¥ R The adoption of the new leasing standard described
FENDHBEBRBUNTEE- in Note 2.2 had the following impact on the segment

disclosures in the current year.

CR2) /1 m
(Decrease)/increase

7 EBE F PWEE PWEE

Segment Segment Segment

profits assets liabilities

ARBFTT AREFT AR®TT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ROk Beverages (379) 26,260 22,579

PARER i Instant noodles (398) 23,935 20,984

H Others (10) 678 678

(787) 50,873 44,241
WEEH RS IHER - At £ Comparative segment information has not been
MIBEEBEN D BEREEFR restated. As a consequence, the segment information
BERERTRETELER- disclosed for the items noted above is not entirely
comparable to the information disclosed for the prior

year.
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BEEED 22X

FEASHERA HERMSHERM
THBRAXREMAS 2R mT :

6 EXPENSES BY NATURE

expenses are analysed as follows:

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and
marketing expenses, administrative expenses and other

2019 2018
AR¥T AREBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FrARM K BEME Raw materials, packaging materials,
SFEmIEEENE D consumables and
purchased commodity used 12,312,220 12,652,310
K 17 B # Changes in inventories of finished goods (339,321) (173,273)
SNBL A ER S Manufacturing outsourcing expenses 54,617 46,629
RIERESER Promotion and advertising expenses 1,680,128 1,629,000
BITREMASX Employee benefit expenses,
BIEESHEH (K139) including directors’ emoluments
(Note 9) 3,416,132 3,217,445
EHEMA Transportation expenses 851,598 855,931
W BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and
(KtsE14) equipment (Note 14) 1,271,799 1,285,837
EREEE T fF Ak Amortisation of right-of-use assets/
B (MEE15) land use rights (Note 15) 85,300 54,014
EMENE Depreciation of investment properties
(KzE16) (Note 16) 19,747 19,941
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets
(BF&E17) (Note 17) 8,111 8,394
EFEERERY Operating lease expenses
in respect of buildings 81,667 128,206
W ERT - MEB R City construction tax, property tax and
Hibti% &R other tax surcharges 247,104 266,856
W BEREEZ Provision for impairment of property
WEEE (FiE14) plant and equipment (Note 14) = 27,787
T A RE R A Provision for impairment of
(MI5E15) land use rights (Note 15) = 19,329
GFEUERFEZ Provision of inventories to net realisable
R (fisra2) value (Note 22) 3,939 9,260
EUWE SR 2B Provision/(reversal) for impairment of
BE (BERD) trade receivables (Note 3.1(p))
(M$3E3.1(b)) 2,020 (1,702)
Z SR Bl & Auditors’ remunerations
— 2R - Audit services 8,809 7,020
Hit Others 883,783 760,316
4aET Total 20,587,653 20,813,300
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HiRE{ (FE) —FH#

7 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET

2019 2018
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEME BEEEEZ Gains/(losses) on disposal of property,

B (EE)  F58 plant and equipment, net 4,137 (16,965)
HETERAE RS F5 Gains on disposal of land use rights, net = 1,050
HEFCRAEEES Gains on disposal of right-of-use

MG FEE assets, net 5,505 -
Hitb Others 4,500 6,494

14,142 (9,421)

Hug A 8 OTHER INCOME
2019 2018
AR®T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT 4 Bh Government grants 131,859 151,099

MEWE KEREE Rental income from lease of property,
RIEEHE 2B A plant and equipment and

investment properties 128,728 128,352
A AR (FI7E33(a)) Consultation service income (Note 33(a)) 60,513 58,660
Hftb Others 38,995 44,295
360,095 382,406

BT B A 35 B R B % B 4 75 BR R
B (ERAEENEBA
AISEMEREENERMEER
B [B] 5 o 5% 3 BT 4 BY B A AR R R
MEARBRERN AR BHERED
RiFEBRERZ [HBlA] AR -

The income from government grants represented financial
support subsidy received from various local governments
in the PRC as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their
contributions to the economy and development of the regions
in which the subsidiaries are located. Such government
grants were unconditional and with no future commitment to
be fulfiled. They were recognised within ‘other income’ in the
consolidated income statements.
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9 BEIRAMX BIFEESEHM 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2019 2018
ARET R AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TERE® Wages and salaries 2,705,110 2,568,047
BRE REMEEET Pension and other social welfare
(EEEMRETE) (defined contribution plan) 391,505 390,652
BEIFEEREREH Staff quarters and housing benefit 129,230 106,629
H b 42 A Other benefits 190,287 152,117
3,416,132 3,217,445
(@ EEEeFMAL (@) Five highest paid individuals
B E2019F12A31ALFE 2 The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest
AEBRARSHFWMALEEM in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
% (2018F M) EE - HH M included two (2018: two) directors, whose emoluments
ERMFF35@)MES 29+ are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 35(a).
R -RENEZNTFTEH =S The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2018:
(2018F =& )EmFMALZ three) highest paid individuals during the year are as
FMES AT follows:
2019 2018
AEAFw FHERN Basic salaries, housing allowances,
HAh)EB R EWH 2= other allowances and benefits
(ARETFT) in kind (RMB’000) 3,183 2,884
L (ARBTT) Bonuses (RMB’000) 2,694 2,574
5,862 5,458
#IE In the band of:
1,500,001 L2 HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
2,000,000% 7t (1B E (equivalent to RMB1,343,001 to
AR #1,343,001 7T RMB1,791,000)
= AR®1,791,0007T) - 1
2,000,001 TE HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
2,500,000/ 7t (1 E (equivalent to RMB1,791,001 to
R AREA1,791,0017C RMB2,239,000)
2 AR #2,239,0007T ) 3 2
/I 70 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 MEBEWRA - FEE 10 FINANCE INCOME - NET
2019 2018
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B E A Finance income
—Be MiR1THEHBZ — Interest income on cash and banks
FEHA 209,472 169,273
— [ H A5 558 — Net foreign exchange gains - 344
209,472 169,617
Bh & B AN Finance cost
—BEZMERX - Interest expenses on borrowings (64,033) (57,839)
—HEBEB BRI — Interest expenses on lease liabilities (2,115) -
—EREEFRA - Net foreign exchange losses (132) -
B EAEEBREEZ - Less: amounts capitalized on
ER S qualifying assets 8,814 11,697
(57,466) (46,142)
EbE WA — R Finance income — net 152,006 123,475
11 FBHEX 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2019 2018
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIERPRIS Current income tax
- BRFERMNZ — Current income tax on profit
BVERPRAS T for the year 523,130 480,363
EIEAEH (MI3E20) Deferred income tax (Note 20) 23,518 (32,793)
PEINBARIRE Withholding tax on dividends from
CEAE ) a PRC subsidiary 58,500 62,500
605,148 510,070
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(@)

(b)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Mainland China corporate income tax (“CIT”)

Subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject
to CIT at rate of 25% (2018: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice on
the tax policies of further implementation of the western
region development strategy issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs” ( B % [2011]585%%3
PR A B 8 50 A F 2 B A B S BRI R A )
companies set up in the western region and falling into
certain encouraged industry catalogue promulgated by
the PRC government will be entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15%. Some of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC set up in the western development region are
entitled to the above mentioned preferential tax rate of
15% during the year.

Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan and Hong Kong are
subject to income tax at the prevailing rates of 17% and
16.5% (2018: 17% and 16.5%), respectively.
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11 FrEHmxX (&)

Hprisst (&)

RNEEKRATE AR F EiEZ G
BEARAHEREMNZEAEMR
25% (20184 : 25% )3t E 2 Eim

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(b) Other income tax (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2018:

MIEBZEMT: 25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:
2019 2018
ARBT ARMBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Br BT 15 B A i Profit before income tax 1,971,360 1,539,774
IERBDEEMERE 2 Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate
1A in the PRC 492,840 384,944
THEB2HMBEE:  Tax effects of:
E@EETHEBEAR Preferential tax rates on the profits of
A BER R certain subsidiaries (14,887) 887
RIERIELEFTER Tax losses and temporary differences
BEHBEEBER for which no deferred income tax
=R asset was recognized 10,149 62,137
AR WA Income not subject to tax (3,258) (21,094)
AR HEF S Expenses not deductible for
tax purpose 28,985 20,696
TR NET R, Additional deduction of research and
development expenses (7,181) -
KB A A Withholding tax on dividends from
& 8 2 FEHF PRC subsidiaries 98,500 62,500
FrIisfifx Income tax expense 605,148 510,070

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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11 FiEHMx (&) 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(b) HMmEH (&) (b) Other income tax (Continued)
ERHEM2ERETD 2 EH The income tax charge relating to components of other
AT : comprehensive income is as follows:
2019 2018
BBA  BEXHE BB % BRBEAT BIEXH Bz
Before tax  Tax charge After tax Before tax ~ Tax charge After tax

ARBTR ARMTR AR¥TR ARSTR ARETT ARETZI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Ht 2w Other comprehensive income:
—ZATEFAEM - Netfar value losses
2EME EH from FVOCI
BEATEIEE (929) - (929) (3.472) - (3.479)
-HERDTEHA - Gains on disposal of
Hit2EWEH financial assets at fair
SREELTE value through other
(Mi19) comprehensive income
(Note 19) 122,295 (30,237) 92,058 - - -
MERAZ Income tax expense (30,237) -
12 BRER 12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
E-WN Basic
BERRBAMDIEFERRGERE Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
B A G & A BR LA B 317 3 AR 4 attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
FHEFHE- average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2019 2018
AT B ATER A Profit attributable to equity holders of
(AR®&TT) the Company (RMB’000) 1,366,212 1,029,704
BT SRR ke 9 E Weighted average number of
(Fi%) ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 4,319,334 4,319,334
FRELRZF Basic earnings per share
(FBRARER) (RMB per share) 31.63 cents 2 23.84 cents 7
FR R ZR 2 B I M 7 E AR W Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
REEERNEGRERBHN —2- share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.
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13 RE 13 DIVIDENDS
2019 2018
ARBT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERIRMRERE Proposed final dividend of
BREBRARKE31.635 RMB31.63 cents
(2018%F : AR¥23.84%)  (2018: RMB23.84 cents)
per ordinary share 1,366,212 1,029,704
R2019%F K2018F AR Al & = The dividends paid by the Company in 2019 and 2018 for
20184 K2017%12 A31H I FE B IR the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 amounted to
& B 5 Rl A A RE1,046,718,0007T & RMB1,046,718,000 and RMB619,402,000 respectively.
AR #619,402,0007T °
EELN2020F3 A2 EEE G A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019
FEFRBEEHE2019F12A31H IE4F of RMB31.63 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
EZzREFKRARKE31.637 (&£ of RMB1,366,212,000, was proposed by the directors on
B A AR1,366,212,0007T) Wi the board of directors meeting on 25 March 2020 and is to
2020F5 H22B BT RERBAFRE L be proposed for approval at the annual general meeting to
REFFHE W EM B MR AB R be held on 22 May 2020. These financial statements do not

LEEMRE - reflect this dividend payable.
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14 YPE - BERKE 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

176

HBER ERIL Efp
| 2 IE#RfE RERKE HE%HE ERIR At
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures  improvements in progress Total
ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
120185151A At 1 January 2018
KA Cost 6,883,336 7,719,418 3,370,282 9,152 521,250 18,503,438
e Accumulated depreciation (1,710,161) (3943,777) (2,335,694) 0,152 - (7,998,784)
LitRERE Accumulated impaiment provision = (263) - - - (263)
REFE Net book amount 5173175 3,775,378 1,034,588 - 521,250 10,504,391
H22018512831ALEE Year ended 31 December 2018
ENEREE Opening net book amount 5,173,175 3,775,378 1,034,588 - 521,250 10,504,391
AE Additions - 40,856 364,002 - 573,009 977,917
SERRETE A Transfer upon completion 396,692 107,483 43199 - (547,374) -
e Disposals (218,779) (17,099) (26,709) - - (262,581)
EAGED! Depreciation (Note 6) (314,555) (569,323) (401,959) - - (1,085,837)
RERE () Impairment provision (Note ) 20,000 (7,787) - - - (27,787)
FREATE Closing net book amount 5,016,639 3,329,508 1,013,121 - 546,935 9,906,103
120185127317 At 31 December 2018
KA Cost 7,083,627 7,767,063 3,683,034 9,162 546,935 18,939,811
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (2,017,088) (4,437,292 (2,569,913) (9,152) - (9,083,445)
LitRERE Accumulated impaiment provision - (263) - - - (263)
REFE Net book amount 5,016,539 3,329,508 1,013,121 - 546,935 9,906,103
H22019512831ALEE Year ended 31 December 2019
ENEREE Opening net book amount 5,016,539 3,329,508 1,013,121 - 546,935 9,906,103
HE Additions 3,894 58,082 51,039 - 261,665 374,680
THEEA Transfer upon completion 407,458 63,002 50,749 - (521,209) -
e Disposals (80,910) (22,728) (3,228) - - (106,866)
EAGED) Depreciation (Note 6) (309,225) (597,963) (364,611) = = (1,274,799)
FREMSE Closing net book amount 5,037,756 2,829,991 747,070 - 287,301 8,002,118
2019512531 At 31 December 2019
B Cost 7,342,462 7,802,921 3,568,852 - 287,301 19,001,536
7 Accumulated depreciation (2,304,706) (4,972,667) (2,821,782) - - (10,099,155)
Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (263)
FHFE Net book amount 5,087,756 2,829,991 741,070 - 287,301 8,902,118
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14 WE -BERZE (&)

FEERCESRGBaRMNEKWT

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2019 2018

AR®F T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

$HE KA Cost of goods sold 847,921 847,462
HERMSEHEMS Selling and marketing expenses 283,119 272,238
THRSE Administrative expenses 140,759 166,137
1,271,799 1,285,837

AEBEZEFR2HMURTE-

R2019% 2018512 A31 B I £ 1K 17
TRME BERERE-

RKEArSEETEFHECHSBA
# AR #46,600,0007T (20184F : AR
#41,200,0007T) B it AR & Bm & Y
[Eadg Al (FIEES) o

FAN AEBECBAEEKEENEE
AR A R #58,814,0007T (20184 A
R#11,697,000C) BFRER - EE X
ANDZRE-—REENMETHFERNEX
3.88% (20184 :3.92% ) BT E A »

The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.

There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.

Rental income amounting to approximately RMB46.6 million
(2018: RMB41.2 million) derived from lease of certain
buildings of the Group is included in ‘other income’ in the
consolidated income statement (Note 8).

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to RMB8,814,000 (2018: RMB11,697,000) on
qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 3.88%
(2018: 3.92%) per annum.
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15 HE(BfELuERARE) 15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)
BN E XM sE2.2 2. 27 A dit - AN & As mentioned in Notes 2.2 and 2.27 above, the Group
BIERMAR2019F1A1B AR 2B B changed its accounting policies for leases where the Group
s R E1eR [AE] > L EE is a lessee pursuant to the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases”
REMAZBEREFHEREE S effective 1 January 2019. This note provides information for
FTBUR - AR EAREBEREEA leases including land use rights where the Group is a lessee.

MAEE (BELMEAE)EH-

i) REEABRERZEE ()  Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
20194
1A18
(Ff7E2.2) 20184
1 January
2019
2019 (Note 2.2) 2018
ARETT ARBFIT AR®EFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets
ES Properties 50,873 57,407 -
T A Land use rights 1,781,668 1,967,815 -
1,832,541 2,025,222 -
TR AR Land use rights - - 1,967,815
HEEE Lease liabilities
I ES Properties
— B HR — Current 22,376 22,011 -
—JEBNHA — Non-current 21,865 31,467 -

44,241 53,478 -
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15 HE (BELBERE)

(%)

(i

REEREXRERZEH

(%)

R2019 7 F L E R 20184F
2T FEREEEH SO

15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)
(CONTINUED)

() Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
(Continued)

Movements in right-of-use assets in 2019 and land use
rights in 2018 are analysed as follows:

T B

FREEE Land use

Right-of-use assets rights

2019 2018

mE twHERE @y LR

Land use Land use

Properties rights Total rights

ARBTR ARETR AR®TR ARBTI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

®1A1A At 1 January 57,407 1,967,815 2,025,222 2,103,701

RE Additions 26,077 - 26,077 275
HE Disposals (280) (133,178) (133,458) (62,818)
AR (M36) Impairment provision (Note 6) - - - (19,329)
B (fiz6) Amortisation charges (Note 6) (32,331) (52,969) (85,300) (54,014)
»12A31H At 31 December 50,873 1,781,668 1,832,541 1,967,815
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15 HE(BfELuERARE) 15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)
(%) (CONTINUED)

(i) RERXREIRzZEEHE (i) Amounts recognised in the income statement

2019 2018

nE  LHERAR @i twEAE

Land use Land use

Properties rights Total rights

ARBTR ARMTR AR¥TRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

E E A GED) Amortisation charges (Note 6)
HEMKAR Cost of goods sold 1,957 35,355 37,312 34,135
HERTEERRS Selling and marketing expenses 24,079 4,320 28,399 4137
AREX Administrative expenses 6,295 13,294 19,589 15,742
32,331 52,969 85,300 54,014
FIEBT (GrABBRA) Interest expense (included
(KizE10) in finance cost) (Note 10) 2,115 -
BFLLHERY (H36) Operating lease expenses
in respect of buildings (Note 6) 81,667 128,206
Baimkes Total charges to income statement 169,082 182,220
R2019F v M ER S RN BREA The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was
AR #118,756,0007T ° RMB118,756,000.
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15 HE (BELBERE)

(%)

(iii)

(iv)

AEBZHEHEEHREEED
ZABRFR

AEBZz LHERAREE2HFHEE
BN o WO AERBHEE 2 @
NREREE - B —RIAEE AR
—EAZETHFRIL A BEREN
T X (iv) P 2t AE ESE SR o

HERZERNELER XEEE
T8 S B A6 R B A6 F o B HAE A 85
BZHEEETHRMERIN
T E thp % X 8 3 ANAE PR ) - 1EAE
EEETSREEENER-

JERA R AR AR

AEENETHEREREREER
SR REIEERE - ZFHER
TTRRRERANSKEERN
RAE IR A R REE D EH I
RIEPREBERENHAKETR
WA SHBEBLEEATE-

15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)
(CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The Group’s leasing activities and how they
are accounted for

The Group’s land use rights are all fully prepaid.
In addition, the Group leases various offices and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of 3 months to 10 years, but may have
extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property and equipment leases across the
Group. These terms are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.
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16 REW= 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2019 2018
AR® T ARMETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M®1A18 At 1 January 335,929 353,123
NE Addition 792 2,747
HE Disposal (3,365) -
e (KMizt6) Depreciation (Note 6) (19,747) (19,941)
W12 A31H At 31 December 313,609 335,929
R12A31 BRI A Cost as at 31 December 494,221 497,800
ZEE Accumulated depreciation (180,612) (161,871)
W12A31H At 31 December 313,609 335,929
WEWMEMPNTRN EE T&RE -1 The investment properties are located in Shanghai, Jiangsu,
NERERE  WENRHEAA40FF50 Sichuan and Guangdong Province of the PRC and erected on
FR LM o land with lease periods of 40 and 50 years.
REEKEMEZNECDTH AGEE Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been
mEE [HMA] - charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statements.
2019 2018
AR®T ARMEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Rental income 82,112 87,130
REELHESWAZYEZ  Direct operating expenses from property
EREERT that generated rental income (13,484) (12,271)
68,628 74,859
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16 REW= (K)

HEZH

REMEDIREMESARNES Z
REHERBEPHEL -

BEASEEHBEMEETER 2R
HEEZSRAR EANRE-REFIL
S EME Fit A e 235 B AT
Bkl 2 TANBKREERDS - BEAX
KFGEEZEARRENE 2 RF
BEF-

ERREMEHEZBRRKEHEEN
AEB FLHMEI2 -

BREWMEZ A FEHIWMT:

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise any reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of
investment properties, refer to Note 32.

The fair values of the investment properties are set out as
follows:

2019 2018

AR®T T AR®ETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

NE Fair value 375,775 416,556

20194 K2018412A31A 2 A F &
THE IR A LA E R Al B 2R A B
(E3E) BEERITZMRIB S RENR
EBITRIHERE

The fair values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were
determined by management’s self-assessment using
discounted cash flow projection based on significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).
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16 REYE (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
HMEZH (&) Leasing arrangements (Continued)
FREATIERE ALK (E3E)# Information about fair value measurements using significant
TZAFEAENERHIET unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:

FABR@ABE
Unobservable inputs
#20194
RE 128318 A ¥ E HE R =

Fair value at
31 December

Description 2019 Rental value Discount rate
(AR®T ) (AR®T )
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

T A

48,579 59,093 per annum 10%
Plant A
% 5B

79,904 # %16,658 per annum 10%
Plant B
& = C

50,417 45 8,638 per annum 10%
Plant C
& 5 D

70,648 512,309 per annum 10%
Plant D
MAE

93,681 2,874 per annum 10%
Office building = o " ’
JE &

32,546 S % - Per annum 10%
Shops
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16 REWE (&)

HEZH (8)

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing arrangements (Continued)

A B 5 A BUR
Unobservable inputs
20184
AES 12A31B 2 AFE HE BRI &K
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2018 Rental value Discount rate
(AR®EFT) (AREFIT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
= A §F7,762
47,603 10%
Plant A per annum
% 5B F418,112
98,310 10%
Plant B per annum
HEC §49,732
63,511 10%
Plant C per annum
BED FF12,309
78,838 10%
Plant D per annum
WNE 2,851
.L\ . 94,758 10%
Office building per annum
Ji
33,536 B~ Per annum 10%
Shops
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17 BEREE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B Ig
Computer
software
ARBEF T
RMB’000
20181 81H At 1 January 2018
B Cost 93,684
RET#E5H Accumulated amortisation (74,725)
AR HER Net book amount 18,959
HE2018F12A31B L FE Year ended 31 December 2018
FHAREFEE Opening net book amount 18,959
NE Additions 4,826
Bin (M5E6) Amortisation (Note 6) (8,394)
FARRMEFEE Closing net book amount 15,391
7"2018%F12A31H At 31 December 2018
(DN Cost 98,510
BT 5H Accumulated amortisation (83,119)
B FRE Net book amount 15,391
BZ2019F12A31HLEE Year ended 31 December 2019
FHREFEE Opening net book amount 15,391
NE Additions 7,433
i (fisEe) Amortisation (Note 6) (8,111)
FRREFRE Closing net book amount 14,713
#2019%12A831H At 31 December 2019
%N Cost 105,943
2T Accumulated amortisation (91,230)
AR FFE Net book amount 14,713
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17 BLEE (&) 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
BEREG 2 HEHEDRNG A TITHRF The amortisation of computer software has been charged
XIRIHEEERTHHEERX] & to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
ORI A AR5 596,000 & A expenses’ at the amounts of approximately RMB5,596,000
R #2,515,0007T (20184F : AR ¥ and RMB2,515,000 (2018: RMB7,056,000 and
7,056,0007T & A R #1,338,0007T ) ° RMB1,338,000), respectively.

18 UEERZARNKERE 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD
EEEAGBRBERNEENT The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
2019 2018
AR®T ARMF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
S LN - E 2 ) Interests in an associate (a) 326,990 303,592
RE &3 2w () Interests in joint ventures (b) 453,128 444,245
M12HA31H At 31 December 780,118 747,837
FESRERNEENT The amounts recognised in the income statement are as
follows:
2019 2018
AR T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JFEAG Bt 2 R B 7 (a) Share of profit of the associate (a) 29,794 18,209
EheEatE (BB Share of net of (losses)/profits of
S M F R (D) joint ventures (b) (16,761) 66,165
HE12A31BLLFE For the year ended 31 December 13,033 84,374
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18 URERZEABRNIRE (&) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
(@ MN—EEE LR 2EE (@) Interests in an associate

R—HEBE 2R 2 EH0M The movements in interests in an associate are as

T: follows:

2019 2018
ARMT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

»1A18 At 1 January 303,592 291,781

JE 15 % A Share of profit 29,794 18,209

BB Dividends received (6,396) (6,398)

»12A318 At 31 December 326,990 303,592

R2019F 12 A31 8 » iz /A7 The particulars of the associate of the Group as at 31

R AEBEB 2 A FBEHINDM December 2019, which is accounted for using equity

Nk method, are set out as follows:

AMBIEAR/
AAER R A BREX/BRE AEEEGRE TEEH
Paid-up
Country/place and capital/ Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation Share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2019 2018

EELHAR:

Listed in Hong Kong:

BaltARENRT REES ARE 17.87% 17.87%  IREEST BT
BHBRAF 200146 H26H 392,600,0007T EREDNR - #RE
([REMFRET]) EmIEERKE

(Yantai North Andre Juice Yantai, PRC, RMB392,600,000 The production and sales
Co., Ltd.) (*Andre Juice”) 26 June 2001 of concentrated apple

juice, pear juice, apple
essence, forage etc.
products.
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18 LIESHZARNKRE (&) 18

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(@ M—EEERR &R (&) (@)

AEEREBEAREE BER

Interests in an associate (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of the Group’s

¥ECUBERBENT shares of the associated company’s assets, liabilities
and results is as follows:
2019 2018
AREBT R ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEEEAEBERX: Summary of balance sheet:
EMENEE Non-current assets 699,173 756,928
mEEE Current assets 1,253,841 1,080,974
MEE Total assets 1,953,014 1,837,902
EMREBBIE Non-current liabilities 1,634 879
e B & Current liabilities 121,555 138,131
FEN=R Total liabilities 123,189 139,010
FEE Net assets 1,829,825 1,698,892
AEEDEZED L The Group’s % share 17.87% 17.87%
REB DG The Group's share 326,990 303,592
BErmkak: Summary of comprehensive income:
PN Revenue 831,530 1,061,841
FEm M & Profit and other comprehensive income
E b2k for the year 166,729 101,897
AEESEZED L The Group’s % share 17.87% 17.87%
REE D The Group’s share 29,794 18,209

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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18 IR ZARNKRE (&) 18

op

(b) REELFE R

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b)

Interests in joint ventures

REELEZHER 2 FEHMT: The movements in interests in joint ventures are as
follows:

2019 2018
ARET R ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
®1A1H At 1 January 444,245 427,935
NE Additions 39,299 -
JE1G (E518) /% F)$ %8 Share of net (losses)/profits (16,761) 66,165
2R B Dividend received (13,655) (49,855)
M12H31H At 31 December 453,128 444,245
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18 UHEERZEARNEKRE (&) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

b) REELFEZER (&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

MR2019%F12A31H -

AEBEARE

R (EHEEHREDHINE
SORIIER) 2 HBEI AT

The particulars of the joint ventures of the Group as

at 31 December 2019, all of which are unlisted and
accounted for using equity method, are set out as

follows:
EMBRIBR
ARER wHRAH BrREX AEEELRE FEEH
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2019 2018

FEMNIXRRERAZ &M AR 50% 50%  REAEERERRS
REEBERDA 2008%7H 188 1,000,0007T
([ERAIEREER])

(United Advisor Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB Investment management
Management Co., Ltd.") 18 July 2008 1,000,000 and advisory services
(“United Advisor Venture
Management”)

BEMERFHTEERAF FEER 19,060,0005 7T 42% 2%  EERESE BEAR
(TEHER]) 20097 A24H R AR E

(Guilin Ziquan Beverage Guilin, PRC, UsD Production of various types
Industries Co., Ltd.") 24 July 2009 19,060,000 of beverage including
(“Guilin Ziquan”) fruit, vegetable, tea and

coffee etc.

Greater China F&B RE#Hs 10,700 T 50% 50%  REER
Capital Partners Ltd. 2008F4A16H
(“Greater China F&B") Cayman Islands, usD Investment management

16 April 2008 10,700

REZIS-CEERAR HEHE AR 50% 50%  HERBZBEM
(MHEZI)) 201147 A 290 232,000,0007C

(Wuhan Zijiang President Wuhan, PRC, RMB Production of various types
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 29 July 2011 232,000,000 of plastic products
(“Wuhan Zijiang”)

SMS Capital Co., Ltd. HEHS 500,000E T 50% 50% — REEE
(“SMSCC") 2012411 A28H

Cayman Islands, UsDh Investment management
28 November 500,000

2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 LIERZEARNKRE (F) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
(b) Regd¥oiEsx (&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
AMBIER/
ARER R AH BREXR AEEEGRE TEXK
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2019 2018
SMS Investment Re#s 500,000% 7T 50% 50% HREER
Management Co., 201351 H2H
Ltd. (“SMS Investment Cayman Islands, UsDh Investment management
Management”) 2 January 2013 500,000
ERAMEIFRENE HELE M AR 47.85% 39.74%  REER
(TERREm]) 20094 A138 426,500,0007C
(China F&B Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB Investment management
Investments®) 13 April 2009 426,500,000
(“China F&B”)
HEZRRMIE HEEE 19,000,000% 7 35% 3B%  EEREESH
ERRA 2013F7H238
(Ziquan Beverage industries  Yichang, PRC, usb Manufacturing and sale of
Co. Ltd.%) 23 July 2013 19,000,000 beverages
SMS Consumer Fund L.P. HEHS 14,720,000 7T 23.44% 2344%  BREER
(“SMSfund”) 20124F12 73180
Cayman Islands, Usb Investment management
18 December 2012 14,720,000

- WX EWDIARARERER A
PXEEBEEST -
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The English name represents the best effort by
management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 UHEERZEARNEKRE (&) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

b) REELFEZER (&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
TXEHNAEBRFEHFIESE A summary of the financial information of the major
BV BRERBE: jointly controlled entities of the Group is set out below:
EERm China F&B

2019 2018
AREBTR ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEEEAER Summary of balance sheet
IERENE E Non-current assets 348,792 403,984
MEEE Current assets 46,976 51,123
BEE Total assets 395,768 455,107
EMEBAE Non-current liabilities = -
nEaE Current liabilities 153 263
BmaE Total liabilities 153 263
FEE Net assets 395,615 454,844
AEESEZED L The Group's % share 47.85% 39.74%
REESDIE The Group’s share 189,302 180,755
BE2mkFR Summary of comprehensive income
PN Revenue - 24,000
FE (FE), %FK  (Loss)/profit and other comprehensive
H b2l income for the year (64,428) 159,677
REE D The Group’s share (30,753) 63,456

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 UHERZEARNEKE (8F) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b)

194

REELEER (8) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
BELT Wuhan Zijiang
2019 2018
ARMET T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEEAGBR Summary of balance sheet
EREEE Non-current assets 66,866 81,563
MENEE Current assets 270,070 252,781
mEE Total assets 336,936 334,344
ERENEE Non-current liabilities = -
mENBE Current liabilities 28,692 26,676
BaE Total liabilities 28,692 26,676
FEE Net assets 308,244 307,668
AEEBDGZEDLEL The Group’s % share 50% 50%
REEDE The Group’s share 154,122 153,834
BErEKERX: Summary of comprehensive income:
ON Revenue 237,077 320,837
FE R & Profit and other comprehensive income
H 2w for the year 27,830 27,847
AEE DG The Group’s share 13,915 13,924
#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 BAFEFTAEMEEZEWEZ 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
EWMEE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (“FVOCI”)

REB 2R A FERF AH M 2K &= FVOCI of the Group are stated at fair value and include the
ARAFEYER WBEATEIE: following:
2019 2018
ARMT T AR¥ETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ELMES BE Listed securities, Hong Kong
BRI Haisheng Juice 6,027 6,956
JFEEMESH F Unlisted securities, PRC
SEEIFLE Wondersun Dairy = 211,665
6,027 218,621
B EmEHFRZME Market value of listed securities 6,027 6,956
FARATFEFAEMEZEKZN S The movements in FVOCI during the year are as follows:
BEEMEEMT
2019 2018
ARMT T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 218,621 222,093
TAHMEEWZ 2 Net fair value changes taken to other
N EEEFE (M 327) comprehensive income (Note 27) (929) (3,472)
FALE Disposal during the year (211,665) -
Mm12A31H At 31 December 6,027 218,621
EHBEZAFEREREER 2™ The fair values of the listed securities are determined based
LREMET - on the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 95
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 BAFEFAHMEZEKE 19 FVOCI (CONTINUED)

(%)

R2019F12A31H AEEBEEE
FHREIZBRBERAR([EBHART])
37,800,000/ (20184 : 37,800,000
B AR B AR IRE/2.93% (2018
F:2983%) ZEREMNAFEAE
FHRAOTHRE -RNBARTHIRE
LA TTEHE

MR2019F 1213 - AEEAE = A
HEREISATELIEROERA
A ([FTEILUFLE]) 22 F7o% R - &
R (& B A K %333,960,0007T ° 3% H &
=1 E £ IS AREE122,295,0007T
sk 1 A B BT 45 B A R #30,237,000
Tk A ANREEQ92,058,000 T (Fi s
11) oz & B M2019F 12 A27
HEX - MGEBEBERZAEGARE
92,058,0007T B R B AN & B« & 5K
KREMEZERZER - EELEFH
SE R B R H b 2 1 Uk 2 T vR I 8
ZEMBERECATEEHRAEEAR
#:21,358,0007T ' B R % IH & FIHTK
KEEMBEEEN>EEZRBAET -

The Group holds 37,800,000 shares (2018: 37,800,000
shares) in China Haisheng Juice Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Haisheng Juice”) representing 2.93% (2018: 2.93%) of the
shareholding of Haisheng Juice as at 31 December 2019.
The fair value of the investment is the market quoted price
of Haisheng Juice. The investment in Haisheng Juice is
denominated in HKD.

On 13 December 2019, the Group disposed of all its
9% equity interests in BEIEATEILILERMBERA
Al (Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Joint Stock Co., Ltd.)
(“Wondersun Dairy”) to third parties at a total consideration
of RMB333,960,000. A gain of RMB122,295,000, or
RMB92,058,000 net of PRC income tax of RMB30,237,000
(Note 11) was derived from the disposal. The disposal was
completed on 27 December 2019. The net of tax gain of
RMB92,058,000 was recognised in other comprehensive
income according to the Group’s accounting policies.
Such net gain on disposal together with the cumulative
loss from fair value changes previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and transferred to other reserves
of RMB21,358,000 was reclassified from other reserves to
retained earnings upon completion of disposal.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 EEFBH 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
BEFEREENBELEFRGBHRAES The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
Mo income tax liabilities is as follows:

2019 2018
AREF T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIEFTISMEE Deferred income tax assets
— 1218 A Rk E 2 - Deferred income tax assets to be
BIEFTISHIEE recovered within 12 months 198,605 215,513
—#Br12{8 A&k 2 — Deferred income tax assets to be
RIEFTISTREE recovered after more than
12 months 145,583 113,171
344,188 328,684
RIEFTSRARE Deferred income tax liabilities
— BRI REE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
RIEAMISTHEE settled within 12 months 6,593 6,484
—BRBB12E AB&EE > - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
BEFSHARE settled after more than 12 months 222,195 176,610
228,788 183,094
BIEFTSFLEE JF58 Deferred income tax assets, net 115,400 145,590

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 97
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 EZEFRSH (&)

BEREFSHER 228 T:

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as
follows:

2019 2018

AR¥T ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

MW1A1H At 1 January 145,590 112,797
RE A2 RS R Charged to other comprehensive income

(MF3E11) (Note 11) (6,672) -

MRAIBEER (3B ), EF A (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
(BFE11) income statement (Note 11) (23,518) 32,793
M12A31H At 31 December 115,400 145,590

FRREMSHEERBENES R
At RE DR AR ) T

EIEFIEBERE

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:

Deferred income tax assets

BAVE
ERERR AR
58 0¥ EER 2EUEN BE
HERE RENE EHEX AFETH R @zt
Impairment
provision of
accounts  Depreciation Downward
receivables of property, adjustment
and plant and Accrued in fair value Tax loss
inventories equipment expenses of FVOCI benefit Total
ARETI NS ARETFL ARETTT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
#2018%1 A1A At 1 January 2018 4,857 7,714 130,040 6,672 137,689 286,972
WA BER (IB) /FA (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
income statements (464) 3,578 67,093 - (28,495) 41,712
2018512A318 At 31 December 2018 4,393 11,292 197,133 6,672 109,194 328,684
WA 2 ERENR Charged to other comprehensive income - - - 6,672) - (6,672)
REABRRFA/ (1K) Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
income statements 1,748 8,761 (6,430) - 18,097 22,176
R2019F12R318 At 31 December 2019 6,141 20,053 190,703 - 127,291 344,188
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ELEFRBH (&) 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
BEFREHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
REME BERE
SR £BAH g -EN (4 @t
Accelerated Capitalization
Withholding Business  depreciation  of borrowing
tax  combination of equipment costs Total
AREFT  ARBTT  ARETT ARETR  ARET:T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
#201851 418 At 1 January 2018 19,664 126,326 4137 24,048 174,175
REABER (Credited)/charged to the
(FFA)/ ik consolidated income statements - (5,419) 18,718 (4,380) 8,919
#2018512A31R At 31 December 2018 19,664 120,907 22,855 19,668 183,094
MERBER Charged/(credited) to the
B/ (GtA) consolidated income statements 40,000 (4,184) 12,286 (2,408) 45,694
#2019%12831A At 31 December 2019 59,664 116,723 35,141 17,260 228,788
BEIEFTSHEEEEREEEBARNRE Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
AEMNERBETIEN SR RAE 2 carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
THIBEE T AR - XEE W R5E2019 tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
F12A3 1B AU A B ERTUK The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
AZBIEEEHARKT722,146,0007T approximately RMB160,884,000 (2018: RMB179,859,000)
(20184 : AR#814,775,0007T ) HER in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RIS EELH AR®160,884,000 RMB722,146,000 (2018: RMB814,775,000) as at 31
7C (2018F : AR 179,859,000 December 2019 that can be carried forward against future
JL) ° FR2019%F #E 7L F N & F JE im Y taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
B EE 4 A AR 98,102,000 RMB98,102,000, RMB183,858,000, RMB204,618,000,
7T AR #183,858,0000 A R RMB174,881,000 and RMB60,687,000 will expire in each of
204,618,000 T * A R #174,881,000 the five years starting from 2019.
7T & AR #60,687,0007T °
201912 A31H WA A T M B As at 31 December 2019, deferred income tax liabilities of
RERESZN 2 REBZFEMNTER RMB271,408,000 (2018: RMB285,206,000) have not been
RIS B EARK271,408,0007T recognized for the withholding tax that would otherwise be
(20184 : A R#285,206,0007T) ° &< payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
SEEREBNESR A R KERZ The management of the Group currently has no intention
LEM -R2019F12F31H ' ZEKI[E to remit those earnings in the foreseeable future. Such
Bl &2 & s ARES4ETT (20185 ¢ unremitted earnings totalled RMB5.4 billion (2018: RMB5.7
ARHBSTEIT) » billion) as at 31 December 2019.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 99
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 REHEsHNEMIA 21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

200

BAFETA
EhxE HtzEks @t
Receivables FVOCI Total
SREESER Assets as per consolidated

RNEE balance sheet
72019512 A31H As at 31 December 2019
BRFEFAEMZEKE FVOCI (Note 19)

(BiEE19) - 6,027 6,027
fEWE BT RERE (FH5E23)  Trade and bills receivables (Note 23) 569,064 - 569,064
Be R EARRFIE Deposits and other receivables

(TEEBEHR) (excluding prepayments) 436,317 = 436,317
REE B (M EE25) Long-term time deposits (Note 25) 2,530,000 - 2,530,000
Be RiRfTH% (K7E25) Cash and bank balances (Note 25) 3,953,500 - 3,953,500
Bt Total 7,488,881 6,027 7,494,908
7201812 A31H As at 31 December 2018
BATEFAE 2 EKE FVOCI (Note 19)

(H5E19) - 218,621 218,621
FEWE 5 B 3K (B 5E28) Trade receivables (Note 23) 530,062 - 530,062
Ee R EAERFIE Deposits and other receivables

(TBREEGR) (excluding prepayments) 708,366 - 708,366
REEEBFR (M3E25) Long-term time deposits (Note 25)) 550,000 - 550,000
Re kRIS (15225) Cash and bank balances (Note 25) 4,626,478 - 4,626,478
Bt Total 6,414,906 218,621 6,633,527

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 BEREIHNEMT A

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(&) (CONTINUED)
Hitb B R AR
FTENEREE
Other financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
RABESBRATHEE Liabilities as per consolidated Balance Sheet
R2019F12A31H As at 31 December 2019

FENE SR (Kim28)

HEAE (M315)

H o AT FRIB R B B A
(TREFLBEE)

&5 (P 3E30)

H o = HAE (5008 (M3E29)

@t

2018512316

FEfTE SR (Mizos)

HENRERESER
(TeRfEFeFEE)

& & (Ki7E30)

Hi REEAFIE (F1529)

st

Trade payables (Note 28)

Lease liabilities (Note 15)

Other payables and accruals
(excluding non-financial liabilities)

Borrowings (Note 30)

Other long-term payables (Note 29)

Total

As at 31 December 2018

Trade payables (Note 28)

Other payables and accruals
(excluding non-financial liabilities)

Borrowings (Note 30)

Other long-term payables (Note 29)

Total

1,723,416
44,241

2,074,813
1,162,867
232,357

5,237,694

1,554,219

2,341,946
1,987,726
237,655

6,121,546

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 FE 22 INVENTORIES

2019 2018

AR%T ARMETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

JR#1 % Raw materials 353,585 379,446

& Work in progress 108,878 119,976

B4 Finished goods 1,059,391 722,221

Z M Consumables 217,108 237,376

1,738,962 1,459,019
WRR I A E KA R H 5 The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
T 2TFEREANBARE14136B 8 included in cost of sales and other expenses amounted to
JC (2018%F : AR¥E14,622FH & L) © approximately RMB14,136 million (2018: RMB14,522 million).
KB E2019F 124318 IEF E st iH The Group recognised inventory provision of approximately
GEZHANERFEMS AEE®E RMB3,939,000 (2018: recognised RMB9,260,000) (Note
REEREN B ARES,939,0007T 6) for the year ended 31 December 2019 in respect of the
(20184 : #E R A R #9,260,0007T) write-down of inventories to their net realisable values. These
(M&Fe)  ZEXRBEEFABTZERZ amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income

[SHER A o statement.

202 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEULE 5 BR K Trade receivables
—RBEFE= — from third parties 570,075 537,528
— R B @77 (FIFE33(0) ) — from related parties (Note 33(b)) 10,505 6,183
580,580 543,711
R E AR Less: provision for impairment (13,304) (13,649)
JEUNE SRR FE Trade receivables, net 567,276 530,062

B ZE i Bills receivables

—REE=FH — from third parties 1,788 -
JEUWE 5 R ER Trade and bills receivables 569,064 530,062

AEBBERTFTEFORKEIKRZE
FAH8 (20184F : 60K E90K ) - fEW &

ZERFHRE DA :

analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
usually 60 to 90 days (2018: 60 to 90 days). The ageing

2019 2018
ARET AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEWE SRR - 4A%E Trade receivables, gross
—90 KA — Within 90 days 541,169 504,102
—91E180Kk — 91 to 180 days 36,124 35,402
—181%E365K — 181 to 365 days 2,189 2,337
——Fp — Over one year 1,098 1,870
580,580 543,711

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 208
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 BRRESRAKRERE (&)

AEBERWE SRR ZREEA T
B¥EHE:

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEULE SRR - 4858 Trade receivables, gross
—AR# - RMB 575,972 538,916
—%7T - UsD 1,213 1,564
— BT - HKD 3,395 3,231
580,580 543,711
REER BRUEZERFILEENER The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables
EEAERFEN ?% approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
RBEHE AEBEAREZZREER The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at

kALt EEE SRR REER R
HE - AREYESHEAERRER
e

AEEEAEEW B REEANFEIIRD

BETTE ERMEARKEZEARE

MEEMEwBHEMEBRBETE

TBHEEREE M E3.1(b)RHEA BT
BHFEIS °

ﬁf‘%@ﬁzf’i%ﬁ% URENRAEBREE
CHNE RS B AR R bR 2 B R R
Was.w

the reporting date is the carrying value of trade and bills
receivables as mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation
of the allowance.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.

204 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T RIE - RS R H b UK

24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

| RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hoih pE U 3R I8 Other receivables
—HEYLEEER — National Debt Reverse Repurchase
products - 250,000
— JE R BE s 5 FOAR — Amounts due from related parties
(F$5E33(b)) (Note 33(b)) 76,778 52,072
—H ik ® & W KIE — Other deposits and receivables 359,539 406,294
436,317 708,366
R FERNERED Less: non-current portion (15,816) (11,912
BVERER Current portion 420,501 696,454
TET A Prepayments
—TEIEER — Prepaid value added tax 192,326 224,355
— AN THER 2B — Advance payments to suppliers 98,156 82,010
290,482 306,365
710,983 1,002,819

2018 12A A& B U RS K5 A
REE2SEILMNEBSEFRISGBET
EEFOE ((BEEFLB])ER &
FIE7 2% FE9%FT B ° K2019F 1 A 5
HABS - AN EE B AR EUER B & 0 AT
B8 - R2018F12 8318 ' iR &R
BXRENME BHEFOESELARS
RBE&EEY (Wik2s5) -

BAREOIANFR 12 E M E MR
EEAREHE  RENKREERE
REER 2R FERES-

In December 2018, the Group purchased National Debt
Reverse Repurchase (“NDRR”) products from Shanghai Stock
Exchange with principal amounts totalled RMB250 million,
and interest rates from 7.2% to 9%. The proceeds from
NDRR had been fully received by the Group upon maturity in
January 2019. The NDRR was classified as cash and cash
equivalent as at 31 December 2018 for the purpose of cash
flow statement (Note 25).

Substantially all of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts
approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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25 REEHER RERRTE
73

25 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND BANK BALANCES

2019 2018
AR®ET T ARBEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

R HE BT Long-term time deposits 2,530,000 550,000
He RIRTTHES Cash and bank balances 3,953,500 4,626,478
RIT M FRRIR e 45T Total of cash at bank and on hand 6,483,500 5,176,478

REEREXRANME  RITRFER
THRBSEFEYZHEMT

A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and
cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statements is as

follows:

2019 2018
ARMT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITRFEEAES Cash at bank and on hand 6,483,500 5,176,478

- BEYEEESD Add: National Debt Reverse Repurchase
(H¥3E24) products (Note 24) - 250,000

B RAEEIEEBBE =@ AK Less: Long-term and short-term
& A I 52 B E BRAF 3R time deposits with original

maturity over three months (5,425,720) (3,862,000)
Z PR EIERIT R Restricted bank deposits (1,000) (533)
ReRBELEED Cash and cash equivalents 1,056,780 1,563,945

R2019F 12 A31H  AE B FRIETT
MFRERNEFSFFER401E
(2018F : 4 17F) »

MR2019F12A318 X R B R 1TF K
A R #1,000,0007T (20184 : AR
533,0007) IEEAAE B RE T HK
AR EROIRITER

As at 31 December 2019, the effective weighted average
rate on deposits of the Group placed with banks was 4.01%
(2018: 4.17%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, the restricted bank deposits of
RMB1,000,000 (2018: RMB533,000) represented deposits at
bank pledged as security for gas charge of the Group.

206 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 RHIEHER HE&£RIRT4A 25 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH
g4 (45) AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)
MR2019F 12 A31H " RITRFEHR S As at 31 December 2019, total of cash at bank and on hand
A N B E were denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018
ARBTR ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—AR% - RMB 6,467,966 5,158,651
—X7T -USD 10,166 14,968
—B7T - HKD 3,655 2,653
—Hftp - Others 1,713 206
6,483,500 5,176,478
AEBERYIEARAEETSE AR RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
Hia s E B AR H i A5INE K A international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
ERBEE H rh B 5 4N B = A B 4 B8 28 currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject
ZAHNEE I HH B R iR B TR R o to the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated
by the PRC authorities.
26 BARKRGEEE 26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

ACCOUNT

HE
Authorised
EERHE B BRAHE
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to
FET ARBTT
HKD'000 RMB’000
R2019F1 A1 E At 1 January 2019 til
2019%12H31H 31 December 2019 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BRIRMR
Issued and fully paid
RG#E BA& Refe  ROBER fit
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent to account Total
TAR ARBTR ARBFR AREFR
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M201951 A1BE At 1 January 2019 il
2019%12A31H 31 December 2019 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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27 Htbf#E 27 OTHER RESERVES
AABH NTERE EERE B
Contribution Fair value Statutory
surplus reserves reserves Total
AR®F AREFT ARETT ARETL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2018F1 A1A 2 &8 Balance at 1 January 2018 1,144,299 (41,775) 1,248,607 2,351,131
BATEHAEMZANR Fair value losses on FVOCI (Note 19)

ZATEEE (fitiH9) - (3472) - (3472)
BREERRE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 159,192 159,192
R20185E128318 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2018 1,144,299 (45,247) 1,407,799 2,508,851
R2019F1B1R 2 4 Balance at 1 January 2019 1,144,299 (45,247) 1,407,799 2,506,851
BATEFAEZEREAR Fair value losses on FVOC! (Note 19)

ATEER (FIF19) - (929) - (929)
HERATEHAEMZEKED Gain on disposal of financial assets

SREEZNE at FVOCI - 92,058 - 92,058
HECBEERBAAHAREL Transfer of net fair value losses previously

DEFEBEN R ERATETA taken to reserves, and gains on disposal

EtzAkansrEE of financial assets at FVOCI, to

ZHBEERBAMN retained earnings upon disposal of

the financial assets - (70,700) - (70,700)
BREEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 240,244 240,244
R2019F 125310 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2019 1,144,299 (24,818) 1,648,043 2,767,524
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27 Hibf##E (&)

(@)

(b)

BB

AARNBABBRERIBEARA]
Ry EmZAARBERETEA
RER EHEETZEA/MERL
ZEE R EE R 2 K A&

R

S

BRASHEEREER  %F
ABERA] 2R T AR A A HE 2
BAe

EERE

R BDA 3 BA R B SR R B R A
MR EHESHEAEDN D
& A #E S B #9ORTE B 15 K P e
WE O FFR (ERE T UEF
ERRFTERR) PRE TR
EFE - FTBRERFBIIBEER
F) T 38 3R ©

ERINEBECEMAEDLEE
ARSI E R BB AR - TS
FERB M D IRE - BREE
wAERZ10%BIEEERB A
e BEEEEEHKABEETION
NAZFEMERE0% AL ° k5N -
HEARAEZAESTENIFR
FE TR R A BR B AR a A AR T
BAREAFBRESARBANE
- ERPINEEREDETMAK
VYHWHENBAR EESEES
SRIBERE T K 8B EERBRIEK
i M AR E R e

AEBBABERAERARBEHA
AMEE RARAFTMEELENL
BIMAREAR

27 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Contribution surplus

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of the Cayman
Islands, such contribution surplus is distributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are appropriated from the net profit
as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years and before profit distributions to equity
holder. All statutory reserves are created for specific
purposes.

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.
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28 BNEZRX

28 TRADE PAYABLES

2019 2018
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

FERTE SRR Trade payables
—¥=5 — to third parties 1,303,927 1,193,954
— B85 (MI7E33(b)) — to related parties (Note 33(b)) 419,489 360,265
1,723,416 1,554,219

HEBRTASE ZERHBBE B30
REIOK - BT B Z R 2 MRk lik 70 4 10

The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as

NE follows:
2019 2018
AR¥T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

ERE SR Trade payables

—30KR AR — Within 30 days 1,427,797 1,242,747
—31E90K — 31-90 days 233,981 238,338
—91E180K - 91-180 days 10,699 20,138
—181%2365K — 181 to 365 days 13,864 21,640
——FMNE — Over 1 year 37,075 31,356
1,723,416 1,554,219

PIERNEZRFIGAAREHE - K
SErhREEERANGEERAZAFEMR
=,

All the trade payables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying
amounts approximated their fair values as at the balance
sheet dates.

2/] O #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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29 HthtENREREFER 29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2019 2018
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RENEERTHN Accruals for promotion and
FERT &R advertising expenses 1,234,853 1,336,645
JEfS T & K iEF Salary and welfare payables 392,328 305,770
BEEIMNESE Deposits from customers 428,703 506,604
R I 50R Payables for purchase of equipment 156,776 294,613
HAb eI sRIB R EETE A Other payables and accruals 565,699 547,176
2,778,359 2,990,808
B JERDERER o Less: non-current portion (232,357) (237,655)
BVERER Current portion 2,546,002 2,753,153
BREMDEMENRIBRETERY Substantially all of the other payables and accruals are
DARBHE HEZREBERLRES dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts approximated
BEAZAFEEE- their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/] »]
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30 B8 30 BORROWINGS
2019 2018
AR¥T T ARMETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE BN ER Non-current
JERT R4 MR Notes payable, unsecured = 500,000
B RN RIRBIER S Less: current portion of notes payable - (500,000)
BN &R Current
RHERITEE  EIEEF Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 1,162,867 1,487,726
o ERRERNEE Add: current portion of notes payable - 500,000
1,162,867 1,987,726
fEE 4% Total borrowings 1,162,867 1,987,726
REEENEBEZEFFNEIIERE - The Group’s notes payable were interest bearing at 3.9% per
W E R2019F8 A28 H B EEE - annum and fully repaid on 28 August 2019.
REBZEEAR—FANEE- The Group’s borrowings were repayable within one year.

2/] 2 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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30 B8 (&) 30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
BECEREERARNEERA LA TE The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximatd their fair
BE - WiE T EBEE: values as at the balance sheet dates, and were denominated

in the following currencies:

2019 2018
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 1,153,100 1,974,000
ETT usD 9,767 13,726
1,162,867 1,987,726
MEHEZERB 2 MEFIIERFEHT The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
e balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
2019 2018
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRITIEE - I Bank borrowings, unsecured
—AERH - RMB 3.88% 3.92%
-7 - UusD 2.57% 2.46%
e R & Notes payable
—AR% - RMB - 3.90%
AEBHEETIRERZRITEERE The Group has the following undrawn bank borrowing
g : facilities:
2019 2018
AREBT ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BZEH xR At floating rate:
——F N5 H — Expiring within one year 3,007,208 3,662,795
——F DA _E 5| Hf — Expiring beyond one year 1,006,906 466,698
4,014,114 4,129,493

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/] 8
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31 BEELAZRE 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2019 2018
AR®T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B PAT 1S ¢ Al A Profit before income tax 1,971,360 1,589,774
BTESEEDL 2 A% Adjustments for:
—REREARZ BN — Share of profit of
WE BN (MEE18) investments accounted for
using equity method (Note 18) (13,033) (84,374)
S/ EN — Depreciation of property, plant and

RIBITE (H3E14) equipment (Note 14) 1,271,799 1,285,837
—FEAREENE — Depreciation of right-of-use assets/

3 {50 AR A B Amortisation of land use rights

(HMi5E15) (Note 15) 85,300 54,014
—REWEITE (H:E16) — Depreciation of investment

properties (Note 16) 19,747 19,941
— B EERHE (ME17) — Amortisation of intangible assets

(Note 17) 8,111 8,394
—LEWE - -BEIEHEN — (Gains)/losses on disposal of property,

(FI5) /&8 (7)) plant and equipment (Note 7) (4,137) 16,965
— & T ARG — Gains on disposal of

(MIEE7) land use rights (Note 7) = (1,050)
—HEFRBEEE ZFGE — Gains on disposal of right-of-use

(P3E7) assets (Note 7) (5,505) -
—FEMRERIEIEFEE 2~ Provision of inventories to

B (FsE22) net realisable value (Note 22) 3,939 9,260
— B ZEFORMERE, - Provision/(reversal) for impairment of

(R E) trade receivables (Note 23)

(FF7E23) 2,020 (1,702)
— T i fE R 2 REEE — Provision for impairment of

land use rights - 19,329
—-WE - BELEEZ — Provision for impairment of property,

VERERE L] plant and equipment = 27,787
—FMBEHAZ (f&E10) — Interest expenses (Note 10) 57,334 46,142
—ERER, (FIF) — Foreign exchange losses/(gains)

(FF7E10) (Note 10) 132 (344)

3,397,067 2,939,973
EEEEE: Changes in working capital:
—RBWEZERREE — (Increase)/decrease in trade and bills

(3Em),/md receivables (41,023) 34,592
—ENFE SR - Increase in prepayments, deposits

Efh e MR IEE AN and other receivables (24,365) (63,220)
— E i JE BN AR B W SR IE — Increase in other non-current

0 receivables (3,904) (4,795)
—FEEmM - Increase in inventories (283,882) (308,905)
— B S RFIE M - Increase in trade payables 169,197 158,219
— H th & 5B & — (Decrease)/increase in other payables

JEst B R CFd) and accruals (38,394) 38,474
— B A EEN - Increase in contract liabilities 405,018 329,777
—HihIERNERE S FIEJR A - Decrease in other non-current

payables (5,298) (13,664)
BEEECES Cash generated from operations 3,574,416 3,110,451

2»] 4 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2019 F#§



31

e BB R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EEE4E2BE (H) 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
RIRERERT LEWE BERK In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
B REME THERERFERAES property, plant and equipment, investment properties, land
EZR/REBERE: use rights and right-of-use assets comprise:
2019 2018
AR T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRTENFE (M3E14 - MizF15%  Net book amount (Note 14,Note 15

BizE16) and Note 16) 243,689 325,399
HEME WEREE- Gains/(losses) on disposal of property,

WEYFE - T AER plant and equipment, investment

EREEEFE,(EE) properties, land use rights and

(FF7E7) right-of-use assets (Note 7) 9,642 (15,915)
MEAERD Decrease in lease liabilities (281) -
TERTRIE - e R EAM Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

FE WK IE R, A (36 00) deposits and other receivables 62,219 (238,096)
b JE A SRR Decrease in other payables (23,366) -
HEME  BE k& Proceeds from disposal of property,

THERERERAEEE plant and equipment, land use rights

Z TS5 5A and right-of-use assets 291,903 71,388

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/] 5
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31 BEELEZ2HE (&) 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

210

AEEHINERFERE R

51 53 7

(CONTINUED)

This section sets out an analysis of the movements in net

DT e debt for each of the periods presented.
HEAE BE @t
Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2017F12H31H As at 31 December 2017 - 1,334,768 1,334,768
BEeNE: Cash flows:
REFHRERA Inflow from financing activities - 17,013,970 17,013,970
REEHHREERL Outflow from financing activities - (16,361,483) (16,361,483)
B % Currency translations - 471 471
R20185F12H31H As at 31 December 2018 - 1,987,726 1,987,726
RINE B TS 2R Recognised on adoption of
F169MmER (RHE2.2)  HKFRS 16 (see Note 2.2) 53,478 - 53,478
R2019%181H As at 1 January 2019 53,478 1,987,726 2,041,204
REeMRE: Cash flows:
REZHREMA Inflow from financing activities - 17,999,981 17,999,981
REEYHEE ML Outflow from financing activities (34,974) (18,823,680) (18,858,654)
BRERAEEE Recognition of right-of-use assets 26,077 - 26,077
HUEREAEEE Derecognition of right-of-use assets (340) - (340)
BB ER Currency translations - (1,160) (1,160)
R2019512H31H As at 31 December 2019 44,241 1,162,867 1,207,108

Annual Report 2019 F#§
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32 EiE 32 COMMITMENTS
() BEAREE (@) Capital commitments

REBEREENT The Group’s capital commitments are as follows:
2019 2018
ARBT R ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Y- WE KR Property, plant and equipment

— BRI AR B — Contracted but not provided for 329,120 591,645

(b)

KEHERE
EEEEREBA -

AEERER=ZHAZ+FRE
MZ A HEEEHEHES @
MRERBE ZEHEMETR
HIRR - ARG R B - B
EEFEREES-

E2019F1 A1BH £ KEBD
ZEHERRERABREE  HTR
BRBKEEERSE E—$ER
FERM 2. 2R M FE15 o

MEZKEHEAFEWT

(b)

Operating lease commitments

The Group is the lessee:

The Group leases various offices and warehouses

under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within
3 months to 10 years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the

terms of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-

of-use assets for these leases, except for short-term

and low-value leases, see Note 2.2 and Note 15 for

further information.

The operating lease commitments for properties are as

follows:

2019 2018
AR¥ET R ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

LS Properties
——FRNIHZEE — Lease expiring within one year 6,752 28,528
——FRIHCEE — Lease expiring over one year - 38,022
6,752 66,550

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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32 #i¥E (&)

(b)

218

mEEERE (F) (b)
FEBEDBHBA -

AEERBETABBENEERE
W THERENE BE &R
o ZEHENHATRFHRER
e ETAREENEERERZE T
AREBRKERNSERS B

32 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Operating lease commitments (Continued)
The Group is the lessor:

The Group leases out investment properties, plant
and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
under these non-cancellable operating leases are as

R follows:
2019 2018
AR®T ARMEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
THB—F Not later than 1 year 95,716 35,996

tBim—F Later than 1 year and

BRBAAT not later than 5 years 26,582 107,761
BBAF Later than 5 years 35,381 25,056
157,679 168,813

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3B EHRAIRS 33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
REEz HEZERAR B —DERD The ultimate holding company of the Group is £t — 1t &5
ERAG ([H—1%]D)  TTREEE ABE A A (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation*) (“UPE”), a
FRGMERAR LM Z AR ARA] company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
EERA/R—DEIHNBERRIEAEH The directors of the Company are of the view that the
ZEEDLERBENRHEIEBEE T - subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures and associates of the

Group are regarded as related parties.

(a) EHEBLETHNRS: (a) Transactions with related parties:
B EITHR ST The following transactions are carried out with related
parties:
2019 2018
iix=2 AREBFTRT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
R KRB H % Sales of raw materials and i)
finished goods:
—H—EZMHEBAR - Subsidiaries of UPE 101,242 79,426
—REB ALK - Joint ventures and associates of
/NS the Group 7,397 4,092
108,639 83,518
FRAM R R A fh R B Purchase of raw materials and 0]
finished goods:
— X - UPE 15,654 14,632
—H—EZMHEBAR - Subsidiaries of UPE 3,629,101 3,532,781
—KEEZAEMNEN - Joint ventures and associates of
/NS the Group 561,482 650,751

4,206,237 4,198,164

Y BR 5 B S - Logistics service expense: 0]
— BB /AR - Subsidiaries of UPE 4,428 19,462

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/1 9
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3B EHAEXRS (&) 33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(a) EEEEAEELETHRES: () (@) Transactions with related parties: (Continued)
2019 2018
B £ ARTRT AREBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HHARBUA - Consultation service income: 0]
— 1% - UPE - 324
—m—1EZHEBAG - Subsidaries of UPE 52,917 50,942
—REBZAEMNENR - Joint ventures and associates of
SR L/NE] the Group 7,596 7,394
60,513 58,660
HeMhA: Rental income: (ii)
—F— ¥ ZHEBARR - Subsidiaries of UPE 60,644 58,309
—REB7E5ZP%¥KE - Joint ventures and associates of
/N the Group 1,647 1,647
62,291 59,956

220

* RXEWAAARERER
NBH X BB RS-

()  EsHERFEERME &K R
B R IR IR 5K 5 IR 7%
THAR R AR R 1p 8 2 1R BUETT

(i) HEEBEEWERZWA  WRE
R4 73 PITRT 3L 19 A 2 16 TR
HY o

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2019 F#§

*

The English name represents the best effort by the
management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.

Notes:

(i) The above sales and purchases of raw materials and
finished goods, receipt of logistics service and provision
of consultation service are carried out in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements.

(i) Rental income represents income from lease of
properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
of agreements made between the parties.
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33 BEHAIRS (&) 33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) CEEEAEETS &R (b) Balances with related parties:
MR2019F12A31H  AEBE®EE The Group has the following significant balances with its
BB AN TERGEH: related parties as at 31 December 2019:

2019 2018
ARET T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e BB 77 BREE Balances due from related parties:
FEUE SR Trade receivables
(H$3¥23) - (Note 23):
—F—EZHB2RR - Subsidiaries of UPE 10,505 6,183
AR HRIE R EAMm Prepayments and other receivables
FEU IR (Note 24):
(MI7E24)
—Fm—1EZWEBAR - Subsidiaries of UPE 73,737 49,919
—REBZAEEMER - Joint ventures and associates of
/NS the Group 3,041 2,153
76,778 52,072
87,283 58,255
FEAT BA R T 8RR Balances due to related parties:
FERTE SR Trade payables
(MFzE28) - (Note 28):
— 1% - UPE 2,576 -
—H—1EZHEARTF - Subsidiaries of UPE 389,629 334,058
—REBZEEDER - Joint ventures and associates of
/NS the Group 27,284 26,207
419,489 360,265

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 22»]
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33 BHMALEXE (&)

(b) EEEAEES &R (48)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Balances with related parties: (Continued)

2019 2018
ARMET T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
H M FE T 5RI8 I Other payables and accruals
FEstE A (MiFE29) (Note 29):

—B—0EZWMEATF - Subsidiaries of UPE 34,613 31,157

—KREBZAEMNER - Joint ventures and associates of
iR l/NE]| the Group - 125
34,613 31,282
454,102 391,547

HEAM T SRR EER 2B KA
BMEREE-

&L I e BR B 05 A R A0 BRI (B
HENEERBZRATFERE-

() TEEBAEHM:

The balance with related parties are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the balances due from and
due to related parties approximated their fair value as at

balance sheet dates.

(c) Key management compensation:

2019 2018

AREF AR®EF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

Fe EAMEMEF  Salaries, bonus and other welfares 19,353 18,409

222 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

AAREEBER (a) Balance sheet of the Company
2019 2018
ARET AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
IRBEE Non-current assets
R—RHBAFZEE Investment in a subsidiary 7,976,325 7,884,385
R—FRKEZ AT ZHEZ  Interest in an associated company 1,281 1,189
EAFERTA Financial assets at fair value through
Hab 2 a8 other comprehensive income
TRLEE 6,027 6,955
Y- B E R Property, plant and equipment 9 2
7,983,642 7,892,531
REBEE Current assets
FERFRIE X Prepayments and other receivables
H h JE UK IE 403 578
JE W BT B8 & RISRIB Amounts due from subsidiaries 68,285 402,454
RehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,454 215,078
70,142 618,110
EEH#E Total assets 8,053,784 8,510,641

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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34 KRB EEEBEREFHHESST 34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
(48) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(@ AATEEEFRXR(E) (a) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
2019 2018
ARMET T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
s EQUITY
f& 7 Share capital 39,764 39,764
& 15 % 18 AR Share premium account 4,829,899 4,829,899
Hmf#E Other reserves 1,356,258 1,357,187
{RE8 & F| Retained earnings 1,806,924 1,761,277
HER Total equity 8,032,845 7,988,127
=K LIABILITIES
nEEE Current liabilities
Hfth FE TR IE 2 Other payables and accruals
JEEtE R 1,173 8,788
BE Borrowings 19,766 513,726
20,939 522,514
wes Total liabilities 20,939 522,514
ERRkEEASE Total equity and liabilities 8,053,784 8,510,641
QR EE A ERDSR202043 The balance sheet of the Company was approved by
RosREESEHME WHINUT the Board of Directors on 25 March 2020 and were
EERERFEZo signed on its behalf by the following Directors.
EBEL D5
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
HNITEFE HITEFE
Executive Director Executive Director
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34 XATIEEEBERKHFE®E 34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

(&) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(b) AAE)FHEE (b) Reserve movements of the Company
AR AV ERE BERA &t
Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
AREFTT ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2018%5181H2  Balance at 1 January 2018
323 1,381,078 (20,419) 1,411,463 2,772,122
FERM Profit for the year - - 969,216 969,216
BRAFERA Fair value losses on FVOCI
Hip2ElE
ZRTEESR - (3,472) - (3,472)
2% 2017 2k & Dividends relating to 2017, paid - - (619,402) (619,402)
A2018%12831H 2 Balance at 31 December 2018
@e 1,381,078 (23,891) 1,761,277 3,118,464
FEEF Profit for the year - - 1,092,365 1,092,365
BOTERTA Fair value losses on FVOCI
Hin2Ela
ZAFERE - (929) - (929)
B X f12018F 2% & Dividends relating to 2018, paid - - (1,046,718) (1,046,718)
20195128318 2 Balance at 31 December 2019
o 1,381,078 (24,820) 1,806,924 3,163,182
% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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35 EERARESR 35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
(@ EBRESITHRAEZ#ME (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
BEERERITTHRABZHMEH The remuneration of every director and the chief
HIERT executive is set out below:
RIER
HE P4
EEpg ik % BERA EERH HitR A ES @t
Employer’s
contribution
toa
retirement
Name of Discretionary Housing Other benefit
Director Fees Salary bonuses  allowance  allowance scheme Total

ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR ARWTR ARETR AR®TR ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20195 2019
HITEE Executive directors
BE%EEE M Lo Chih-Hsien
(BE%E) 56 453 4,167 - 11 - 4,687
BIFELRE M LiuXinhua (Z1372) 49 1,344 2,258 240 - 49 3,940
FHITEZ  Non-executive directors
BE#%E M SuTsung-Ming

(BZ8) 47 - - - = - 47
REIE%4E  Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui
(FREE) 49 - - = = - 49
BYFHT  Independent non-executive
£ directors
REZLE M ChenSun-Te
() 251 - - - 25 - 276
BERE M Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
(BCE) 251 - - - 25 - 276
BREELE Mr. Lo Peter (K2 £) 251 - - - 25 - 276
BEZLE M Chen Johnny
(RER) 251 - - - 14 - 265
1,205 1,797 6,425 240 100 49 9,816
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35 EESwEAKRER (&) 35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
(@ EBERBESTHRAEZHME (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(%) (Continued)
RIREH
el
EENE e e BBERA4  RBEEREE HMER EXHEX @it
Employer’s
contribution
toa
retirement
Name of Discretionary Housing Other benefit
Director Fees Salary bonuses  allowance  allowance scheme Total

ARBTR ARETL ARBTL ARBTR ARETT ARRTT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'O00 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000

2018 2018
HiTE=S Executive directors
BER%EE M Lo Chih-Hsien
(BB%) 66 445 3,927 - - - 4,438
2FELE M LuXinhua (2137E) 48 1,344 1,972 240 - 50 3,654
FHTEE  Non-executive directors
BEHBEL  Mr SuTsung-Ming

(B=8) 4 - - - - - 4
REIE%4E  Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui

(FBEE) 48 - - - - _ 48

BT Independent

- non-executive directors
BRE%4 M. Chen Sun-Te

(REE) 258 - - - - - 258
BIELE  MrFanRen-Da,

Anthony (SBC3) 258 - - - - - 258
BEELE M LoPeter (BEE) 258 - - - - - 258
BEE%E M Chen Johnny

(REZ) 247 - - - - - 047

1,224 1,789 5,899 240 - 50 9,202
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35 EEEMNRERS (&)

()

228

EERHEETRAEZHE
(%)

REL Z£20194F &20184 12 A 31
HIEFE  BIEAAREEHRENK
RIERETAMSHTH  AAFA
M EREAESENMEER
A B R IR 2 S Eh sk
YERBE R E -

ARABAERAKE 2 XHFI L
AABEENETHEAEAER
(THAEEXREE)  ARAF
JE 45 R By 3 AN R AR B AT
REBZERRG LHRAK -

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(@

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no arrangement was in place under which a director
of the Company waived or has agreed to waive any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the
Company to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 SUBSIDIARIES

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

of the Company as at 31 December 2019.

EMALEAR/
NRARB B KB BRTREZRE s RE TEEK/CEnY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2019 2018
EEEE Directly owned
F—TMNEREBRAR Re#s 923,180,000 7 100% 100%  REER/FEHS
2006464298
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, USD923,180,000 Investment holding/
29 June 2006 Cayman Islands
Indirectly owned
BEREE Indirectly owned
H—% (PE)REFRRA HE g 1,103,770,000% 7T 100% 100%  BEER/HE
1998437108
(Uni-President Enterprises (China) Shanghai, PRC. USD1,108,770,000 Investment holding/PRC
Investments Ltd.*) 10 March 1998
MER-—CERmBERRA FESEARE 37,500,000% T 100% 100%  AERHEFH BE@
199261 A13H HRE/ HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) ~ Urumgj, PRC. USD37,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 13 January 1992 beverages, foods and
instant noodles/PRC
KB —CERMERDA B R 65,000,000% 7 100% 100%  HEREERMRK
199344 A14A F M/ E
(Chengdu President Enterprises Chengdu, PRC. USD65,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 April 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BlGE—CERBERAR REIE L 96,000,000 70 100% 100%  EEREESHR
199345 14H HRE/ T E
(Kunshan President Enterprises Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 May 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REF—CERREB AR RERE 59,600,000% 7 100% 100%  HEREERHRK
199347 A7H FREME/
(Wuhan President Enterprises Food ~ Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 7 July 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BNS—CEXERAR SN 75,000,000% 70 100% 100%  HAEREESHR
199412 A58 HRE/ T E
(Guangzhou President Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of

Enterprises Corp.”)

5 December 1994

% — ¥ EE R B R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 BT (&) 36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

230

AMRIER
ARER wHRAH ERITRMRRA FisRE TEEYRKES
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2019 2018
BHS—CEERAF B 39,900,000% 7 100% 100%  AEREERHRK
199546 A15H FRE/
(Shenyang President Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 15 June 1995 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BEG—CEERAT REE AL 60,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBEESRK
199842 A23H HEE,/ HE
(Hefei President Hefei, PRC. USD60,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 23 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BEEG—EERAF MBI R E 29,200,000 7 100% 100%  EERBEEFHK
199842 A 26 FRE/
(Harbin President Enterprises Harbin, PRC. USD29,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 26 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IRGE—HRRERAE HREE R 52,900,000% T 100% 100% EEREERK TE
200142H20A
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD52,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drinks Co., Ltd.") 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
HES—CEERAA HEIRE 44,000,000% 7 100% 100%  EEREERHR
2001458188 FRE/
(Nanchang President Nanchang, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 18 May 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BMGE—LRERRA AR 20,000,000% 7 100% 100%  HEREEHHR
2001467198 HiEE,/ HE
(Fuzhou President Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 19 July 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BNE—EERAR whE 37,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EEREERHR
200246 A258 FRE/
(Zhengzhou President Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 25 June 2002 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
F— (LB EEERAA HE L 8,600,000 7T 100% 100% SR FREERRRES/
20056104178 R E
(President (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 Trading of beverages,
Trading Co., Ltd.*) 17 October 2005 instant noodles and food

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 B~ T (&) 36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMALEAR/
NRARB B KB BRTRAZRE iR E TEEY/CEnd
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2019 2018
GEEERHERAF g 1,000,000%7 & 100% 100%  ANERER/&E
20065124284
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.”) Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resource
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
ERG—CERMEBRAR B B3 30,000,000 7 100% 100%  HAEREESHR
200711 A8H HRE/ HE
(Kunming President Enterprises Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 8 November 2007 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EEERERDA B 1,761,920% 7T 100% 100%  JREER/BE
200846 A5H
(Champ Green Capital Hong Kong USD1,761,920 Investment holding/Hong
Co., Limited.) 5 June 2008 Kong
ESS-—BRKERAHE FEES 4,150,000% 7 100% 100%  EERBEEHH/HE
200942 A 208
(Bama President Mineral Water Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
G-EEBERERAF EiE 5,085,435,600% 7 100% 100%  REERKRES
200944 A30H
(Uni-President Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD5,065,435,600 Investment holding and
Holdings Co., Ltd.) 30 April 2009 trading
SECEERTN(LE) lc i} 150,000 7T 100% 100%  EEHF
BRAF 2009%5H 128
(Champ Green (Shanghali) Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
Consulting Co., Ltd.") 12 May 2009
OG- ERRAA RERD 30,000,000 7. 100% 100%  EEREEHHR
201059718 F M,/ e
(Changsha President Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 1 September 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
AT E SR o Bl B 46 AE%1,000,0007C 100% 100%  EHRE/ TE
BRRA 201058244
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
Noodle Restaurant Dining 24 August 2010

Culture Limited Company®)
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36 MELAE (&)

36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRIER
ARER wHRAH ERITRMRRA FisRE TEEYRKES
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2019 2018
HIf—EERAR HRERT 25,000,000 70 100% 100%  AEREERHRK
2010104 28H FRE/
(Zhanjiang President Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 28 October 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
MER—CEERAA FERE 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBEESRK
2010411 168 FEHE
(Nanning President Nanning, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 16 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REHR-GCEERAF TERE 20,000,000% 7% 100% 100%  EERHEERH/HRE
201061228
(Changchun President Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 02 December 2010 beverages/PRC
Mrgs—tEERAT o B 7 A 20,000,0003 7% 100% 100%  SARREREE RE
2010612158
(Akesu President Akesu, PRC. USD20,000,000 Wholesale of forage and
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
MG —EERAF REIZEM 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEEFHK
2011415288 FEHE/
(Taizhou President Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 28 January 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
ERR—EERAR REEE 33,600,000% 7T 100% 100%  EARRMRIAEERILE
2011425168 REE/HE
(Chongqing President Chongaing, PRC. USD33,600,000 Wholesale and retail of pre-
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 16 February 2011 packaged food and dairy
products/PRC
HRFE-—EERAF REH R 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBEESRK
2011428248 FEHE
(Balyin President Baiyin, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 24 February 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
FEG-ERNREEERAR  HELE AR 60,000,007 100% 100%  HEEK/F
200348A1H
(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Leasing business/PRC

Century Co., Ltd. %)
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMALEAR/
NRARB B KB BRTRAZRE iR E TEEY/CEnd
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2019 2018
HER-CREEEEN HELE AR 20,000,007 100% 100%  REER
BARAA 2003%7A18H
(Uni-President Shanghai Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 Investment holding/PRC
Management Consulting 18 July 2003
Co., Ltd. %)
BEF—CEERAA FEEE 22,000,000 7T 100% 100% EEREERE /TE
20113 A8H
(Hainan President Chengmai, PRC. USD22,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 8 March 2011 beverages/PRC
AFER—EBRAF mEARE 35,000,000 7 100% 100%  HEREERHK
201011150 F M/ e
(Shijiazhuang President Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 15 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EEG—CEERRA B 30,000,000 7 100% 100%  EEREESHR
20114545188 HRE/ HE
(Jinan President Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 18 April 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EGH—CEERRA HEES 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%  HEREERHEK
201147 A6H FEME HE
(Guiyang President Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 6 July 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RAR—CEBRRKBRAA HEERR 4,800,000% 7T 100% 100%  HEBSK/HE
201147 H68
(Wuxue President Enterprises Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 Manufacturing mineral
Mineral Water Co.Ltd.”) 6 July 2011 water/PRC
HERERRESBRAA HE g 950,000% 7T 100% 100%  EeEERmRIFEME
2011567280 /HE
(President (Shanghai) Private Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Label Marketing & 28 June 2011 food and dairy products/
Trading Co., Ltd.”) PRC
MME—EBRAF R 85,000,000 7 100% 100%  HEREERHK
201146A21H HRME,/ HE
(Hangzhou President Hangzhou, PRC. USD85,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of

Enterprises Co., Ltd.”)

21 June 2011
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36 BT (&) 36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

234

AMRIER
ARER wHRAH ERITRMRRA FisRE TEEYRKES
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2019 2018
BNF—EERAR R 33,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AEREEHEH
201169 H2H
(Xuzhou President Xuzhou, PRC. USD33,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 2 September 2011 beverages/PRC
F-BE(RERAR REE 10,000,000% 7T 100% 100% BEEERAGHE/HE
201243A28H
(President (Kunshan) Kunshan, PRC. USD10,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Trading Co., Ltd.*) 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
AES—EEERAE TR 43,100,000% T 100% 100% EERFESRH/HEH
201243 A9H
(Henan President Henan, PRC. USD43,100,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 9 March 2012 beverages/PRC
RAEG—CEERAF IR 50,000,000 1T 100% 100%  EEREERHR
201247H68 FHEE,/ RE
(Shaanxi President Shaanxi, PRC. USD50,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 6 July 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IEHER—CEERAR REER 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HEREEHHR
2012411 A58 HiEE,/ HE
(Jiangsu President Nanjing, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.) 5 November 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RAWLK—F (FH)BERK U E A AK#180,000,0007C 100% 100%  HEERK/HE
BRAA 2013F3A158
(Changbaishan Mountain Jilin,PRC. RMB180,000,000 Manufacturing mineral
President Enterprises (Jilin) 15 March 2013 water/PRC
Mineral Water Co., Ltd. *)
F—0E (B EXAR HREE AR #60,000,0007 100% 100%  RiE/HE
BRAE 201354 A9H
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) Real  Kunshan,PRC. RMB60,000,000 Real estate/PRC
Estate Development 9 April 2013

Co., Ltd.*)
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EMALEAR/
NRARB B KB BRTRAZRE iR E TEEY/CEnd
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2019 2018
BEH—CEERAR FRE R 16,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AEREEHRH/FEH
201354 A22H
(Ningxia President Yinchuan, PRC. USD16,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 22 April 2013 beverages/PRC
AEEGF—EARAA R A 30,000,000 7 100% 100%  EEREESHR
2013F559A HRE/HE
(Uni-President Enterprises Hohhot, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.") 9 May 2013 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IWEG—CEBBR AR HEEF 30,000,00057¢ 100% 100%  EERBEEHH/RE
201349A5H
(Shanxi President Jinzhong, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 5 September 2013 beverages/PRC
HER—REARAF HELE 40,000,000%7¢ 100% 100% ERERRIE/F
2001%510A 148
(Uni-President Enterprises Shanghai, PRC. USD40,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Shanghai) Co.,Ltd *) 14 October 2001 food products/PRC
WEES - ERRE MR BT [ B 30,000,000 7 100% 100%  EEREEHH/HE
BRARA 2013511 A1A
(Uni-President Enterprise (Hutubi) Hutubi, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Tomato Products Technology 1 November 2013 beverages/PRC
Co., Ltd.") Co.,Ltd.")
PER-—tERERR HE g 80,000,000 1. 100% 100%  EEREESHR
ERAR 20144557150 F M/ e
(Uni-President Enterprises (Shanghai) ~ Shanghai, PRC. USD80,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drink&Food Co.,Ltd.) 15 May 2014 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
G—HE (R ERAR HE L AR 96,000,007 100% 100% BEREARHE/HE
200459 A 234
(Uni-President Trading (Hubei) Hubei, PRC. RMB96,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co,,Ltd.) 23 September 2004 food products/PRC
REG—ERRATF PEXE 12,000,000 7T 100% 100% EEREERE /HTE
2014F8A15H
(Uni-President Enterprises Tianjin, PRC. USD12,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Tiandin) Co.,Ltd") 15 August 2014 beverages/PRC
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMRIER
ARER wHRAH ERITRMRRA PR TEEYRKES
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2019 2018
s CEERAF HEHE 6,000,000 7T 100% 100%  EERHEERH/HRE
201543108
(Uni-President Enterprises Hunan, PRC. USD6,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hunan) Co.,Ltd") 10 March 2015 beverages/PRC
EBEGFHHIE hEES AR #100,000,0007C 100% 100%  AEREEHRE/H
BRATF 200946 A9AH
(Yantai Tongli Beverage VYantai, PRC. RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Industries Co., Ltd") 09 June 2009 beverages/PRC
G-rEELRRN FEIEL 1,200,000% 7T 100% 100%  HEEREEAKEHE
BRAA 1995124278

Kunshan, PRC.
27 December 1995

(President Enterprises (Kunshan)
Food Products Technology
Co., Ltd.")

FRBEMNTE 8 EBREBNHERA
ERERECER -NASHSEMK
YZ—FEMBRARNERRZARE
ERF AR B 2B R FH
RONEBERE-

* RXEWDARRERBRNIBHX
HEBESH-

BEHRRBRENSEH

R2020%F & ) ¥ ELE AR 8 B Bh R &
BEZEEE (AT EME [T ML E
) HERBNHERIEEERGE
NEFEET 2ERETRFHRY
MoREFHRTEEET HABRD
RGBT —ERREES BREA
BOETTIREE - 122 TR R RS AT H &
ERPIRESR AR — RGNt &5
BENEES - ELEEEARE RO
ENERMEENAE -—EEHTE
BEAERN - RAMBEHRRERETER
H K68 B i R B3R RS I R R B AR
SENYBEBRERBEERZE-
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USD1,200,000

Manufacturing and sale of

seasoning/PRC

All subsidiaries located in the PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong
are limited liability entities. One subsidiary incorporated in the
Cayman Islands is an exempted company with limited liability.
All subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign
owned enterprises.

* The English name represents the best effort by management of
the Company in translating the Chinese name.

37 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE

REPORTING PERIOD

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented
across the PRC including, but not limited to, extension of
the Chinese New Year holiday nationwide, postponement of
work resumption after the Chinese New Year holiday in some
regions, certain level of restrictions and controls over people
travelling and traffic arrangements, quarantine of certain
residents, heightening of hygiene and epidemic prevention
requirements in factories and offices and encouraged social
distancing, etc. It may have a temporary impact on the
Group’s transportation and production cost in some regions,
but not to the extent of material. As at the date on which
this set of financial statements was authorised for issue, the
Group was not aware of any material effect on the financial
statements of the Group as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak.
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(Stock Code B3 4m3E: 220)
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